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for the f�scal year ended June �0, �0�� are free of mater�al m�sstatement.  The �ndependent 
aud�t �nvolved exam�n�ng, on a test bas�s, ev�dence support�ng the amounts and d�sclosures 
�n the f�nanc�al statements; assess�ng the account�ng pr�nc�ples used and s�gn�f�cant 
est�mates made by management; and evaluat�ng the overall f�nanc�al statement presentat�on.  
The �ndependent aud�tor concluded based upon the aud�t, that there was a reasonable bas�s 
for render�ng an unqual�f�ed (“clean”) op�n�on that the f�nanc�al statements are fa�rly 
presented �n conform�ty w�th GAAP.  The aud�tor’s report �s presented as the f�rst 
component of the f�nanc�al sect�on of th�s report.  Also prepared by the aud�tors �s a “report 
on �nternal control over f�nanc�al report�ng and on compl�ance and other matters based on an 
aud�t of f�nanc�al statements performed �n accordance w�th government aud�t�ng standards”.  
Th�s report �s presented on pages �� & �00. 

GAAP requ�re that management prov�de a narrat�ve �ntroduct�on, overv�ew, and analys�s to 
accompany the bas�c f�nanc�al statements �n the form of Management’s D�scuss�on and 
Analys�s (MD&A).  Th�s letter of transm�ttal �s des�gned to complement MD&A and should 
be read �n conjunct�on w�th �t.  The Calvert County Government’s MD&A can be found 
�mmed�ately follow�ng the report of the �ndependent aud�tors on page �.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

Calvert County, Maryland was formed as one of the or�g�nal count�es �n Maryland �n ���� 
and has a Comm�ss�oner form of government.  A board of f�ve Comm�ss�oners governs the 
County and serves the execut�ve and leg�slat�ve funct�ons.  The Comm�ss�oners operate 
under a Code of Publ�c Local Laws of Calvert County, rev�sed �n ����, and are subject to 
leg�slat�on adopted by the State Leg�slature.  "Beg�nn�ng w�th the general elect�on to be held 
�n Calvert County �n November ����, f�ve county comm�ss�oners shall be elected by 
countyw�de vote.  One shall be a res�dent of the f�rst elect�on d�str�ct, one a res�dent of the 
second d�str�ct, and one a res�dent of the th�rd elect�on d�str�ct of the county.  Of the 
rema�n�ng cand�dates, the two rece�v�ng the h�ghest number of votes shall be selected.   
Comm�ss�oners who are elected and qual�fy shall take off�ce the th�rd Tuesday of December 
follow�ng elect�on.  Each comm�ss�oner shall hold off�ce for � years or unt�l a successor �s 
elected and qual�f�ed (Code ����, § �-�0�; ����,ch ���, § �.)" 

There are several other elected off�c�als �n Calvert County that �nclude: Reg�ster of W�lls, 
Sher�ff, States Attorney, Treasurer, Mayor of the Town of Chesapeake Beach, Mayor of the 
Town of North Beach, Clerk of the C�rcu�t Court, and f�ve members of the Board of 
Educat�on.

The Comm�ss�oners appo�nt a County Adm�n�strator who �s respons�ble for the day-to-day 
adm�n�strat�on of the County government.  The Comm�ss�oners establ�sh pol�cy, enact 
ord�nances, rev�ew and approve annual budgets, conduct publ�c hear�ngs and make dec�s�ons 
on land use matters. The Comm�ss�oners also appo�nt all department heads, members of 
boards and comm�ss�ons and represent the county �n deal�ngs w�th other mun�c�pal�t�es, the 
state and federal government.  The off�ce of the Comm�ss�oners �s located at ��� Ma�n 
Street, Pr�nce Freder�ck, Maryland, �0���. The ma�n phone number �s ��0-���-��00 and 
the webs�te �s www.co.cal.md.us.

Calvert County occup�es ��� square m�les, has ��� m�les of shorel�ne, and serves a 
populat�on of about �0,000.  It �s the smallest county �n Southern Maryland.  Desp�te recent 
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growth, Calvert County reta�ns �ts rural character and agrar�an roots, offer�ng good schools, 
a clean env�ronment and good qual�ty of l�fe. Calvert �s a pen�nsula, bounded by the 
Chesapeake Bay on the east and the Patuxent R�ver on the west. Steep cl�ffs and woods 
predom�nate on the bay s�de, wh�le along the Patuxent, roll�ng f�elds sl�p gently down to the 
r�ver. The County’s many creeks prov�de refuge for w�ldl�fe, as well as scen�c areas for 
boat�ng and f�sh�ng.

Pr�nce Freder�ck, the County seat, �s located �� m�les southeast of Wash�ngton, D.C. and �� 
m�les south of Balt�more. There are two �ncorporated towns �n Calvert County: North Beach 
and Chesapeake Beach, located on the bay at the northeast corner of the county. In add�t�on, 
the Comprehens�ve Plan �dent�f�es seven "town centers." These �nclude (from north to south) 
Dunk�rk, Ow�ngs, Hunt�ngtown, Pr�nce Freder�ck, St. Leonard, Lusby, and Solomons. 

The County prov�des a full range of mun�c�pal serv�ces, �nclud�ng: publ�c safety, 
construct�on and ma�ntenance of h�ghways and streets, san�tat�on, health and soc�al serv�ces, 
culture/recreat�on, educat�on, publ�c �mprovements, plann�ng and zon�ng, and general 
adm�n�strat�ve serv�ces.  The County �s also f�nanc�ally accountable for legally separate 
ent�t�es wh�ch are reported separately w�th�n the County’s f�nanc�al statements.  The ent�t�es 
that meet these cr�ter�a are the Calvert County Board of Educat�on and the Econom�c 
Development Author�ty of Calvert County.  Add�t�onal �nformat�on on the component un�ts 
can be found �n Note �.

Calvert County’s annual operat�ng and cap�tal budget represents a comprehens�ve f�nanc�al 
plan for the County effect�ve each year on the f�rst day of July.  Each County department, 
agency, or board rece�v�ng county funds subm�ts a budget request to the Comm�ss�oners at a 
publ�c hear�ng, v�a the Department of F�nance and Budget.  Add�t�onal publ�c hear�ngs are 
conducted to obta�n taxpayer comments.  On or before July � of each year, the budget �s 
legally enacted through passage of a resolut�on.  No expend�ture of county funds may be 
made �n excess of appropr�at�on at the fund level.  A Summary Schedule of Revenues, 
Expend�tures, and Other F�nanc�ng Sources and Uses - Budget and Actual (budgetary bas�s) 
can be found on page �� of th�s report.  The cap�tal projects fund budget �s prepared on a 
project length bas�s and, accord�ngly, annual budgetary compar�sons are not presented �n the 
bas�c f�nanc�al statements and supplemental �nformat�on. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Local economy:  Conservat�ve f�scal management has allowed the County to ma�nta�n a 
sound f�nanc�al pos�t�on.  Property taxes and �ncome taxes prov�de the major�ty (�0 percent, 
budgetary bas�s, �n f�scal year �0��) of the revenue for the General Fund of the Calvert 
County Government.  Property taxes cont�nued to show growth �n f�scal year �0��, but that 
growth w�ll come to an end �n f�scal year �0��.  Income tax revenue decl�ned on a year over 
year bas�s �n f�scal year �00� and aga�n �n f�scal year �0�0.  In, f�scal year �0��, a new 
record level of �ncome tax was real�zed.  FY �0�� �s expected to cont�nue at th�s �ncreased 
level.   

Property tax, the largest revenue source, represented �� percent of the total General Fund 
revenue for f�scal year �0��. Property assessments have �ncreased over the ten (f�scal) year 
per�od, �00� to �0�0, by ��� percent.  Property tax revenue �ncreased dur�ng that same t�me 
by �0� percent.  Property tax revenues are d�rectly affected by the market value of homes 
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and the number of new hous�ng starts.  The market value of owner occup�ed homes �n the 
County had been r�s�ng stead�ly over several years, unt�l f�scal year �00�.  Along w�th the 
rest of the Country, Calvert County’s property values have decreased.  Th�s decrease �n 
value w�ll lower the real property tax revenue �n f�scal year �0��. The number of res�dent�al 
bu�ld�ng perm�ts �ssued �n f�scal year �0�� was ��0, a decrease of � percent or �� perm�ts 
from the pr�or f�scal year.   

Income tax revenue, at �� percent of the total General Fund revenue for f�scal year �0��, �s 
d�rectly affected by personal �ncome levels, employment levels, and populat�on growth.  The 
med�an household �ncome for Calvert County �n �00� was $�0,���, one of the h�ghest levels 
�n the nat�on for a county of our s�ze.  Income tax revenues were surpr�s�ngly strong �n FY 
�0�� and based on project�ons by the State of Maryland, moderate �ncreases are expected to 
cont�nue.

Long-term financial planning:  Calvert County annually adopts a Cap�tal Budget and a 
Cap�tal Improvement Program that �s des�gned to plan for expend�tures and comm�tments 
for the current f�scal year as well as the subsequent f�ve f�scal years.  There �s also a four 
year f�nanc�al forecast prepared of general fund revenues and expenses.  These are the 
County’s pr�mary f�nanc�al management plann�ng tools.   

The f�scal year �0�� budget reflected educat�on, roads, and publ�c fac�l�t�es as the cont�nued 
top pr�or�t�es of the County’s adm�n�strat�on.  W�th�n the Cap�tal Improvements Program 
Budget for F�scal Year �0��, �� percent was ded�cated to new school construct�on, 
add�t�ons, renovat�ons, and the ma�ntenance of ex�st�ng fac�l�t�es.  Most of th�s allocat�on �s 
for the replacement of Calvert H�gh school.

The County cont�nues �ts pol�cy of ma�nta�n�ng a reserve of � percent of current budgeted 
General Fund expend�tures to protect �ts h�gh cred�t rat�ngs. The County ma�nta�ns 
add�t�onal reserve funds as a means to handle potent�al revenue shortfalls, to fund one-t�me 
non-recurr�ng expend�tures, or �n the event of emergency or unplanned expend�tures.  In 
add�t�on, the County has ass�gned a port�on of fund balances for future other post 
employment benef�ts and accrued leave.  The County has exper�enced regular cred�t rat�ng 
upgrades �n recent years.  The latest rat�ngs, rece�ved �n f�scal year �0��, were Aa� from 
Moody’s Investors Serv�ce, Inc., AAA from Standard & Poor’s (upgraded from �0�0’s AA+ 
rat�ng), and AAA from F�tch Rat�ngs.

In ���0, the County adopted a debt affordab�l�ty model to ensure that the debt levels are kept 
at an affordable, manageable, moderate level.  A debt pol�cy was adopted �n FY �00� to 
comply w�th the State of Maryland’s new requ�rement.  The gu�del�nes created �n ���0 and 
rat�f�ed �n th�s pol�cy, establ�sh max�mum acceptable debt rat�os. These rat�os and the�r 
max�mum acceptable levels are: �) debt to assessed value, �.� percent, �) debt serv�ce as a 
percent of general fund revenue, �.� percent, and �) debt per cap�ta $�,�00. Us�ng f�scal year 
�0�� data, the County’s current rat�os are as follows: debt to assessed value �s .�� percent, 
debt serv�ce to general fund revenue �s �.0 percent, and debt per cap�ta �s $�,�0�.  The per 
cap�ta amount has been exceeded.  Th�s �s partly the result of the recent change �n populat�on 
est�mates as a result of the �0�0 census.  Th�s overage w�ll be addressed �n the near term.
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government F�nance Off�cers Assoc�at�on of the Un�ted States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Cert�f�cate of Ach�evement for Excellence �n F�nanc�al Report�ng to Calvert 
County Government for �ts comprehens�ve annual f�nanc�al report for the f�scal year ended 
June �0, �0�0.  In order to be awarded a Cert�f�cate of Ach�evement, a government must 
publ�sh an eas�ly readable and eff�c�ently organ�zed comprehens�ve annual f�nanc�al report. 
Th�s report must sat�sfy both generally accepted account�ng pr�nc�ples and appl�cable legal 
requ�rements. 

A Cert�f�cate of Ach�evement �s val�d for a per�od of one year only. We bel�eve that our 
current comprehens�ve annual f�nanc�al report cont�nues to meet the Cert�f�cate of 
Ach�evement Program’s requ�rements and we are subm�tt�ng �t to the GFOA to determ�ne �ts 
el�g�b�l�ty for another cert�f�cate. 

The County also rece�ved the GFOA Award for D�st�ngu�shed Budget Presentat�on for �ts 
annual appropr�ated budget dated July �, �0�0 to June �0, �0��.  In order to qual�fy for th�s 
D�st�ngu�shed Budget Award, the County must publ�sh a budget document that meets 
program cr�ter�a as a pol�cy document, operat�ons gu�de, f�nanc�al plan, and commun�cat�ons 
med�um.  We bel�eve our current budget cont�nues to conform to program requ�rements and 
have subm�tted �t to the GFOA to determ�ne �ts el�g�b�l�ty for another award.  

The preparat�on of the comprehens�ve annual f�nanc�al report was made poss�ble by the 
ded�cated serv�ce of the ent�re staff of the F�nance and Budget Department.  Each member of 
the department has my s�ncere apprec�at�on for the contr�but�ons made �n the preparat�on of 
th�s report and accurately record�ng the day to day transact�ons that make up the report. 

I would also l�ke to thank the County Comm�ss�oners and the County Adm�n�strator for the�r 
leadersh�p and support �n plann�ng and conduct�ng the f�nanc�al operat�ons of the County �n 
a respons�ble manner. 

       Respectfully subm�tted, 

                      

T�m Hayden, CPA, CMA 
D�rector, F�nance and Budget 
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V�ce Pres�dent, Board of County Comm�ss�oners 
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Comm�ss�oner 
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Comm�ss�oner 

Steven R. Weems 
Comm�ss�oner 

Novalea Tracy-Soper 
Treasurer

___________________________
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Terry L. Shannon 
County Adm�n�strator 

T�mothy Hayden 
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Charles R. Johnston 
D�rector of Plann�ng and Zon�ng 

L�nda Vassallo 
D�rector of Econom�c Development 

Terry P. Carlson, P.E. 
D�rector of Publ�c Works 

Jacquel�ne K. Vaughan 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Prince Frederick, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component 
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County 
Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2011, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the County 
Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland’s management.  Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Calvert County Board of Education, which represent 38 
percent, 50 percent and 48 percent, respectively of the assets, net assets and revenues 
of the total reporting entity.  Those financial statements were audited by other auditors 
whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to 
the amounts included for the Calvert County Board of Education, is based on the report 
of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and 
the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

 In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
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aggregate remaining fund information of the County Commissioners of Calvert County, 
Maryland, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position, and 
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our 
report dated December 9, 2011, on our consideration of the County Commissioners of 
Calvert County, Maryland’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of 
our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
that the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and 
historical pension and other post employment benefit schedules on pages 4 through 15 
and 68 through 72 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We and the other auditors have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the County Commissioners of Calvert County, 
Maryland’s financial statements as a whole.  The introductory section, combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules listed 
in the table of contents under other supplemental information are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of 
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other 
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auditors, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.  The introductory and statistical sections have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them. 

Clinton, Maryland 
December 9, 2011 
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Th�s sect�on of the Annual F�nanc�al Report of Calvert County, Maryland presents a narrat�ve 
overv�ew and analys�s of the f�nanc�al act�v�t�es of Calvert County Government for the f�scal 
year ended June �0, �0��.  We encourage readers to use the �nformat�on presented here �n 
conjunct�on w�th the accompany�ng bas�c f�nanc�al statements and the accompany�ng notes to 
those f�nanc�al statements. 

Financial Highlights 

Government-w�de:

The assets of Calvert County Government exceeded �ts l�ab�l�t�es at the close of the most 
recent f�scal year by $�0� m�ll�on (net assets).  �� percent of th�s amount �s attr�butable to 
the bus�ness-type act�v�t�es that �nclude the Water and Sewer Fund, the Sol�d Waste and 
Recycl�ng Fund, the Calvert Mar�ne Museum and the Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course.  Of 
total net assets, $�� m�ll�on (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet ongo�ng 
obl�gat�ons to c�t�zens and cred�tors ($��.� m�ll�on of th�s amount �s related to 
governmental act�v�t�es and $0.� m�ll�on �s attr�butable to the bus�ness-type act�v�t�es), 
$��.� m�ll�on �s restr�cted for spec�f�c purposes (restricted net assets), and $���.� m�ll�on 
�s �nvested �n cap�tal assets, net of related debt.  Included as restr�cted cash �s $�� m�ll�on 
of wh�ch $��.� m�ll�on represents bond proceeds.  

The government’s total net assets have �ncreased by $��.� m�ll�on; a $��.� m�ll�on 
�ncrease was related to the governmental act�v�t�es and a decrease of $0.� m�ll�on was 
related to the bus�ness-type act�v�t�es.     

Fund Level:

In accordance w�th Governmental Account�ng Standards Board Statement No. ��, 
effect�ve for the year ended June �0, �0��, new fund balance categor�es were establ�shed 
for f�nanc�al report�ng purposes of all governmental funds. These new categor�es, 
nonspendable, restr�cted, comm�tted, ass�gned, and unass�gned, were establ�shed to 
enhance fund balance presentat�on and �mprove the usefulness of fund balance 
�nformat�on. 

As of June �0, �0��, the County’s governmental funds reported comb�ned fund balances 
of $���.� m�ll�on, an �ncrease of $��.� m�ll�on from the pr�or year.  Approx�mately �� 
percent of th�s total amount, $�0�.� m�ll�on �s ava�lable to meet the County’s current and 
future needs (committed, assigned and unassigned).  Of th�s total, $��.� m�ll�on (pr�or 
year, $��.� m�ll�on) has been ded�cated for certa�n purposes, �nclud�ng, $��.� m�ll�on for 
approved cap�tal projects, $�.� m�ll�on for employee leave obl�gat�ons payouts, $�.� 
m�ll�on for purposes w�th�n spec�al revenue funds and $�.� m�ll�on for other post 
employment benef�ts (GASB 45).

The propr�etary funds operat�ng revenue �ncreased by $���,��0 or �.0 percent.
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At the close of the current f�scal year, the ava�lable fund balance for the General Fund 
was $��.� m�ll�on (committed, assigned and unassigned), or ��.� percent of total f�scal 
year �0�� General Fund budgetary expend�tures and other f�nanc�ng uses.  Nonspendable 
and restr�cted fund balance of the General Fund was $�.� m�ll�on, or ��.� percent of fund 
balance.

Calvert County Government �ssued new general obl�gat�on bonds of $�� m�ll�on dur�ng 
f�scal year �0��.  The purpose of th�s debt was to f�nance several major cap�tal projects 
�nclud�ng Calvert H�gh School, the Substance Abuse Center, College of Southern 
Maryland and sol�d waste and water and sewer projects.

Overview of the Financial Statements 

Th�s d�scuss�on and analys�s �s �ntended to serve as an �ntroduct�on to Calvert County 
Government’s bas�c f�nanc�al statements.  Calvert County Government’s bas�c f�nanc�al 
statements are compr�sed of three components: �) government-w�de f�nanc�al statements, �) fund 
f�nanc�al statements, and �) notes to the f�nanc�al statements. Th�s report also conta�ns other 
requ�red and non-requ�red supplementary �nformat�on �n add�t�on to the bas�c f�nanc�al 
statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements:  The government-wide financial statements are 
des�gned to prov�de readers w�th a broad overv�ew of Calvert County Government’s f�nances, �n 
a manner comparable to a pr�vate-sector bus�ness. The government-w�de f�nanc�al statements can 
be found on pages �� to �� of th�s report.  These statements are descr�bed next: 

The statement of net assets presents �nformat�on on all of Calvert County Government’s 
assets and l�ab�l�t�es, w�th the d�fference between the two reported as net assets. Over 
t�me, �ncreases or decreases �n net assets may serve as a useful �nd�cator of whether the 
f�nanc�al pos�t�on and cond�t�on of Calvert County Government �s �mprov�ng or 
deter�orat�ng. 

The statement of activities presents �nformat�on show�ng how the government’s net assets 
changed dur�ng the most recent f�scal year.  All changes �n net assets are reported as soon 
as the underly�ng event g�v�ng r�se to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported �n th�s statement for some 
�tems that w�ll only result �n cash flows �n future f�scal per�ods (e.g., uncollected taxes 
and earned but unused vacat�on leave). 

Both of the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements d�st�ngu�sh funct�ons of Calvert County 
Government that are pr�nc�pally supported by taxes and �ntergovernmental revenues 
(governmental activities) from other funct�ons that are �ntended to recover all or a s�gn�f�cant 
port�on of the�r costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental 
act�v�t�es of Calvert County Government �nclude: general government, publ�c safety, publ�c 
works, health and hosp�tals, soc�al serv�ces, educat�on, recreat�on and culture, conservat�on of 
natural resources, urban development and hous�ng, econom�c development, and debt serv�ce.  
The bus�ness-type act�v�t�es of Calvert County Government �nclude: water and sewer, sol�d 
waste & recycl�ng, Calvert Mar�ne museum operat�ons and the Chesapeake H�lls golf course. 
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The government-w�de f�nanc�al statements �nclude not only Calvert County Government �tself 
(known as the primary government), but also legally separate component un�ts. Calvert County 
Government has the follow�ng component un�ts: Calvert County Board of Educat�on and 
Econom�c Development Author�ty. F�nanc�al �nformat�on for these component units �s reported 
separately from the f�nanc�al �nformat�on presented for the pr�mary government �tself.   

Fund financial statements: A fund �s a group�ng of related accounts that �s used to ma�nta�n 
control over resources that have been segregated for spec�f�c act�v�t�es or object�ves.  Calvert 
County Government, l�ke other state and local governments, uses fund account�ng to ensure and 
demonstrate compl�ance w�th f�nance-related legal requ�rements.  All of the funds of Calvert 
County Government can be d�v�ded �nto three categor�es: governmental funds, propr�etary funds, 
and f�duc�ary funds. 

Governmental funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for essent�ally the same 
funct�ons reported as governmental activities �n the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements.  
However, unl�ke the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements, governmental fund f�nanc�al 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources ava�lable at the end of the f�scal year.  Such �nformat�on may be 
useful �n evaluat�ng a government’s near-term f�nanc�ng requ�rements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds �s narrower than that of the government-w�de f�nanc�al 
statements, �t �s useful to compare the �nformat�on presented for governmental funds w�th s�m�lar 
�nformat�on presented for governmental activities �n the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements.  
By do�ng so, readers may better understand the long-term �mpact of the government’s near-term 
f�nanc�ng dec�s�ons.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expend�tures, and changes �n fund balances prov�de a reconc�l�at�on to 
fac�l�tate th�s compar�son between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Calvert County Government ma�nta�ns �� �nd�v�dual governmental funds: the General, Plann�ng 
and Zon�ng, Board of L�brary Trustees, Parks and Recreat�on, Bar L�brary, Econom�c 
Development Author�ty Revolv�ng Loan, Revolv�ng Loan, Calvert County Fam�ly Network, 
Exc�se Tax, Econom�c Development Incent�ve, Grants, Land Preservat�on, and Cap�tal Projects 
funds.  Informat�on �s presented separately �n the governmental fund balance sheet and �n the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expend�tures, and changes �n fund balances for the 
general and cap�tal projects funds w�th a summary of the other funds, referred to as nonmajor 
governmental funds.  

Calvert County Government adopts an annual appropr�ated budget for �ts General Fund.  To 
demonstrate compl�ance w�th th�s budget, a budgetary compar�son statement has been prov�ded 
for the General Fund, the County’s pr�mary fund. The summary schedule on a budgetary bas�s 
for the General Fund can be found �n the Required Supplementary Information sect�on on page 
�� of th�s report. 

Proprietary funds:   Propr�etary funds, also known as enterpr�se funds, are used to report the 
same funct�ons presented as business-type activities �n the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements.   
Calvert County Government uses enterpr�se funds to account for �ts water and sewer, sol�d waste 
and recycl�ng, Calvert Mar�ne Museum and Chesapeake H�lls golf course act�v�t�es. Note that the 
Calvert Mar�ne Museum and Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course are comb�ned �n the column 
“Nonmajor Propr�etary Funds” �n the bas�c propr�etary fund f�nanc�al statements found on pages 
�� to �� of th�s report.
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Fiduciary funds:  F�duc�ary funds are used to account for resources held for the benef�t of 
part�es outs�de the government.  F�duc�ary funds are not reflected �n the government-w�de 
f�nanc�al statement because the resources of those funds are not ava�lable to support Calvert 
County Government’s own programs.  The account�ng used for f�duc�ary funds �s much l�ke that 
used for propr�etary funds.  The bas�c f�duc�ary fund f�nanc�al statements can be found on pages 
�� and �� of th�s report. 

Notes to the financial statements:  The notes prov�de add�t�onal �nformat�on that �s essent�al to 
a full understand�ng of the data prov�ded �n the government-w�de and fund f�nanc�al statements.  
The notes to the f�nanc�al statements are part of the bas�c f�nanc�al statements and can be found 
on pages �� to �� of th�s report. 

Other information:  In add�t�on to the bas�c f�nanc�al statements and accompany�ng notes, th�s 
report also presents certa�n required supplementary information, other supplementary 
information, and a statistical section concern�ng Calvert County Government.  Other 
supplementary �nformat�on can be found beg�nn�ng on page �� of th�s report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Th�s �s the tenth report�ng per�od that the Governmental Account�ng Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. �� has been appl�ed �n the preparat�on of the f�nanc�al statements of Calvert 
County Government.  

As noted earl�er, net assets may serve over t�me as a useful �nd�cator of a government’s overall 
f�nanc�al cond�t�on and pos�t�on.  In f�scal year �0�� assets exceeded l�ab�l�t�es by $�0� m�ll�on 
(pr�or year, $���.� m�ll�on).   

As shown �n the chart below t�tled “Calvert County Government’s Changes �n Net Assets” 
Calvert County Government’s net assets are d�v�ded �nto three categor�es: 

�nvested �n cap�tal assets, net of related debt;  
o �� percent of total net assets (�� percent, pr�or year) 

restr�cted net assets; 
o � percent of total net assets (� percent, pr�or year)

unrestr�cted net assets 
o �� percent of total net assets (�� percent, pr�or year) 

Investment �n cap�tal assets net of deprec�at�on �ncludes the County’s purchases of land and 
easements, bu�ld�ngs, mach�nery, equ�pment, �nfrastructure and �mprovements, less any un-
matured debt used to acqu�re those assets.  The County uses these cap�tal assets to prov�de 
serv�ces to c�t�zens.  Restr�cted net assets are resources that are subject to external restr�ct�ons on 
how they may be used.  Unrestr�cted net assets may be used to meet the government’s ongo�ng 
obl�gat�ons to c�t�zens and cred�tors.
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The follow�ng table �nd�cates the changes �n net assets for governmental and bus�ness-type 
act�v�t�es:  

2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference

Current and other assets ��0,���,00�$     ���,���,���$     �0,���,���$       �,0��,���$         �,���,���$         �,��0,���$         ���,���,���$     ���,���,���$     ��,���,0�0$       
Cap�tal assets ��0,���,���       ���,���,���       (�,���,���)          ��,���,���         ��,���,���         ���,���              ���,���,���       ���,�0�,���       (���,���)             

Total Assets ��0,���,���$     ��0,���,���$     ��,���,���         ��,���,���         ��,���,���         �,���,���           ���,0��,���       �0�,���,���       ��,���,�0�         

Long-term l�ab�l�t�es ���,�0�,���$     ���,���,���$     �,���,���$         ��,�0�,���$       ��,���,���$       �,���,���$         ���,���,���$     ���,���,���$     �,���,000$         
Other l�ab�l�t�es �0,���,���         ��,���,���         �,���,0��           �,���,���           �,0��,��0           (���,���)             ��,���,0��         ��,���,���         �,���,�0�           

Total L�ab�l�t�es �00,�0�,���$     ���,�0�,���$     �,�00,���           ��,���,���         ��,���,�0�         �,���,���           ���,0��,���       �0�,��0,0��       �,���,�0�           

Net Assets:
Invested �n cap�tal assets,
  Net of related debt* �0�,���,���$     ��0,���,���$     (�0�,���)$           ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       ���,�0�$            ���,���,���$     ���,���,���$     (��0,���)$           
Restr�cted ��,���,���         ��,���,���         �,���,���           �,���,���           �,���,���           (��,���)               ��,���,���         ��,���,���         �,���,���           
Unrestr�cted ��,���,0��         ��,���,���         �,���,���           ���,���              �,���,���           (���,0��)             ��,0��,���         ��,���,���         �,���,���           

Total Net Assets ��0,���,���$     ���,�0�,���$     ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       (���,���)$           �0�,00�,���$     ���,���,�0�$     ��,���,�0�$       

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Calvert County's Government's Change in Net Assets

Governmental activities:  Net assets of the Governmental act�v�t�es �ncreased by $��,���,��� 
(pr�or year, a decrease of $��,���,���).    The most notable component of th�s d�fference �s the 
$�.� m�ll�on �ncrease related to a change �n the State of Maryland’s est�mate of Calvert County’s 
share of unallocated �ncome tax. The pos�t�ve f�nanc�al results of FY�0�� are also reflected �n 
th�s amount. 

Business-type activities:  Bus�ness-type act�v�t�es decreased Calvert County Government’s net 
assets by $0.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, a decrease of $0.� m�ll�on). Th�s decrease �s the result of the 
Water and Sewer Fund, Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course and Calvert Mar�ne Museum’s net assets 
decreas�ng part�ally offset by the pos�t�ve results of the Sol�d Waste fund. 

The Board of County Comm�ss�oners began a seven year water and sewer rate plan �n January 
�00� to phase-�n rate adjustments so that revenues w�ll eventually cover the costs of operat�ons.  
Unt�l such t�me that the rates have been fully adjusted, the County plans to use reserves to fund 
the def�c�t for the Water and Sewer Fund. At the end of f�scal year �0��, the long term part of 
these advances total $�.� m�ll�on. Th�s def�c�t �s ant�c�pated to be �n excess of $�.� m�ll�on at the 
end of the phase-�n per�od. The Board of County Comm�ss�oners w�ll determ�ne the payback 
method of th�s amount when the phase-�n �s complete.  

The Sol�d Waste and Recycl�ng Fund had an �ncrease �n net assets of $���,���, expla�ned by 
pos�t�ve operat�ng results.  Lowered revenues due to the econom�cally sens�t�ve waste stream 
were offset by strong cost controls.  The Calvert Mar�ne Museum had a decrease of $���,��� �n 
net assets.  The Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course decreased $���,��� to net assets.  F�scal year 
�0�� was the second year that the County’s Parks and Recreat�on d�v�s�on managed the golf 
course.  Although post�ng an accrual account�ng bas�s loss of $���,���, on a cash bas�s (w�th the 
most s�gn�f�cant adjustment be�ng deprec�at�on) the golf course came out sl�ghtly ahead.   

The chart on the follow�ng page reflects the revenues and program expenses for the 
governmental and the bus�ness-type act�v�t�es and the changes �n net assets for the year ended 
June_�0:
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The two most s�gn�f�cant d�fferences �n the revenue sect�on are related to property and �ncome 
tax.  The $��.� m�ll�on pos�t�ve d�fference �n the governmental act�v�t�es’ property tax �s almost 
fully attr�butable to the �nfrastructure expans�on at one of our major publ�c ut�l�t�es.  The Income 
tax �ncrease of $��.� m�ll�on �s more d�ff�cult to understand.  After two years of decl�n�ng 
�ncome tax revenue, FY�0�� surpr�sed to the ups�de, sett�ng a new record level.  The State’s 
change �n est�mate of the County’s share of unallocated �ncome tax added about $� m�ll�on to 
th�s d�fference.

The major�ty of the d�fferences noted �n the expense sect�on are related to class�fy�ng by funct�on 
completed cap�tal assets.  The �ncrease �n the General Government funct�on �s mostly the result 
of the cap�tal asset allocat�ons made �n FY�0�0 lower�ng those funct�onal expenses. The 
s�gn�f�cant decrease noted �n the Publ�c Works funct�on �s �n part the result of reclass�fy�ng the 
fund expend�tures to the cap�tal asset related to the newly cap�tal�zed Pr�nce Freder�ck Loop 
Road.  For s�m�lar reasons, much of the Board of Educat�on’s $�.� m�ll�on negat�ve d�fference �s 
the result of the construct�on �n progress for the renovat�ons of Calvert H�gh School.

The next two charts use data from the Statement of Act�v�t�es that matches governmental 
program revenues and expenses by funct�on.  The Board of Educat�on �s not �ncluded because at 
�� percent of the total program expenses the chart becomes mean�ngless for compar�son 
purposes:
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Charges for
services
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and contributions
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Capital grants and
contributions

1%

Property taxes
60%
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28%

Other taxes
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Investment
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<1%
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Th�s chart uses the Statement of Act�v�t�es data to d�splay a compar�son of the bus�ness-type 
act�v�t�es program revenue and expenses: 
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Th�s chart uses the revenues from the Statement of Act�v�t�es to d�splay a compar�son of the 
bus�ness–type act�v�t�es revenues by source: 

Charges for
services
84%

Operatinggrants
and contributions

2%

Capital grants and
contributions

1%

Interest and
dividends

<1%
Transfers

13%

Revenuesby Source
Business Type Activities

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 

As noted earl�er, Calvert County Government uses fund account�ng to ensure and demonstrate 
compl�ance w�th f�nance-related legal requ�rements. 

Governmental funds:  The focus of Calvert County Government’s governmental funds �s to 
prov�de �nformat�on on near-term �nflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such 
�nformat�on �s useful �n assess�ng Calvert County Government’s f�nanc�ng requ�rements. In 
part�cular, committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources ava�lable for spend�ng at the end of the f�scal year.

As reported on the balance sheet of the governmental funds, the total governmental funds 
comb�ned fund balance �s $���.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $���.0 m�ll�on), an �ncrease of $��.� 
m�ll�on (pr�or year, decrease of $��.� m�ll�on).  Th�s �ncrease can be expla�ned by the pos�t�ve 
results of the general fund for FY�0�� and add�t�onal borrow�ng act�v�t�es �n the cap�tal project 
fund.  A s�gn�f�cant pos�t�ve var�ance �n �ncome tax and expenses com�ng �n below budget 
created the major�ty of the �ncrease �n fund balance for the general fund.

Approx�mately �� percent (pr�or year, �� percent) of th�s amount, $�0�.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, 
$�0.� m�ll�on) const�tutes committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance, wh�ch �s ava�lable 
for spend�ng at the government’s d�scret�on.  It should be noted that $��.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, 
$��.� m�ll�on) of th�s amount has been committed or assigned for certa�n purposes. The 
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rema�nder of fund balance, $��.� m�ll�on or ��.� percent, �s nonspendable and restricted to 
�nd�cate that �t �s not ava�lable for new spend�ng because �t has already been ded�cated: �) to 
l�qu�date contracts and purchase orders of the pr�or per�od, �) for �nventor�es, or �) ded�cated for 
a var�ety of constra�ned purposes.  Add�t�onal deta�ls of fund balance are presented �n Note � 
w�th�n the notes sect�on of these f�nanc�al statements. 

The General Fund �s the ch�ef operat�ng fund of Calvert County Government.  At the end of the 
current f�scal year, the ass�gned and unass�gned fund balance of the General Fund was $��.0 
m�ll�on (pr�or year, $��.� m�ll�on), wh�le total fund balance was $��.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $��.� 
m�ll�on).  As a measure of the General Fund’s l�qu�d�ty, �t may be useful to compare both 
ass�gned and unass�gned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expend�tures.  
Ass�gned and unass�gned fund balance represents ��.� percent of the total General Fund 
budgetary expend�tures and other f�nanc�ng uses (pr�or year, ��.� percent), wh�le total fund 
balance represents ��.� percent (pr�or year, ��.� percent) of that same amount. 

The fund balance of Calvert County Government’s General Fund �ncreased by $�.� m�ll�on 
(pr�or year decrease of $�.� m�ll�on). Th�s �ncrease �s mostly due to a $�.� m�ll�on favorable 
var�ance �n �ncome tax revenue.  Some add�t�onal contr�butors to the var�ance �nclude a $�.0 
m�ll�on refund of prem�um from our self �nsured health plan for better than expected results, a 
$0.� m�ll�on re�mbursement from the Federal Emergency Management Agency for FY�0�0 snow 
storm expenses, and the f�rst year of a s�gn�f�cant �ncrease ($� m�ll�on) �n a publ�c ut�l�ty’s tax 
b�ll that was sl�ghtly under budgeted.  These �tems, along w�th the many other revenue and 
expense l�ne �tem var�ances of resulted �n the County’s budgetary ga�n of $�,��0,���.

The Cap�tal Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $��.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $��.� m�ll�on) of 
wh�ch the ent�re balance �s ass�gned for future cap�tal project expend�tures.  Unspent bond 
proceeds of $��.� m�ll�on make up ��.� percent of the total ass�gned fund balance (pr�or year, 
$��.� m�ll�on, ��.� percent).    

Proprietary funds:  Calvert County Government’s propr�etary fund statements prov�de the same 
type of �nformat�on found �n the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements, but �n more deta�l.  
Overall the net assets of the propr�etary funds decreased $0.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, decrease of $.� 
m�ll�on).  At the end of the year, unrestr�cted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund amounted 
to negat�ve $�.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, negat�ve $�.� m�ll�on).  The Sol�d Waste and Recycl�ng 
Fund reported $�.� m�ll�on �n unrestr�cted net assets (pr�or year, $�.� m�ll�on). The Calvert 
Mar�ne Museum ended the year w�th $�.� m�ll�on of total net assets (pr�or year, $� m�ll�on) and 
the Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course ended the year w�th $�.� m�ll�on of total net assets (pr�or year, 
$�.� m�ll�on).   

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The f�nal budget for the General Fund was �ncreased by $�,���,��� over the or�g�nal budget 
(pr�or year, $�,0��,��� �ncrease).  The major�ty of the budget adjustment was related to �ncome 
tax revenue. Overall expend�tures were less than the f�nal budget by $�.� m�ll�on for several 
reasons that �nclude budgeted debt serv�ce payments that were not requ�red and sav�ngs �n 
�nsurance and pens�on l�ne �tems.  The f�rst pr�nc�pal payments on our �0�0 ser�es debt were due 
on 0�/0�/��.  That f�rst payment �s normally due �n the next f�scal year. Revenues were $�.� 
m�ll�on more than the f�nal budgetary est�mates mostly due to �ncome tax revenue.  
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets:  Calvert County Government’s �nvestment �n cap�tal assets for �ts governmental 
and bus�ness-type act�v�t�es as of June �0, �0��, amounts to $���.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $���.� 
m�ll�on), net of accumulated deprec�at�on.  Th�s �nvestment �n cap�tal assets �ncludes: land, 
construct�on �n progress, bu�ld�ngs, �mprovements, mach�nery and equ�pment, and �nfrastructure 
and land development r�ghts.   

2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference

Land �0,���,���$       �0,���,���$       �,�00$                �,���,�0�$         �,���,�0�$         -$                        ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       �,�00$                
Land development r�ghts ��,���,�0�         �0,���,�0�         ���,�00              -                      -                      -                          ��,���,�0�         �0,���,�0�         ���,�00              
Construct�on �n progress �,���,���           �,���,���           (�,���,���)          �,���,���           ���,���              �,���,���           �,���,���           �,���,���           (�,���,���)          
Bu�ld�ngs ��,���,���         ��,0��,���         (�,0��,���)          ��,���,���         ��,���,���         (�,���,���)          ��,�0�,���         ��,���,���         (�,0�0,���)          
Improvements ��,���,0��         ��,���,�0�         �,0��,���           �,���,���           �,���,���           (�0�,���)             ��,��0,���         ��,���,���         ���,���              
Mach�nery and equ�pment ��,���,���         ��,���,���         (�,���,���)          �,���,�0�           �,���,0��           ��,���                ��,���,���         �0,���,���         (�,���,�0�)          
Infrastructure ��,�0�,0��         ��,0��,���         �,�0�,���           -                          -                          -                          ��,�0�,0��         ��,0��,���         �,�0�,���           

Total Cap�tal Assets ��0,���,���$     ���,���,���$     (�,���,���)$        ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       ���,���$            ���,���,���$     ���,�0�,���$     (���,���)$           

Calvert County's Government's Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

(Net of Depreciation)

  Major cap�tal asset events dur�ng the current f�scal year �ncluded the follow�ng: 
Completed the renovat�ons to the Work Release Fac�l�ty w�th a cost of $�.�� m�ll�on.  
Completed construct�on of Solomons Town Center Park w�th a total cap�tal�zed cost of 
$�.� m�ll�on. 
Completed work on part of the Pr�nce Freder�ck Loop Road w�th a cost of $� m�ll�on. 
Completed the Bus Wash for transportat�on for a cap�tal�zed cost of $��� thousand. 

Add�t�onal �nformat�on on Calvert County’s cap�tal assets can be found �n Note � of th�s report.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current f�scal year, Calvert County Government had total 
general obl�gat�on debt and notes payable outstand�ng of $���.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $���.� 
m�ll�on).  The full fa�th and cred�t and unl�m�ted tax�ng power of the County are �rrevocably 
pledged to levy and collect taxes �n order to prov�de for the payment of pr�nc�pal and �nterest due 
on the debt.  Of th�s amount, $��.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $��.� m�ll�on) are cons�dered self-
support�ng bonds, funded through var�ous surcharges and assessments related to the operat�on of 
the water and sewerage and sol�d waste and recycl�ng systems of the County.  W�th�n the 
governmental act�v�t�es are the $�0.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $�0.� m�ll�on) �n �nstallment purchase 
agreements for the land preservat�on program.  The pr�nc�pal amount �s supported by US 
Treasury Str�p secur�t�es.  

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets:  Calvert County Government’s �nvestment �n cap�tal assets for �ts governmental 
and bus�ness-type act�v�t�es as of June �0, �0��, amounts to $���.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $���.� 
m�ll�on), net of accumulated deprec�at�on.  Th�s �nvestment �n cap�tal assets �ncludes: land, 
construct�on �n progress, bu�ld�ngs, �mprovements, mach�nery and equ�pment, and �nfrastructure 
and land development r�ghts.   

2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference

Land �0,���,���$       �0,���,���$       �,�00$                �,���,�0�$         �,���,�0�$         -$                        ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       �,�00$                
Land development r�ghts ��,���,�0�         �0,���,�0�         ���,�00              -                      -                      -                          ��,���,�0�         �0,���,�0�         ���,�00              
Construct�on �n progress �,���,���           �,���,���           (�,���,���)          �,���,���           ���,���              �,���,���           �,���,���           �,���,���           (�,���,���)          
Bu�ld�ngs ��,���,���         ��,0��,���         (�,0��,���)          ��,���,���         ��,���,���         (�,���,���)          ��,�0�,���         ��,���,���         (�,0�0,���)          
Improvements ��,���,0��         ��,���,�0�         �,0��,���           �,���,���           �,���,���           (�0�,���)             ��,��0,���         ��,���,���         ���,���              
Mach�nery and equ�pment ��,���,���         ��,���,���         (�,���,���)          �,���,�0�           �,���,0��           ��,���                ��,���,���         �0,���,���         (�,���,�0�)          
Infrastructure ��,�0�,0��         ��,0��,���         �,�0�,���           -                          -                          -                          ��,�0�,0��         ��,0��,���         �,�0�,���           

Total Cap�tal Assets ��0,���,���$     ���,���,���$     (�,���,���)$        ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       ���,���$            ���,���,���$     ���,�0�,���$     (���,���)$           

Calvert County's Government's Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

(Net of Depreciation)

  Major cap�tal asset events dur�ng the current f�scal year �ncluded the follow�ng: 
Completed the renovat�ons to the Work Release Fac�l�ty w�th a cost of $�.�� m�ll�on.  
Completed construct�on of Solomons Town Center Park w�th a total cap�tal�zed cost of 
$�.� m�ll�on. 
Completed work on part of the Pr�nce Freder�ck Loop Road w�th a cost of $� m�ll�on. 
Completed the Bus Wash for transportat�on for a cap�tal�zed cost of $��� thousand. 

Add�t�onal �nformat�on on Calvert County’s cap�tal assets can be found �n Note � of th�s report.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current f�scal year, Calvert County Government had total 
general obl�gat�on debt and notes payable outstand�ng of $���.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $���.� 
m�ll�on).  The full fa�th and cred�t and unl�m�ted tax�ng power of the County are �rrevocably 
pledged to levy and collect taxes �n order to prov�de for the payment of pr�nc�pal and �nterest due 
on the debt.  Of th�s amount, $��.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $��.� m�ll�on) are cons�dered self-
support�ng bonds, funded through var�ous surcharges and assessments related to the operat�on of 
the water and sewerage and sol�d waste and recycl�ng systems of the County.  W�th�n the 
governmental act�v�t�es are the $�0.� m�ll�on (pr�or year, $�0.� m�ll�on) �n �nstallment purchase 
agreements for the land preservat�on program.  The pr�nc�pal amount �s supported by US 
Treasury Str�p secur�t�es.  
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2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference 2011 2010 Difference

General obl�gat�on debt ���,��0,���$     ���,0��,��0$     �,���,0��           �,���,�0�$         �,��0,���$         �,���,���           ���,���,���       ���,���,���       ��,���,���         
Notes payable ���,0��              �,���,���           (�,0��,���)          �,���,���           �,���,���           (���,�0�)             �,���,���           �,���,���           (�,��0,���)          
Land preservat�on program �0,���,���         �0,���,�0�         ���,��0              -                          -                          -                          �0,���,���         �0,���,�0�         ���,��0              

Total Bonded Debt ���,��0,���$     ���,���,���$     �,���,���$         ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$       �,���,���$         ���,���,��0$     ���,���,���$     �0,���,���$       

Calvert County's Government's Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Calvert County Government’s total general obl�gat�on bonded debt �ncreased by $�0.� m�ll�on, 
(pr�or year, an �ncrease of $�.� m�ll�on), or �.� percent dur�ng the current f�scal year (pr�or year, 
an �ncrease of �.0 percent). 

In May �0��, the Calvert County Government had �ts cred�t rat�ngs upgraded by Standard & 
Poor’s.  Th�s upgrade takes the County’s debt up to the�r h�ghest rat�ngs.  The County’s rat�ngs 
were reaff�rmed by the other two major rat�ng agenc�es.  The current rat�ngs follow: 

Standard & Poor’s    “AAA”  
F�tch Rat�ngs     “AAA” 
Moody’s Investors Serv�ce, Inc. “Aa�”  

In ���0, the County adopted a debt affordab�l�ty model to ensure that the debt levels are kept at 
an affordable, manageable, moderate level.  A debt pol�cy was adopted �n FY �0�0 to comply 
w�th the State of Maryland’s new requ�rement.  The gu�del�nes created �n ���0 and rat�f�ed �n the 
pol�cy, establ�sh max�mum acceptable debt rat�os. These rat�os and the�r max�mum acceptable 
levels are: �) debt to assessed value, �.� percent, �) debt serv�ce as a percent of general fund 
revenue, �.� percent, and �) debt per cap�ta $�,�00. Us�ng f�scal year �0�� data, the County’s 
current rat�os are as follows: debt to assessed value �s .�� percent, debt serv�ce to general fund 
revenue �s �.0 percent, and debt per cap�ta �s $�,�0�.

Add�t�onal �nformat�on on Calvert County Government’s long-term debt can be found �n Note � 
of th�s report. 

Economic Factors and Fiscal Year 2012’s Budgets and Rates 

The est�mated total personal �ncome of County res�dents for calendar year �0�� �s $���.� 
m�ll�on ($���.� m�ll�on �n �0�0), an �ncrease of �.� percent.  There was a �.� percent 
�ncrease from calendar year �00� to �0�0. 
The unemployment rate for the County and the State of Maryland rema�ned flat from 
�0�0 to �0�� at �.� percent and �.� percent, respect�vely.
Real property tax assessments for the th�rd of the County that was reassessed for f�scal 
year �0�� were down on average �0.� percent. 

All of these factors were cons�dered �n prepar�ng the Calvert County Government’s budget for 
the �0�� f�scal year. Calvert County Government has adopted a balanced budget for f�scal year 
�0��.

Requests for Information
Th�s f�nanc�al report �s des�gned to prov�de a general overv�ew of Calvert County Government’s 
f�nances for all those w�th an �nterest �n the government’s f�nances.  Quest�ons concern�ng any of 
the �nformat�on prov�ded �n th�s report or requests for add�t�onal f�nanc�al �nformat�on should be 
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Primary Government Component Units
Business- Economic

Governmental Type Board of Development
Activities Activities Total Education Authority

ASSETS
Cash, cash equ�valents and �nvestments ���,���,���$                �0�,���$             ���,���,���$    ��,���,���$         �,���,���$         
Rece�vables

Taxes �,���,0��                      -                      �,���,0��          -                       -                     
Spec�al assessments �,���,���                      -                      �,���,���          -                       -                     
Accounts ��,���,���                    �,���,���            ��,���,���        -                       -                     
Notes �,���,���                      ���,���               �,�0�,0�0          -                       ���,���              
Accrued �nterest ��,�0�                           ��,���                 ��,0��               -                       ��,0��                
Other -                                 -                      -                     ��,���                  -                     

Due from pr�mary government -                                 -                      -                     ��,���,��0           ���,���              
Internal balances �,���,���                      (�,���,���)           -                     -                       -                     
Due from other governments -                                 -                      -                     �,���,���             -                     
Deferred expenses -                                 ��,�0�                 ��,�0�               -                       -                     
Prepa�d costs -                                 �,���                   �,���                 �0,���                  -                     
Inventory �0�,0��                         ���,���               ���,���             ��,���                  -                     
Net pens�on asset �0�,���                         -                      �0�,���             -                       -                     
Restr�cted assets    

Cash ��,���,�0�                    �,���,��0            ��,0��,���        -                       -                     
Cap�tal assets not be�ng deprec�ated ��,���,���                    �,��0,���            ��,���,���        ��,�0�,���           ��,���                
Deprec�able cap�tal assets - net ���,���,���                  �0,���,���          ���,���,0�0      ���,���,���         -                     
Total assets ��0,���,���                  ��,���,���          ���,0��,���      ���,���,���         �,���,���           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable �,���,���                      �,0��,���            �,���,���          �,��0,���             -                     
Notes payable ���,�00                         -                      ���,�00             -                       -                     
Accrued l�ab�l�t�es ��,0��,���                    ���,���               ��,���,���        ��,���,���           -                     
Due to other governments �,���,00�                      -                      �,���,00�          �,���,���             -                     
Due to component un�ts ��,��0,���                    -                      ��,��0,���        -                       -                     
Compensated absences, current port�on ���,���                         �00,000               �,0��,���          -                       -                     
Long-term debt, current port�on ��,�0�,���                    �,���,���            ��,���,���        ��,���                  -                     
Est�mated postclosure costs, current port�on �0,000                           -                      �0,000               -                       
Unearned revenue �,���,���                      ��,0�0                 �,���,���          �,��0,�0�             ���,���              
Noncurrent l�ab�l�t�es:

Net pens�on obl�gat�on �,���,��0                      -                      �,���,��0          ��,���,���           -                     
Compensated absences, net of current port�on �,0��,���                      ���,���               �,���,�0�          -                       -                     
Long-term debt, net of current port�on ��0,���,���                  ��,���,���          ���,���,���      �,���,�0�             -                     
Bond prem�um/deferred loss of refund�ng -                                 ���,�0�               ���,�0�             -                       -                     
Est�mated postclosure costs, net of current port�on ��0,000                         �,���,���            �,���,���          -                       -                     

Total l�ab�l�t�es �00,�0�,���                  ��,���,���          ���,0��,���      ��,���,���           ���,���              

NET ASSETS
Invested �n cap�tal assets, net of related debt �0�,���,���                  ��,���,���          ���,���,���      ���,���,���         ��,���                
Restr�cted for

Cap�tal projects �,���,���                      -                      �,���,���          -                       -                     
Grants ���,���                         -                      ���,���             ���,0��                -                     
Land Preservat�on �0,���,��0                    -                      �0,���,��0        -                       -                     
Parks and Recreat�on ���,���                         -                      ���,���             -                       -                     
Restr�cted cap�tal connect�ons -                                 �,���,���            �,���,���          -                       -                     
Plann�ng and Zon�ng �0�,���                         -                      �0�,���             -                       -                     
Bar l�brary ��,���                           -                      ��,���               -                       -                     
Revolv�ng loan ��,�00                           -                      ��,�00               -                       -                     
Econom�c Development Author�ty revolv�ng loan ���,���                         -                      ���,���             -                       -                     
Econom�c Development �ncent�ve �0�,���                         -                      �0�,���             -                       -                     
Board of L�brary Trustees �0,���                           -                      �0,���               -                       -                     
G�fts and bequests -                                 ���,���               ���,���             -                       -                     

Unrestr�cted ��,���,0��                    ���,���               ��,0��,���        (�,���,0��)            �,���,���           

Total net assets ��0,���,���$                ��,���,���$        �0�,00�,���$    �0�,���,��0$       �,���,���$         

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.



-17-

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Primary Government:
Governmental act�v�t�es:

General government �0,���,���$      �,���,���$       �,���,���$       ��,���$               
Publ�c safety ��,��0,���        �,���,���         �,���,���         �00,000               
Publ�c works ��,0��,��0        ��0,���            -                   �,���,���            
Health and hosp�tals �,�0�,���          ��,���              ��,��0              -                       
Soc�al serv�ces �0,���,���        �0,���              �,���,���         -                       
Educat�on �,���,���          -                    -                   -                       
Board of Educat�on ���,���,���      -                    -                   ��0,�0�               
Recreat�on and culture �0,��0,�0�        �,�0�,���         ���,�0�            -                       
Conservat�on of natural resources �,���,���          ���,���            -                   ��,000                 
Urban development and hous�ng �,���,���          �,�0�,��0         -                   -                       
Econom�c development �,��0,��0          ���,���            -                   -                       
Interest on long-term debt �,���,���          �,���                -                   -                       

Total governmental act�v�t�es ���,���,��0      ��,0�0,��0       �,���,��0         �,���,���            

Bus�ness-Type act�v�t�es:
Water and sewer �,���,���          �,���,���         -                   -                       
Sol�d waste �,���,���          �0,�00,���       -                   -                       
Recreat�on and culture �,���,��0          �,0��,0��         ���,�0�            �0�,���               

Total bus�ness-type act�v�t�es ��,0��,���        ��,���,���       ���,�0�            �0�,���               

Total pr�mary government ���,���,���$    ��,���,���$     �,���,���$       �,���,0��$          

Component Units:
School d�str�ct ���,���,��0      �,�0�,�0�         ��,0��,�0�       ��,��0,���          
Econom�c development ���                    �,���                -                   -                       

Total component un�ts ���,���,���$    �,�0�,��0$       ��,0��,�0�$     ��,��0,���$        

General Revenues:
Property taxes
Income taxes
Recordat�on taxes
Adm�ss�on and amusement taxes
Franch�se taxes
Other m�scellaneous taxes
Interest and d�v�dends
Loss on asset d�sposal
Unrestr�cted �nvestment earn�ngs
Unrestr�cted local appropr�at�ons, state and federal a�d
Unrestr�cted state re�mbursement of electr�c�ty deregulat�on

  Transfers
  Total general revenues and transfers
            Change �n net assets

Net assets - beg�nn�ng

Net assets - end�ng

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government Component Units

Economic
Governmental Business-type Board of Development

Activities Activities Total Education Authority

(��,�0�,���)$      -$                      (��,�0�,���)$     -$                   -$                
(��,���,���)        -                        (��,���,���)       -                     -                  
(��,��0,���)        -                        (��,��0,���)       -                     -                  

(�,���,��0)           -                        (�,���,��0)         -                     -                  
(�,���,���)           -                        (�,���,���)         -                     -                  
(�,���,���)           -                        (�,���,���)         -                     -                  

(���,���,���)      -                        (���,���,���)     -                     -                  
(�,���,���)           -                        (�,���,���)         -                     -                  
(�,���,�0�)           -                        (�,���,�0�)         -                     -                  
(�,���,���)           -                        (�,���,���)         -                     -                  

(���,���)              -                        (���,���)            -                     -                  
(�,���,���)           -                        (�,���,���)         -                     -                  

(���,���,���)      -                        (���,���,���)     -                     -                  

-                       (���,���)               (���,���)            -                     -                  
-                       ���,���                 ���,���             -                     -                  
-                       (�,0��,0��)            (�,0��,0��)         -                     -                  

-                       (�,���,��0)            (�,���,��0)         -                     -                  

(���,���,���)$    (�,���,��0)$          (���,���,���)$   -$                   -$                

-                       -                        -                     (��0,���,���)     -                  
-                       -                        -                     -                     �,���               

-$                     -$                      -$                   (��0,���,���)$   �,���$             

��0,0��,���        -                        ��0,0��,���      -                     -                  
��,���,���          -                        ��,���,���        -                     -                  

�,��0,���            -                        �,��0,���          -                     -                  
��,�0�                 -                        ��,�0�               -                     -                  

�,���,���            -                        �,���,���          -                     -                  
���,���               -                        ���,���             -                     -                  
���,���               ���,���                 ���,���             ��,���               �,���               

-                       -                        -                     (���,���)            -                  
-                       -                        -                     -                     -                  
-                       -                        -                     ���,���,���      -                  
-                       -                        -                     -                     -                  

(�,���,��0)           �,���,��0             -                     -                     -                  
���,���,0��        �,�0�,���             ���,���,���      ���,���,���      �,���               

��,���,���          (���,���)               ��,���,�0�        �,���,���          �,��0               

���,�0�,���        ��,���,���           ���,���,�0�      �0�,���,���      �,���,�0�        

��0,���,���$      ��,���,���$         �0�,00�,���$    �0�,���,��0$    �,���,���$      

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011
 Nonmajor Total

 Capital Governmental Governmental
General Fund Projects Funds Funds

Cash, cash equ�valents and �nvestments �0�,���,�0�$          -$                         �,�0�,���$                   ���,���,���$           
Rece�vables:    

Taxes �,���,���                -                           ���,���                        �,���,0��                 
Spec�al assessments �,���,���                -                           -                               �,���,���                 
Accounts ��,���,�0�              -                           �,���,���                     ��,���,���               
Notes �,���,���                -                           -                               �,���,���                 
Accrued �nterest ��,���                     ���                          -                               ��,�0�                      

Due from other funds �,��0,��0                ��,0��,���              �,���,���                     ��,���,���               
Due from other governments -                           -                           -                               -                            
Inventory ���,�0�                   -                           ��,���                          �0�,0��                    
Restr�cted assets

Cash and �nvestments -                           ��,���,�0�              -                               ��,���,�0�               

Total assets ���,���,��0$          ��,���,���$           �0,���,00�$                 ���,�0�,���$

L�ab�l�t�es:
Accounts payable ���,���                   ���,���                   �,��0,���                     �,���,���                 
Notes payable -                           -                           ���,�00                        ���,�00                    
Accrued l�ab�l�t�es �,���,���                ���,�0�                   -                               �,���,���                 
Due to other funds ��,���,���              -                           -                               ��,���,���               
Due to component un�ts ��,0��,���              ���,��0                   -                               ��,��0,���               
Due to other governments �,���,00�                -                           -                               �,���,00�                 
Deferred revenue ��,���,���              -                           �,���,��0                     ��,���,���               
Total l�ab�l�t�es ��,���,���              �,���,���                �,0��,�0�                     �0,���,���               

Fund Balances:   
Nonspendable �,���,���                -                           �0,���,��0                   ��,�0�,���               
Restr�cted ��,���                     -                           �,��0                            ��,���                      
Comm�tted �0,���,���              -                           �,���,���                     ��,���,���               
Ass�gned �,���,000                ��,���,���              �0,���                          ��,���,��0               
Unass�gned ��,���,���              -                           -                               ��,���,���               

Total fund balances ��,���,0��              ��,���,���              ��,���,���                   ���,���,���             

Total l�ab�l�t�es and fund balances ���,���,��0$          ��,���,���$           �0,���,00�$                 ���,�0�,���$

Fund balance (as reported above) ���,���,���             
Amounts reported for governmental act�v�t�es �n the statement of net assets are d�fferent because:
   Cap�tal assets used �n governmental act�v�t�es are not f�nanc�al resources
     and, therefore, are not reported �n the funds. ��0,���,���             
   Other long-term assets are not ava�lable to pay for current-per�od
     expend�tures and, therefore, are deferred �n the funds. ��,���,���               
  Long term l�ab�l�t�es are not due and payable �n the current per�od, and, therefore, are not reported �n the funds. (���,���,���)            
  Net pens�on obl�gat�ons are not due and payable �n the current per�od, 

      and, therefore, are not reported �n the funds. (�,���,��0)                
    Accrued �nterest on long-term l�ab�l�t�es, �nclud�ng bonds payable are not reported �n the funds. (�,���,�00)                

Net assets of governmental act�v�t�es ��0,���,���$

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

General Fund Capital Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES

Taxes ���,���,���$      -$                     �,���,��0$        ���,���,���$
L�censes and perm�ts ���,�0�               -                       -                     ���,�0�
Intergovernmental �,���,���            �,���,��0            �,���,���          �0,���,0��
Charges for serv�ces �,���,���            -                       -                     �,���,���
F�nes and forfe�tures ���,�0�               -                       ���,���             ���,���
M�scellaneous �,0��,���            ��,���                 �,0��,00�          �,���,���

Total revenues ���,�0�,���        �,���,���            ��,��0,���        ���,0��,�0�

EXPENDITURES
General government ��,���,���          -                       -                     ��,���,���
Publ�c safety ��,���,���          -                       -                     ��,���,���
Publ�c works �,�0�,���            -                       -                     �,�0�,���
Health and hosp�tals �,���,��0            -                       -                     �,���,��0
Soc�al serv�ces �,���,�0�            -                       �,���,���          �,���,0��
Educat�on - other �,���,0��            -                       ��,���               �,���,���
Board of Educat�on �0�,0�0,��0        -                       -                     �0�,0�0,��0
Recreat�on and culture �,0��,��0            -                       �,���,���          �0,���,���
Conservat�on of natural resources �0�,��0               -                       �,�0�,���          �,��0,0��
Urban development and hous�ng �,���,���            -                       ��0,���             �,���,���
Econom�c development �,���,���            -                       -                     �,���,���
Pens�ons and �nsurance ��,�0�,���          -                       -                     ��,�0�,���
Cap�tal projects -                      ��,��0,���          -                     ��,��0,���
Debt serv�ce

Pr�nc�pal ret�rement ��,���,�0�          -                       -                     ��,���,�0�
Interest �,���,���            -                       -                     �,���,���

Total expend�tures ��0,���,���        ��,��0,���          ��,0��,0��        ���,���,���

Excess (def�c�ency) of revenues over expend�tures ��,���,���          (��,���,���)         (�,���,���)         (���,���)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from bond �ssuance -                      ��,���,000          -                     ��,���,000
Amount depos�ted �n refund�ng escrow -                      -                       -                     -
Prem�um on �ssuance of debt -                      �,���,���            -                     �,���,���
Transfers �n - other �,0�0,000            �,���,���            �,���,���          ��,���,���
Transfers out - other (��,���,���)        -                       (�,���,���)         (��,���,���)

Total other f�nanc�ng sources (uses) (�,���,���)          ��,���,���          �,���,��0          ��,�0�,���

Net change �n fund balance �,���,���            �0,���,���          (�,���,���)         ��,���,���

Fund balance at beg�nn�ng of year ��,���,���          ��,��0,0��          ��,���,���        ���,0��,���

Fund balance at end of year ��,���,0��$       ��,���,���$       ��,���,���$      ���,���,���$

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.
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Amounts reported for governmental act�v�t�es �n the statement of act�v�t�es are d�fferent because:

Net change �n fund balances - total governmental funds ��,���,���$      

Governmental funds report cap�tal outlays as expend�tures.  However, �n the
  statement of act�v�t�es the cost of those assets �s allocated over the�r est�mated
  useful l�ves and reported as deprec�at�on expense.  Th�s �s the amount by wh�ch 
  cap�tal outlays exceeded deprec�at�on �n the current per�od.

Cap�tal outlays �0,���,���   
Deprec�at�on (�0,���,���)

�0,0��,��0        

The net effect of var�ous transact�ons �nvolv�ng cap�tal assets �nclud�ng, cap�tal�zed (��,���,���)       
  assets reclassed from construct�on �n progress, sales, trade-�ns, and donat�ons.

Revenues �n the statement of act�v�t�es that do not prov�de current f�nanc�al �,0��,���          
  resources are not reported as revenues �n the funds.

The �ssuance of long-term debt (�.e. bonds, leases, �nstallment purchase agreements)
  proceeds prov�de current f�nanc�al resources to government funds, wh�le the repayment
  of the pr�nc�pal of the long-term debt consumes the current f�nanc�al resources of
  government funds.

Compensated absences (���,0��)       
Change �n landf�ll postclosure l�ab�l�t�es �0,000           
Net pens�on obl�gat�on (���,���)       
Issuance - General Obl�gat�on Bonds (��,���,000)
Prem�um on �ssuance of debt (�,���,���)    
Pr�nc�pal payments ��,���,�0�   

Changes �n long-term debt (�0,���,���)       

Some expenses reported �n the statement of act�v�t�es do not requ�re the use of 
  current f�nanc�al resources and therefore are not reported as expend�tures 
  �n governmental funds.

Change �n accrued �nterest (���,���)            

Change �n net assets of governmental act�v�t�es ��,���,���$      

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF THE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Water Solid Waste Total Nonmajor
and Sewer and Recycling Proprietary

Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equ�valents ���,���$            �,000$                ��0,�0�$             �0�,0��$             
Investments -                      -                      �0�,��0               �0�,��0              

Total cash, cash equ�valents and �nvestments ���,���              �,000                  ���,���               �0�,���              

Accounts rece�vable  �,���,���           ���,000              -                       �,���,���            
Notes rece�vable ���,���              -                      -                       ���,���              
Accrued �nterest rece�vable ��                       ��,���                -                       ��,���                
Due from other funds  -                      �,���,���           ���,���               �,���,���            
Deferred expenses  ��,���                �,���                  -                       ��,�0�                
Prepa�d expenses -                      -                      �,���                   �,���                  
Inventory  ��,���                -                      ��,���                 ���,���              

Total current assets �,���,���           �,���,���           ���,���               �,���,���            

Non-current assets:
Restr�cted assets    

Cash and �nvestments �,0��,���           ��0,���              ���,���               �,���,��0            

Cap�tal assets not be�ng deprec�ated �,���,�0�           �,00�,���           �,���,��0            �,��0,���            
Deprec�able cap�tal assets - net ��,���,���         �,��0,���           �,0��,���            �0,���,���          
Total non-current assets ��,���,���         �,0��,���           �,���,0��            ��,���,���          

Total assets ��,��0,��0         �0,��0,�0�         �,���,���            ��,���,�0�          

LIABILITIES
Current l�ab�l�t�es:
Vouchers and accounts payable �0�,���              ���,���              ��,���                 �,0��,���            
Accrued expenses ���,���              �0,���                ��,��0                 ���,���              
Due to other funds �,��0,��0           -                      -                       �,��0,��0            
Unearned revenue -                      -                      ��,0�0                 ��,0�0                
Compensated absences, current port�on �0,000                �0,000                -                       �00,000              
Long-term debt, current port�on �,0��,��0           �0�,���              -                       �,���,���            
Total current l�ab�l�t�es �0,���,0��         ���,���              ��,���                 ��,���,00�          

Noncurrent l�ab�l�t�es:
Compensated absences, net of current port�on �0�,��0              ���,0��              -                       ���,���              
Est�mated post closure costs -                      �,���,���           -                       �,���,���            
Bond prem�um/deferred loss on refund�ng ���,���              ��,���                -                       ���,�0�              
Long-term debt, net of current port�on ��,���,���         �,���,���           -                       ��,���,���          

Total l�ab�l�t�es ��,0��,���         �,���,���           ��,���                 ��,���,���          

NET ASSETS
Invested �n cap�tal assets, net of related debt ��,���,���         �,��0,���           �,���,���            ��,���,���          
Restr�cted cap�tal connect�on �,���,���           -                      -                       �,���,���            
Restr�cted g�fts and bequests -                      -                      ���,���               ���,���              
Unrestr�cted (�,���,���)          �,���,���           ���,��0               ���,���              

Total net assets ��,���,���$       �,�0�,���$         �,���,���$          ��,���,���$        

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

 STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Water Solid Waste Total Nonmajor
and Sewer and Recycling Proprietary

Fund Fund Funds Total
Operat�ng revenues:

Charges for serv�ces �,���,���$         �0,0��,���$        ���,���$            ��,���,���$       

Operat�ng expenses:
Salar�es & benef�ts �,���,���           �,���,���            �,���,��� �,���,���           
Contracted serv�ces ���,���              �,���,���            ���,��� �,�0�,��0           
Suppl�es ���,���              ��,��0                 ���,��� ���,���              
Heat, l�ght and power ���,0��              ��,��0                 ���,��� ���,���              
Deprec�at�on �,0��,���           ���,���               �0�,��� �,�0�,���           
M�scellaneous ��,���                ��,���                 ���,0�� ���,��0              
Telephone ��,���                �,�0�                   ��,��� ��,���                
Compensated absences �,�0�                  ��,���                 �,��� ��,���                
Ma�ntenance and repa�rs ��0,���              ���,0�0               ���,��� �,0��,��0           
Cap�tal outlay ��,���                ��,���                 �0,��0 �0,0��                
Grant & restr�cted expenses -                          -                           ���,��� ���,���              

Total operat�ng expenses �,���,0��           �,���,���            �,���,��0           �0,���,0��         

Operat�ng �ncome (loss) (���,���)             ���,���               (�,���,���)          (�,0��,���)          

Non-operat�ng revenue (expenses):

Grants -                          -                           �0,��� �0,���                
Contr�but�ons and fund-ra�s�ng -                          -                           ���,��� ���,���              
Deferred amount on refund�ng (��,0��)               (��,��0)                -                          (��,���)               
M�scellaneous �ncome ��,�0�                �0,���                 �0�,��� ���,���              
Tower revenue ���,���              ��,���                 -                          ���,���              
Investment �ncome ��,���                ��0,���               ��,��0 ���,���              
Developer contr�but�on ���,���              -                           -                          ���,���              
Interest expense (�00,���)             (��,���)                -                          (���,���)             

Total non-operat�ng revenue (expenses) ��,0��                ��,���                 ���,��� ���,���              

Income (loss) before contr�but�ons and transfers (���,�0�)             ���,���               (�,���,���)          (�,���,���)          

Operat�ng transfers �n (out) -                          �0,0��                 �,���,���           �,���,��0           
Cap�tal connect�on charges ���,���              -                           -                          ���,���              
Cap�tal contr�but�ons -                          -                           �0�,���              �0�,���              

Change �n net assets (���,���)             ���,���               (���,�0�)             (���,���)             

Total net assets - beg�nn�ng ��,���,���         �,0��,���            �,0��,���           ��,���,���         

Total net assets - end�ng ��,���,���$       �,�0�,���$          �,���,���$         ��,���,���$       

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.



-24-

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Solid
Water Waste and Nonmajor

and Sewer Recycling Proprietary
Fund Fund Funds Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Rece�pts from customers �,���,���$    �0,���,���$    ���,���$         ��,���,0��$        
Tower revenue ���,���         ��,���             -                  ���,���               
Payments to suppl�ers (�,���,0��)     (�,�0�,�0�)       (�,��0,���)       (�0,���,���)        
Payments to employees (�,���,0��)     (�,���,0��)       (�,���,���)       (�,��0,���)          
Payments to other funds -                (���,���)          -                  (���,���)             
Rece�pts from other funds ���,��0         -                      ���,���           ���,���               

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es �,���,���      ���,���           (�,���,��0)       (��0,���)             

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operat�ng transfers (to)/ from other funds -                �0,0��             �,���,���        �,���,��0            
Contr�but�on and fundra�s�ng rece�pts, m�scellaneous ��,�0�           �0,���             ��0,���           ��0,���               

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) non-cap�tal f�nanc�ng act�v�t�es ��,�0�           ��,0��             �,0��,���        �,���,���            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTVITIES
Add�t�ons to cap�tal assets and construct�on-�n-progress (�,���,���)     (���,���)          (��0,���)          (�,�00,���)          
Proceeds from �ssuance of long term debt �,���,���      �,0��,���        -                  �,0��,���            
Grant funds rece�ved -                -                  �0,���             �0,���                 
Cap�tal connect�on fees rece�ved ���,���         -                  -                  ���,���               
Cap�tal transfers (to)/from other funds -                -                  -                  -                      
Cap�tal contr�but�ons -                -                  �0�,���           �0�,���               
Developer contr�but�on ���,���         -                  -                  ���,���               
Pr�nc�pal pa�d on long-term obl�gat�ons (�0�,���)        (���,0��)          -                  (�,��0,���)          
Interest pa�d on long-term obl�gat�ons (���,���)        (��,�0�)            -                  (���,���)             

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) cap�tal and related f�nanc�ng act�v�t�es (���,�0�)        ���,���           (���,���)          (���,�0�)             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest rece�ved on depos�ts ��,���           �0�,0��           ��,��0             ���,���               
Purchase of �nvestments (���,���)        (���,0��)          (��,���)            (�,�0�,���)          

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) �nvest�ng act�v�t�es (���,���)        (���,0��)          (��,���)            (�,���,���)          

Increase (decrease) �n cash and cash equ�valents ���,0��         -                  ��,���             ��0,��0               
Cash and cash equ�valents, beg�nn�ng of year ���,���         �,000               �0�,��0           ��0,���               

Cash and cash equ�valents, end of year ���,���$      �,000$            ��0,�0�$         �0�,0��$

PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operat�ng �ncome (loss) (���,���)$      ���,���$         (�,���,���)$     (�,0��,���)$        
Adjustments to reconc�le operat�ng �ncome (loss) to

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es
Deprec�at�on �,0��,���      ���,���           �0�,���           �,�0�,���            
Landf�ll closure costs and other -                -                  -                  -                      
Tower revenue ���,���         ��,���             -                  ���,���               

Changes �n assets and l�ab�l�t�es
Inventory ��,���           -                  (�,���)              �,���                   
Accounts rece�vable ��,���           ���,���           ��,���             ��0,���               
Prepa�d expenses -                �,���               (�,���)              �,��0                   
Deferred expend�tures -                -                  ��,��0             ��,��0                 
Due from other funds -                (���,���)          ���,���           (���,��0)             
Bond payable refundable ��,�00           -                  -                  ��,�00                 
Accounts payable (���,0�0)        (�,��0)              �,���               (���,�0�)             
Accrued expenses (��0,���)        ��,���             ��,���             (���,���)             
Due to other funds ���,��0         -                  -                  ���,��0               

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es �,���,���$    ���,���$         (�,���,��0)$     (��0,���)$           

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance sheet:
Cash and �nvestments, unrestr�cted ���,���$       �,000$             ���,���$         �0�,���$             
Cash and �nvestments, restr�cted �,0��,���      ��0,���           ���,���           �,���,��0            

�,���,���      ���,���           �,0��,���        �,���,���            
Less - noncash equ�valent �nvestments �,0��,���      ��0,���           ���,0��           �,���,��0            

Cash and cash equ�valents ���,���$       �,000$             ��0,�0�$         �0�,0��$             

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.
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PENSION &
OTHER POST 

EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS AGENCY

TRUST FUNDS FUND
ASSETS

Cash and short-term �nvestments �,���,���$           ��,���$                

Investments at fa�r value
F�xed �ncome fund ��,���,���           -                        
Common stock ��,���,���           -                        
Equ�ty fund ��,���,���           -                        
Other assets �,���,���             -                        
Total �nvestments �0�,���,���         -                        

Accounts rece�vable -                        �,���                    
Interest rece�vable ��,���                  -                        

Total assets ���,���,0��$       ��,���$                

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable -$                      ��,���$                

NET ASSETS
Held �n trust for pens�on and other post employment benef�ts ���,���,0��         -                        

Total l�ab�l�t�es and net assets ���,���,0��$       ��,���$                

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

PENSION &
OTHER POST 

EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

TRUST FUNDS
ADDITIONS

Contr�but�ons:
Plan sponsor �,���,���$            
Employee �,�0�,���              

Total contr�but�ons ��,���,���            

Investment �ncome/(loss):  
Net apprec�at�on/(deprec�at�on) �n fa�r value of �nvestments �0,���,���            
Interest and d�v�dends �,0��,���              

Total �nvestment �ncome/(loss) ��,���,���            

Total add�t�ons ��,���,��0            

DEDUCTIONS
Benef�ts �,0��,���              
Adm�n�strat�ve expenses ���,��0                  

Total deduct�ons �,���,���              

Change �n net assets ��,���,���            

Net assets held �n trust for pens�on and other post employment benef�ts

Beg�nn�ng of year ��,���,���            

End of year ���,���,0��$        

The accompany�ng notes to the f�nanc�al statements are an �ntegral part of th�s statement.
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CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Calvert County (the County), was establ�shed as one of the or�g�nal count�es of the 
Maryland colony �n ����.  The County �s governed by a board of f�ve Comm�ss�oners. One 
Comm�ss�oner �s elected from each of the three d�str�cts and two are elected at large.  All serve 
four-year terms. Th�s board assumes respons�b�l�t�es conferred upon them by the Maryland 
General Assembly and prov�des the follow�ng serv�ces: publ�c safety, publ�c �mprovements, 
health and soc�al serv�ces, san�tat�on, recreat�on and culture, educat�on, econom�c development 
and general adm�n�strat�ve serv�ces. The bas�c f�nanc�al statements of the County have been 
prepared �n conform�ty w�th account�ng pr�nc�ples generally accepted �n the Un�ted States of 
Amer�ca as appl�ed to government un�ts as prescr�bed by the Governmental Account�ng 
Standards Board (GASB).    

A.  Reporting Entity 

 The accompany�ng f�nanc�al statements �nclude var�ous agenc�es, department 
organ�zat�ons and off�ces wh�ch are legally part of Calvert County (the Pr�mary Government) 
and the County’s component un�ts.  As def�ned by account�ng pr�nc�ples, a component un�t �s a 
legally separate organ�zat�on that �s f�nanc�ally accountable to the Pr�mary Government or where 
�ts relat�onsh�p w�th the County �s of such s�gn�f�cance that exclus�on would cause the County’s 
f�nanc�al statements to be m�slead�ng or �ncomplete.  The two d�scretely presented component 
un�ts descr�bed below reported �n separate columns �n the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements 
to emphas�ze separat�on from the Pr�mary Government. 

D�scretely Presented Component Un�ts

Board of Education of Calvert County Public Schools - The Board of Educat�on of 
Calvert County Publ�c Schools (the Board) �s respons�ble for elementary and secondary 
educat�on w�th�n the County.  The Board �s f�scally dependent upon the County because the 
Comm�ss�oners are respons�ble for approv�ng the Board's annual appropr�at�ons �n the budget.  In 
add�t�on, the Comm�ss�oners are respons�ble for levy�ng taxes and collect�ng and d�str�but�ng the 
funds to the Board and the County �ssues bonds to f�nance school system construct�on projects.  
Complete f�nanc�al statements of the Board may be obta�ned at the ent�ty's adm�n�strat�ve off�ces 
located at ��0� Dares Beach Road, Pr�nce Freder�ck, Maryland, �0���. 

Economic Development Authority of Calvert County - The Econom�c Development 
Author�ty of Calvert County (the Author�ty) was establ�shed �n ����, for the purpose of 
acqu�r�ng, construct�ng, develop�ng, �mprov�ng, operat�ng, and manag�ng an �ndustr�al park 
w�th�n the County and to enlarge econom�c development opportun�t�es for the preservat�on and 
betterment of the economy of Calvert County.  The members of the Board of the Author�ty are 
appo�nted by the Comm�ss�oners.  The Author�ty prov�des serv�ces wh�ch exclus�vely benef�t the 
County and County employees perform all of the Author�ty’s serv�ces. The Econom�c 
Development Author�ty of Calvert County does not �ssue separate f�nanc�al statements, so the�r 
statements are �ncluded �n th�s document on pages ��-��. 

The Calvert County Hous�ng Author�ty, the Volunteer F�re and Rescue Squads, the 
Calvert County Fa�r, Inc., and the Calvert County So�l Conservat�on D�str�ct have been excluded 
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from the bas�c f�nanc�al statements on the bas�s that these ent�t�es are not controlled by or 
f�nanc�ally dependent upon the County. 

B.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

 The government-w�de f�nanc�al statements (�.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of act�v�t�es) d�splay �nformat�on about the County as a whole.  These statements 
�nclude the f�nanc�al act�v�t�es of the Pr�mary Government, except for f�duc�ary funds.  The 
statements d�st�ngu�sh between those act�v�t�es of the County that are governmental, normally 
supported by taxes and �ntergovernmental revenues, and those that are cons�dered bus�ness-type 
act�v�t�es, wh�ch rely to a s�gn�f�cant extent on fees and charges for support. L�kew�se, the 
Pr�mary Government �s reported separately from the component un�ts.   

 The statement of act�v�t�es demonstrates the degree to wh�ch the d�rect expenses of a 
g�ven funct�on or segment �s offset by program revenues.  D�rect expenses are those that are 
clearly �dent�f�able w�th a spec�f�c funct�on or segment. Program revenues �nclude �) charges to 
customers or appl�cants who purchase, use, or d�rectly benef�t from goods, serv�ces, or pr�v�leges 
prov�ded by a g�ven funct�on or segment and �) grants and contr�but�ons that are restr�cted to 
meet�ng the operat�onal or cap�tal requ�rements of a part�cular funct�on or segment. Taxes and 
other �tems not properly �ncluded among program revenues are reported �nstead as general 
revenues.

 Separate f�nanc�al statements are prov�ded for governmental funds, propr�etary funds and 
f�duc�ary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-w�de f�nanc�al 
statements. Major �nd�v�dual governmental funds and major �nd�v�dual propr�etary funds are 
reported as separate columns �n the fund f�nanc�al statements.  

C.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The bas�c f�nanc�al statements are d�v�ded �nto three categor�es:  government-w�de 
f�nanc�al statements, fund f�nanc�al statements, and budgetary statements.  The measurement 
focus, bases of account�ng and presentat�on of these categor�es �s d�scussed below.

Measurement Focus and Bas�s of Account�ng

The Government-w�de f�nanc�al statements measure and report all assets (both f�nanc�al 
and cap�tal), l�ab�l�t�es, revenues, expenses, ga�ns and losses us�ng the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of account�ng, as do the Propr�etary funds and Pens�on 
and Other Post Employment Benef�t Trust funds statements. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a l�ab�l�ty �s �ncurred, regardless of the t�m�ng of related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recogn�zed as revenue as soon as all el�g�b�l�ty requ�rements �mposed 
by the prov�der have been met. 

All governmental funds are accounted for us�ng a current financial resources 
measurement focus and are reported us�ng the modified accrual bas�s of account�ng. Revenues 
are recogn�zed �n the account�ng per�od �n wh�ch the revenues are measurable and ava�lable. 
“Measurable” means the amount of the transact�on can be determ�ned and “ava�lable” means 
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collect�ble w�th�n the current per�od, or soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay l�ab�l�t�es of the 
current per�od. For the County’s purposes, the per�od of ava�lab�l�ty �s cons�dered to be �0 days 
after year end.  Revenues cons�dered suscept�ble to accrual are grants, del�nquent property taxes, 
�ncome taxes and �nterest on �nvestments.   

In governmental funds expend�tures are generally recorded when �ncurred; however, 
expend�tures for debt serv�ce, compensated absences, and cla�ms and judgments are recorded 
when payments are due.  General County cap�tal asset acqu�s�t�ons are reported as expend�tures 
�n governmental funds.  Proceeds of the County’s general long-term debt are reported as other 
f�nanc�ng sources.

The Agency Funds have no measurement focus s�nce these funds only report assets and 
l�ab�l�t�es.  Agency Funds use the accrual basis of account�ng.

F�nanc�al Statement Presentat�on

Fund f�nanc�al statements report deta�led �nformat�on about the County.  Governmental 
and Propr�etary fund f�nanc�al statement presentat�on focuses on major funds rather than 
report�ng funds by type.  Each major fund �s presented �n a separate column.  Nonmajor funds 
are aggregated and presented �n a s�ngle column.  F�duc�ary funds are reported by fund type. 

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The General Fund �s the general operat�ng fund of the Pr�mary 
Government.  All f�nanc�al resources are accounted for �n th�s fund except those requ�red to be 
accounted for �n another fund. The General Fund �s a major fund. 

Cap�tal Projects Fund - The Cap�tal Projects Fund �s used to account for f�nanc�al 
resources to be used for the acqu�s�t�on or construct�on of major cap�tal fac�l�t�es of the County.
The Cap�tal Projects Fund �s a major fund.  

Spec�al Revenue Funds - Spec�al revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
spec�f�c revenue sources (other than major cap�tal projects or expendable trusts) that are legally 
restr�cted to expend�tures for spec�f�ed purposes. The spec�al revenue funds �nclude the Parks and 
Recreat�on Fund, Plann�ng and Zon�ng Spec�al Revenue Fund, Bar L�brary Fund, Revolv�ng 
Loan Fund, Econom�c Development Author�ty Revolv�ng Loan Fund, Calvert County Fam�ly 
Network, Grants Fund, Econom�c Development Incent�ve Fund, Exc�se Tax Fund, the Land 
Preservat�on Fund, and the Board of L�brary Trustees for Calvert County (the L�brary).  None of 
these spec�al revenue funds are major funds.

Proprietary Fund Type

Enterpr�se Funds - Enterpr�se funds are used to report act�v�t�es for wh�ch a fee �s charged 
to external users for goods or serv�ces.  Enterpr�se funds here�n �nclude the operat�ons of the 
Water and Sewer Fund, the Sol�d Waste and Recycl�ng Fund, the Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course, 
and the Calvert Mar�ne Museum. The Water and Sewer Fund and the Sol�d Waste and Recycl�ng 



-30-

CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2011 

Fund are major funds.  The Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course and the Calvert Mar�ne Museum are 
nonmajor funds, wh�ch are comb�ned �n one column for report�ng.  

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust Funds - The County ma�nta�ns pens�on trust funds to account for the Calvert 
County Employees Ret�rement Plan, the Volunteer F�re Departments and Rescue Squads Pens�on 
Plan, the Calvert County Sher�ff’s Department Pens�on Plan, and the Calvert County Maryland 
Post-Employment Benef�ts Plan.   

Agency Funds - The Tax Redempt�on Fund �s an agency fund used to account for tax 
payments made by del�nquent property owners to redeem tax cert�f�cates held by th�rd part�es. 
These funds are held by the County �n a trustee capac�ty. 

Net Assets

The government-w�de and bus�ness-type fund f�nanc�al statements ut�l�ze net asset 
presentat�on.  Net assets are presented �n three components – �nvested �n cap�tal assets (net of 
related debt), restr�cted and unrestr�cted.

�. Invested �n Cap�tal Assets (net of related debt) – Th�s component of net assets 
cons�sts of cap�tal assets, net of accumulated deprec�at�on and reduced by outstand�ng  
bonds, notes or other borrow�ngs attr�butable to the acqu�s�t�on, construct�on, or 
�mprovement of these assets. 

�. Restr�cted – Th�s component cons�sts of net assets that have constra�nts placed on 
them e�ther externally by th�rd-part�es (cred�tors, grantors, contr�butors, or laws or 
regulat�ons of other governments) or by law through const�tut�onal prov�s�ons or 
enabl�ng leg�slat�on. 

�. Unrestr�cted – Th�s component cons�sts of net assets that do not meet the def�n�t�on of 
“�nvested �n cap�tal assets, net of related debt” and restr�cted. 

S�gn�f�cant Account�ng Pol�c�es

The follow�ng �s a summary of the more s�gn�f�cant account�ng pol�c�es appl�ed to 
elements �n the County’s bas�c f�nanc�al statements:  

Private Sector Guidance - Pr�vate-sector standards of account�ng and f�nanc�al report�ng 
�ssued pr�or to December �, ����, generally are followed �n both the government-w�de and 
propr�etary fund f�nanc�al statements to the extent that those standards do not confl�ct w�th or 
contrad�ct gu�dance of the Governmental Account�ng Standards Board. Governments also have 
the opt�on of follow�ng subsequent pr�vate-sector gu�dance for bus�ness-type act�v�t�es and 
enterpr�se funds, subject to th�s same l�m�tat�on.  The County has elected not to follow 
subsequent pr�vate-sector gu�dance. 
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Internal Activity - Calvert County has m�n�mal act�v�ty between governmental and 
bus�ness-type act�v�t�es.  However, to avo�d double count�ng of �nternal act�v�t�es, the effect of 
�nternal transact�ons and balances has been el�m�nated from the f�nanc�al statements.   

Program, General and Operating Revenues – Revenue �n the government-w�de f�nanc�al 
statements �s class�f�ed as program or general revenue.  Amounts reported as program revenues 
�nclude �) charges to customers or appl�cants for goods, serv�ces, or pr�v�leges prov�ded, �) 
operat�ng grants and contr�but�ons, and �) cap�tal grants and contr�but�ons, �nclud�ng spec�al 
assessments. Internally ded�cated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues. In add�t�on, general revenues �nclude all taxes. 

The operat�ng revenues of the enterpr�se funds are def�ned as the charges for serv�ces 
rece�ved from the customers that are of a recurr�ng nature.  That �s, those charges do not �nclude 
one-t�me fees or grants, such as cap�tal connect�on charges or cap�tal grants. Revenue sources 
such as these are �ncluded under non-operat�ng revenues. 

When both restr�cted and unrestr�cted resources are ava�lable for use, the County, when 
f�nanc�ally prudent to do so, ut�l�zes restr�cted resources to f�nance qual�fy�ng act�v�t�es f�rst, then 
unrestr�cted resources, as needed. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - The County follows certa�n procedures �n 
establ�sh�ng the budgetary data reflected �n the f�nanc�al statements.  Each County department, 
agency or board rece�v�ng County funds subm�ts a budget request to the Comm�ss�oners at a 
publ�c hear�ng.  Add�t�onal publ�c hear�ngs are conducted to obta�n taxpayer comments.  On or 
before July � of each year, the budget �s legally enacted through passage of a resolut�on. 

The D�rector of F�nance and Budget �s empowered to make adm�n�strat�ve transfers of 
appropr�at�ons w�th�n the current expense budget, w�th�n the same off�ce or department, between 
departments, agenc�es, boards or comm�ss�ons, �nter-project transfers of appropr�at�ons between 
cap�tal projects �n the cap�tal budget and the add�t�on of new budget �tems, �n the amount of not 
more than $�0,000. The County Adm�n�strator �s author�zed to transfer appropr�at�ons up to 
$��,000.  Any change �nvolv�ng more than $��,000 but less than $�00,000 can be approved by 
the Board of County Comm�ss�oners w�thout passage of a resolut�on. Any change total�ng more 
than $�00,000 may only be made by resolut�on approved by the Comm�ss�oners after compl�ance 
w�th certa�n publ�c hear�ng requ�rements. 

Formal budgetary �ntegrat�on �s employed as a management control dev�ce dur�ng the 
year for the General Fund, Spec�al Revenue Funds, Cap�tal Projects Fund, and Enterpr�se Funds.
Enterpr�se fund budgets are for management control only.  

The budget for the General Fund �s adopted on a bas�s cons�stent w�th GAAP except that, 
on a budgetary bas�s, encumbrances are treated as expend�tures rather than as a comm�tment of 
fund balance.  Budgetary compar�sons presented for the General Fund �n the bas�c f�nanc�al 
statements are prepared on the budgetary bas�s.  Budgetary control �s at the fund level. The 
Cap�tal Projects Fund budget �s prepared for the durat�on of the respect�ve projects and, 
accord�ngly, annual budgetary compar�sons are not presented �n the bas�c f�nanc�al statements 
and supplemental �nformat�on. 
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D.  Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets (Equity) 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - For purposes of the statements of cash flows, 
cash equ�valents are cons�dered to be �nvestments that are a) short-term, h�ghly l�qu�d 
�nvestments wh�ch are read�ly convert�ble to known amounts of cash; and b) so near matur�ty 
that the �nvestment presents �ns�gn�f�cant r�sk of changes �n value because of changes �n �nterest 
rates. 

 Investments �n cert�f�cates of depos�t, U.S. government obl�gat�ons, repurchase 
agreements and other �nvestments are carr�ed at fa�r value, wh�ch �s determ�ned on June �0 of 
each f�scal year. 

 Investments �n the pens�on trust funds (Volunteer F�re and Rescue Squad Pens�on Fund 
and Calvert County Sher�ff’s Department Pens�on Plan, the Calvert County Employees 
Ret�rement Plan and the Calvert County Maryland Other Post-Employment Benef�ts Trust) are 
carr�ed at fa�r value determ�ned on June �0 of each year, based on appra�sals or quotat�ons by an 
�ndependent �nvestment counselor. 

Use of Estimates - The preparat�on of f�nanc�al statements �n conform�ty w�th account�ng 
pr�nc�ples generally accepted �n the Un�ted States of Amer�ca requ�res management to make 
est�mates and assumpt�ons that affect the reported amounts of assets and l�ab�l�t�es, d�sclosure of 
cont�ngent assets and l�ab�l�t�es at the date of the f�nanc�al statements, and the reported amounts 
of revenue and expenses dur�ng the report�ng per�od.  Actual results could d�ffer from those 
est�mates. 

Long-Term Receivables - Long-term rece�vables relat�ng to governmental fund types are 
reported �n the respect�ve balance sheets �n sp�te of the spend�ng measurement focus.  These 
rece�vables however, are offset by nonspendable fund balance account to �nd�cate they should 
not be cons�dered ava�lable spendable resources s�nce they do not represent net current assets. 

Inventory - Inventory �s valued at the lower of cost (f�rst-�n, f�rst-out method) or market.  
The �nventor�es are recorded as expend�tures when consumed rather than when purchased.  
Governmental fund type �nventor�es are offset by a nonspendable fund balance account, wh�ch 
�nd�cates that �nventory does not const�tute "ava�lable spendable resources," even though �t �s a 
component of net current assets. 

Capital Assets - All cap�tal assets are valued at h�stor�cal cost or est�mated h�stor�cal cost 
�f actual h�stor�cal cost �s not ava�lable. Contr�buted cap�tal assets are valued at est�mated fa�r 
market value on the date contr�buted.  The County currently def�nes cap�tal assets as assets w�th 
an �n�t�al cost of $�,000 or more and an est�mated useful l�fe of more than one year.  In pr�or 
years the cap�tal asset threshold was $�,000.  Those pr�or year assets are st�ll recorded as cap�tal 
assets. Assets are deprec�ated us�ng the stra�ght-l�ne method over the est�mated useful l�fe of the 
asset.  The table on the next page �s a general gu�del�ne for determ�n�ng the est�mated useful l�fe 
of assets: 
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Bu�ld�ngs            ��-�0 years Mach�nery and equ�pment   �-�0 years 
Improvements            ��-�0 years Veh�cles             �-� years 
Water and Sewer Systems    �0-�0 years Computers     � years 

The purpose of deprec�at�on �s to spread the cost of cap�tal assets equ�tably among all 
users over the l�fe of these assets.  The amount charged to deprec�at�on expense each year 
represents that year’s pro rata share of the cost of cap�tal assets.  

W�th the �mplementat�on of GASB Statement ��, the County has recorded �ts publ�c 
doma�n (�nfrastructure) cap�tal assets, wh�ch �nclude roads, br�dges, curbs and gutters, streets and 
s�dewalks, dra�nage systems and l�ght�ng systems. 

Accumulated Annual, Personal and Sick Leave Benefits - County employees are granted 
annual leave at vary�ng rates based upon years of serv�ce.  The carry�ng amount of accumulated 
annual leave may not exceed a max�mum of �00 days on a calendar year bas�s. In add�t�on, �� 
days of s�ck leave and � days of personal leave are granted annually.  Upon term�nat�on or 
ret�rement, all annual and personal leave accrued to the cred�t of an employee �s pa�d.  The 
amount of accrued s�ck leave payable �s based upon the employee’s full-t�me status. The s�ck 
leave can be pa�d to the employee or cred�ted to the�r ret�rement benef�t upon meet�ng ret�rement 
el�g�b�l�ty �n the appl�cable def�ned benef�t pens�on plan. For ��-hour per week employees, one-
fourth of the accrued s�ck leave up to �00 hours plus one-half of the accrued s�ck leave over �00 
hours w�ll be pa�d to the employees The �0-hour per week employees rece�ve one-fourth of the 
accrued s�ck leave up to �00 hours plus one-half of the accrued s�ck leave over �00 hours. 

Deferred Compensation Plan - The County has establ�shed a deferred compensat�on plan 
�n accordance w�th Internal Revenue Code Sect�on ���, and adm�n�stered by Nat�onw�de 
Ret�rement Solut�ons.  All County employees may part�c�pate �n the plan and defer a port�on of 
the�r salary, subject to l�m�tat�ons �mposed by the Internal Revenue Serv�ce.  In September ����, 
the County amended the plan �n accordance w�th the prov�s�ons of IRC Sect�on ���(g).  The 
assets of the plan were placed �n an �ndependent trust for the exclus�ve benef�t of part�c�pants and 
the�r benef�c�ar�es.  The requ�rements of that IRC Sect�on prescr�bes that the County no longer 
owns the amounts deferred by employees, �nclud�ng the related �ncome on those amounts.  
Accord�ngly, the assets and the l�ab�l�ty for the compensat�on deferred by plan part�c�pants, 
�nclud�ng earn�ngs on plan assets, were removed from the County's f�nanc�al statements.  The 
plan assets w�ll not be subject to the cla�ms of the publ�c ent�ty's cred�tors. 

Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations – OPEB - In f�scal year �00� the County 
adopted, GASB Statement No. �� - Account�ng and F�nanc�al Report�ng by Employers for Post-
employment Benef�ts Other Than Pens�ons, wh�ch requ�red that employers account for and 
report the annual cost of OPEB and the outstand�ng obl�gat�ons and comm�tments related to 
OPEB �n essent�ally the same manner as pens�ons. Annual OPEB cost �s based on actuar�ally 
determ�ned amounts that, �f pa�d on an ongo�ng bas�s, generally would prov�de suff�c�ent 
resources to pay benef�ts as those benef�ts are due.

Pension Accounting - Employee contr�but�ons are recogn�zed �n the Pens�on Trust Funds 
�n the per�od the contr�but�ons are due. Employer contr�but�ons are recogn�zed when due and the 
County has made a formal comm�tment to prov�de the contr�but�ons.  Benef�ts and refunds are 
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recogn�zed when due and payable �n accordance w�th the terms of each plan.  Adm�n�strat�ve 
costs are funded from �nvestment �ncome.   

 Any net pens�on obl�gat�on or asset �s calculated on an actuar�al bas�s cons�stent w�th the 
requ�rements of GASB Statement No. �� – Account�ng for Pens�ons by State and Local 
Governmental Employers.  Expend�tures are recogn�zed when are pa�d or are expected to be pa�d 
w�th current ava�lable resources.  The net pens�on obl�gat�on (asset) �s reported �n the 
government-w�de f�nanc�al statements. 

Interfund Transfers - The transfers �n to the General Fund are for cap�tal projects that 
have been closed out, the transfer from exc�se tax fund to cover a port�on of debt serv�ce, and 
one-t�me fund balance transfers from spec�al revenue funds. The transfer out from the General 
Fund �s for operat�ng, d�sbursement of grant match�ng funds and pay-go mon�es.  

Encumbrances - Encumbrance account�ng, under wh�ch purchase orders, contracts, and 
other comm�tments for the expend�ture of mon�es are recorded �n order to reserve that port�on of 
the appl�cable appropr�at�on, �s employed as an extens�on of formal budgetary �ntegrat�on �n the 
General Fund, Spec�al Revenue Funds, Cap�tal Projects Fund, and Enterpr�se Funds.
Encumbrances outstand�ng at year end are reported as comm�tted fund balances and do not 
const�tute expend�tures or l�ab�l�t�es because the comm�tments w�ll be honored dur�ng a 
subsequent year. 

Long –Term Obligations – In the government-w�de f�nanc�al statements and �n the 
propr�etary fund f�nanc�al statements, long-term debt and other obl�gat�ons are reported as 
l�ab�l�t�es.  Bond prem�ums and d�scounts, as well as �ssuance costs, are deferred and amort�zed 
over the l�fe of the bonds us�ng the bonds outstand�ng method wh�ch approx�mates the effect�ve 
�nterest method. 

Equity – deta�led �nformat�on on the presentat�on of Net Assets for the government-w�de 
and bus�ness-type funds �s located page ��.  Informat�on regard�ng the �mplementat�on of GASB 
No. �� as �t relates to the governmental fund balance presentat�on �s located on page ��. 

Stabilization Arrangement – Dur�ng the f�scal year ended June �0, �0��, the County 
�mplemented GASB Statement No. �� – Fund Balance and Governmental Fund Type Def�n�t�ons 
wh�ch requ�red an establ�shment of pol�cy by formal act�on.  Th�s formal act�on �mposes the 
parameters and �dent�f�es the spec�f�c c�rcumstances and need for stab�l�zat�on, and these 
c�rcumstances are non-rout�ne �n nature. 

Establishment/Elimination of Funds – Due to the �mplementat�on of GASB Statement 
No. �� – Fund Balance and Governmental Fund Type Def�n�t�ons wh�ch updated the def�n�t�ons 
and cr�ter�a for Spec�al Revenue Funds, the County el�m�nated two spec�al revenue funds: Project 
Graduat�on and the Hous�ng Fund. These two funds are now presented as part of the General 
Fund.
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Note 2 - Property Taxes

 Property taxes attach an enforceable l�en on property as of July �.  Taxes are lev�ed each 
July � and the taxpayer has the opt�on to pay �n full w�thout �nterest by September �0 or to pay 
the b�ll sem�annually.  In sem�-annual b�lls, the f�rst payment �s payable w�thout �nterest by 
September �0 and the second payment, �nclud�ng a serv�ce charge, �s payable w�thout �nterest by 
December ��.  Interest �s charged for each month or fract�on thereof �n wh�ch taxes rema�n 
unpa�d beg�nn�ng October � on accounts under the annual payment opt�on, or January � for 
accounts under the sem�annual payment opt�on.  Maryland law grants the Treasurer of Calvert 
County the power to advert�se and sell any real property �f the taxes rema�n del�nquent for a 
per�od of one year.

 Property taxes are lev�ed at rates enacted by the Comm�ss�oners �n the annual budget 
based on the assessed value of the property as determ�ned by the Maryland State Department of 
Assessments and Taxat�on, an agency of the government of the State of Maryland.  The rates of 
levy cannot exceed the constant y�eld tax rate furn�shed by the Maryland State Department of 
Assessments and Taxat�on w�thout publ�c not�ce and then only after publ�c hear�ngs.

The real property tax rate dur�ng the year ended June �0, �0��, was $.��� per $�00 of 
assessed value based on the full valuat�on method, except that w�th�n the two �ncorporated towns, 
North Beach and Chesapeake Beach, the rate was $.��� per $�00 of assessed value based on the 
full valuat�on method.  The personal property tax rate dur�ng the year ended June �0, �0�� was 
$�.�� per $�00 of assessed value except that w�th�n the two �ncorporated towns, North Beach 
and Chesapeake Beach, the rate was $�.��.  The County b�lls and collects all property taxes. 
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Note 3 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

A. Primary Government 

Cash on Hand

At June �0, �0��, cash on hand for petty cash and change was $�,���. 

Pol�c�es and Prov�s�ons

General Deposits - The County has agreements w�th �ts depos�tory f�nanc�al �nst�tut�ons, 
wh�ch requ�re all depos�ts to be e�ther �nsured by the Federal Depos�t Insurance Corporat�on or 
collateral�zed.  The County has an agreement w�th Bank of Amer�ca to collateral�ze ��0% of 
depos�ts.  At June �0, �0�� the net carry�ng amount and the bank balances of the County's 
depos�ts w�th f�nanc�al �nst�tut�ons were $���,��� and $�0,���,���, respect�vely, all of wh�ch 
was covered by federal depos�tory �nsurance or collateral held by a th�rd party custod�an �n a 
segregated account for the benef�t of Calvert County. 

 Fore�gn r�sk related to depos�ts �s managed by allow�ng no more than $�,000,000 or �0% 
of the total �nvestment portfol�o to be �nvested w�th f�nanc�al �nst�tut�ons res�d�ng �n a s�ngle 
fore�gn country.  At June �0, �0��, no depos�ts were �n fore�gn currency. 

General Investments -  The County's pol�cy for �nvestments, as set by publ�c code, �s to 
�nvest �n secur�t�es that are �ssued by the Un�ted States Government or any agency thereof, 
cert�f�cates of depos�t, bankers' acceptances, any and all �nvestments generally recogn�zed as 
"money market �nstruments," secur�t�es �ssued by any state or mun�c�pal government, secur�t�es 
�ssued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporat�on (FHLMC), secur�t�es �ssued by the 
Government Nat�onal Mortgage Assoc�at�on (GNMA), repurchase agreements, and reverse 
repurchase agreements.  The County's �ntent �s not to redeem any �nvestment unt�l the market 
value �s at least equal to the carry�ng value.   

The County manages concentrat�on r�sk by us�ng l�m�ts, stated �n percentages and/or 
dollars, for �nvestment classes (noted above) that are not federally �nsured.  The County’s pol�cy 
on cred�t r�sk �s to only allow for Bankers’ Acceptances of domest�c and fore�gn banks that 
ma�nta�n the h�ghest short-term depos�t rat�ng from Standard & Poor’s (A-�) and/or Moody’s (P-
�).  These rat�ngs are also requ�red for Repurchase Agreements.  Repurchase Agreements are 
requ�red to be collateral�zed at �0�%. 

In order to l�m�t exposure to �nterest rate r�sk, the County’s �nvestment pol�cy prov�des 
that �nvestment matur�t�es �n any perm�tted �nvestment shall not exceed �� months �n durat�on 
unless pr�or approval �s rece�ved from the D�rector of F�nance and Budget, or a des�gnee.  
Investment �n secur�t�es exceed�ng �� months �n durat�on shall not exceed �0% of the total 
�nvestment portfol�o at the t�me of purchase.  

Fiduciary Fund Investments - The Calvert County Post Employment Benef�t Plan, the 
Volunteer F�re and Rescue Squad Pens�on Plan, the Calvert County Sher�ff’s Department 
Pens�on Plan and the Calvert County Employees Ret�rement Plan are author�zed to �nvest �n 
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common stocks, corporate bonds and any other secur�t�es �n vary�ng proport�ons when and for as 
long as, �n the op�n�on of the respect�ve Plan Trustees, preva�l�ng market and econom�c 
cons�derat�ons �nd�cate that �t �s �n the best �nterest of the respect�ve Plan to do so.  Note � 
presents the deta�ls of the pens�on plans start�ng on page ��. 

Land Preservation Fund – The Land Preservat�on Fund �s �nvested �n U.S Treasury Str�ps 
(U.S. Treasury Bonds w�th the coupon/�nterest payment removed). The earl�est matur�ty date of 
any of the bonds �n th�s fund �s August ��, �0��.  The latest matur�ty date �s May ��, �0��.  Th�s 
fund has no �nterest rate r�sk because each of the bonds was purchased to pay a spec�f�c 
obl�gat�on.  The matur�ty date and amount of the bond co�nc�des w�th the due date of the 
obl�gat�on.

Interest Rate R�sk

The follow�ng schedule presents the �nterest rate r�sk (�ncreas�ng �nterest rates decrease 
the value of the bonds) based on matur�ty of the bonds held. 

Maturities Maturities

Cash and Equ�valents  $  �0�,���,��� �-�0 years           �,0��,��� 
Less than � year           �,�0�,�0� �0-�� years           �,0�0,��� 
�-� years        ��,��0,��� ��-�0 years                        -   

            Total  $   ���,���,��� 

Fore�gn Currency R�sk

The follow�ng schedule shows the pens�on plans’ exposure to fore�gn currency r�sk.  Th�s 
r�sk �s created by the ownersh�p of Amer�can Depos�tory Rece�pts (ADR).  ADRs are stocks that 
trade �n the Un�ted States but represent a spec�f�ed number of shares �n a fore�gn corporat�on. 
ADRs are bought and sold on Amer�can markets just l�ke regular stocks, and are 
�ssued/sponsored �n the U.S. by a bank or brokerage.  Because the value of an ADR �s der�ved 
from the value of the fore�gn share pr�ce, fluctuat�ons �n that currency exchange rate create 
changes �n value. Calvert County currently has no formal pol�cy relat�ng to fore�gn currency r�sk 
�n the pens�on plans. 

Country Total Exposure Country Total Exposure

Un�ted K�ngdom �,���,���$      Portugal ���,���
Netherlands ��0,���           Mex�co �0�,���
Sw�tzerland ���,���           Japan �,���,��0
Spa�n ���,���           France �,���,���
Germany ���,���           Italy �,���,���
New Zealand ��,���             Korea ��0,���

Total ��,���,�0�$
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Carry�ng Value

The carry�ng value of all the County’s cash and �nvestments as of June �0, �0�� 
�s summar�zed �n the follow�ng table: 

Cash, Cash Equivalent    
or Investment Type Fair Value

Cash, Cash Equivalent or 
Investment Type Fair Value

U.S. Agency Obl�gat�ons ��,���,��0$        Other spec�al equ�ty �,�0�,���            
U.S. Treasury Str�ps �,���,���            Petty cash �,���                   
Corporate obl�gat�ons ��,���,���               Total * ���,�0�,���$      
Common stock ��,���,���           
Equ�ty and bond funds ��,���,���             Unrestr�cted ���,���,���$      
Money market mutual funds ��,���,���             Restr�cted ��,���,�0�          
Cert�f�cates of depos�t ���,���               * ���,�0�,���$      
Cash �n banks �0,���,���          *Includes agency fund cash of $��,���

B. Component Units 

Econom�c Development Author�ty

The Author�ty follows the �nvestment pol�c�es of the County.  Its �nvestments at June �0, 
�0�� totaled $�,���,��� and cons�sted of money market mutual funds.  

Board of Educat�on

Deposits - At June �0, �0��, the carry�ng amount and bank balances of the Board’s 
depos�ts w�th f�nanc�al �nst�tut�ons totaled $��,0��,��� and $��,���,��0, respect�vely.  All bank 
depos�ts are covered by Federal Depos�t Insurance and/or collateral held �n the Board’s name at 
the Federal Reserve.   

Investments - At June �0, �0�� the Board had �nvested $�,���,��0 �n governmental 
act�v�t�es and $�,���,��� �n bus�ness-type act�v�t�es �n the Maryland Local Government 
Investment Pool (MLGIP).  MLGIP �s rated AAAm by Standard and Poors, the agency’s h�ghest 
rat�ng for money market funds.   

Investment Rate Risk and Custodial Credit Risk - Fa�r Value fluctuates w�th �nterest rates. 
To l�m�t the Board’s exposure to fa�r value losses ar�s�ng from �ncreas�ng �nterest rates, the 
Board’s �nvestment pol�cy l�m�ts the term of �nvestment matur�t�es to overn�ght repurchase 
agreements and requ�res that collateral secur�t�es underly�ng the repurchase agreements have a 
market value of at least �0�% of the cost of the agreement.  To reduce custod�al cred�t r�sk, the 
Board l�m�ts �ts �nvestments to overn�ght depos�ts that are �nsured or collateral�zed w�th 
secur�t�es held by a custod�an �n the Board’s name and �nvestments �n the MLGIP.  
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Note 4 - Notes Receivable

A.  Primary Government 

General Fund

 The Affordable Hous�ng Program – the County under th�s program has a �0 year loan set 
up to fund a part�c�pant �n the County’s Water and Sewer Ass�stance Program. Th�s note �n�t�ated 
�n FY�00�, w�ll mature �n FY�0�� and bears �nterest at �% per annum. Pr�nc�pal and �nterest 
payments are due monthly. At June �0, �0��, $�,��� �s outstand�ng. 

Also, under th�s program the County has made a $�00,000 loan to the Hous�ng Author�ty 
of Calvert County for gap f�nanc�ng of the Project Echo homeless shelter. It �s non-�nterest 
bear�ng, and the debt �s scheduled for repayment �n �ts ent�rety w�th�n f�ve years of the note 
�n�t�at�on �n August �00�. 

Volunteer F�re Department and Rescue Squads - The County f�nances purchases of 
equ�pment by the volunteer f�re department and rescue squads.  To ma�nta�n control over the 
equ�pment purchased, the County Comm�ss�oners create non-�nterest bear�ng notes rece�vable, 
secured by the equ�pment, w�th three to twenty-n�ne year terms.  Deferred revenue �s also 
recorded for the total amount of the notes rece�vable.  Repayment of the notes does not �nvolve 
cash transact�ons, but �s ach�eved by reduc�ng notes rece�vable and deferred revenue based upon 
the value of serv�ces rendered by the f�re and/or rescue compan�es over the l�ves of the notes.  
Notes rece�vable from f�re and/or rescue compan�es at June �0, �0��, was $�,���,���.  See 
deta�led schedule at page ��. 

Parks and Recreat�on Fund - The General Fund has an $��,000 note rece�vable from the 
Parks and Recreat�on Fund �n the form of an �nterest-free note s�gned �n �00�.  Pr�nc�pal �s 
payable annually beg�nn�ng June �, �00� through matur�ty on June �, �0��.  At June �0, �0��, 
$�,�00 �s outstand�ng. 

The General Fund has a $���,000 note rece�vable from the Parks and Recreat�on Fund �n 
the form of an �nterest-free note s�gned �n �00�.  Pr�nc�pal �s payable annually beg�nn�ng June �, 
�00� through matur�ty on June �, �0��. At June �0, �0��, $���,�00 �s outstand�ng. 

Water and Sewer Fund

The Water and Sewer Fund’s Due to the General Fund balance �ncludes $�,���,��� that 
has been reclass�f�ed to an advance over the last three f�scal years.  Th�s advance �s not expected 
to be repa�d w�th�n the next twelve months.  Th�s amount �s planned fund�ng for the Water and 
Sewer Fund as rate adjustments cont�nue, as requ�red to balance the budget. 

Funds prev�ously advanced by the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund for the 
Dares Beach Water Supply Project were converted to a note.  The note calls for annual payments 
of $��,��� �nclud�ng �nterest at �.�%, commenc�ng June �0, ���0 through matur�ty �n �0��.  At 
June �0, �0��, outstand�ng pr�nc�pal amounted to $���,��� and �s offset by a nonspendable fund 
balance to �nd�cate these funds are not ava�lable, spendable resources. 
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Funds prev�ously advanced by the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund for the 
Pr�nce Freder�ck Water and Sewer System were converted to an �nterest-free note �n ����.
Pr�nc�pal �s payable annually beg�nn�ng January �, ���� through matur�ty on January �, �0��.  
At June �0, �0��, $���,��� �s outstand�ng, and �s offset by a nonspendable fund balance to 
�nd�cate these funds are not ava�lable, spendable resources.

The Water and Sewer Fund has a note rece�vable from the Calvert County Detent�on 
Center and three Publ�c Ut�l�ty Payment Plans w�th developers, of wh�ch the total amount 
outstand�ng at June �0, �0�� was $���,���.

Economic Development Authority Revolving Loan Fund

Dur�ng F�scal year �00� a f�ve-year, $�0,000 loan was made to Southern Maryland 
Bus�ness Center. The note bears �nterest at �.�% per annum.  Pr�nc�pal �s payable monthly, 
beg�nn�ng July �00� through matur�ty �n June �0��.  At June �0, �0��, $��,�0� �s outstand�ng. 

Dur�ng F�scal year �0�0 a f�ve-year, $��,000 loan was made to L�ttle Proteges Inc. The 
note bears �nterest at �.�% per annum.  Pr�nc�pal �s payable monthly, beg�nn�ng July �0�0 
through matur�ty �n June �0��.  At June �0, �0��, $��,��� �s outstand�ng. 

Economic Development Incentive Fund

Dur�ng F�scal year �00� a f�ve-year, $�00,000 loan was made to Kelly Generator Inc. 
The note bears �nterest at �.0% per annum.  Pr�nc�pal �s payable monthly, beg�nn�ng September 
�00� through matur�ty �n August �0��.  At June �0, �0��, $���,��� �s outstand�ng. 

B. Component Unit 

Economic Development Authority - The Author�ty has a $��,�00 note rece�vable from 
George Larry Burdette and Karen Lynn Burdette related to the sale of lot number �0A, wh�ch 
was land held for resale.  Th�s note �s secured by a deed of trust on the property.  The note bears 
�nterest at �.�% per annum. Pr�nc�pal and �nterest payments of $��0 are due monthly beg�nn�ng 
January �000 and cont�nu�ng monthly unt�l December ��, �0��.  As of June �0, �0��, the note 
balance �s $��,0��. 

 The Author�ty has a $��,�00 note rece�vable from Shadow Stone, LLC related to the sale 
of lot number �0B, wh�ch was land held for resale.  Th�s note �s secured by a deed of trust on the 
property.  The note bears �nterest at �.� % per annum.  Pr�nc�pal and �nterest payments of $��0 
are due monthly beg�nn�ng �n January �000, and cont�nu�ng monthly unt�l December ��, �0��.  
As of June �0, �0��, the note balance �s $��,0��. 

 The Author�ty has a $��,��� note rece�vable from Cutter Court, LLC related to the sale 
of lot number ��, wh�ch was land held for resale.  Th�s note �s secured by a deed of trust on the 
property.  The note bears �nterest at �% per annum.  Pr�nc�pal and �nterest payments of $��0 are 
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due beg�nn�ng �n December ����, and cont�nu�ng monthly unt�l November ��, �0��. As of June 
�0, �0��, the note balance �s $�,���. 

 The Author�ty has a $���,��0 note rece�vable from R.A. B., LLC related to the sale of lot 
number �� CCIP, wh�ch was land held for resale.  Th�s note �s secured by a deed of trust on the 
property.  The note bears �nterest at � % per annum.  All pr�nc�pal and accrued �nterest were 
payable �n full on June ��, �0��, prov�ded certa�n cond�t�ons have been met �n accordance w�th 
the Agreement of Purchase and Sale, the pr�nc�pal and accrued �nterest maybe forg�ven.  Th�s 
matter has subsequently been turned over to legal to ver�fy �f those cond�t�ons have been met. 
The accrued �nterest rece�vable on th�s note at June �0, �0�� �s $��,0��. The ga�n on th�s land 
sale and the accrued �nterest are �ncluded �n deferred revenue due to the loan forg�veness 
prov�s�on �n the loan document. 
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Note 5 - Interfund Accounts and Transfers

Interfund accounts represent act�v�ty between funds that are representat�ve of 
lend�ng/borrow�ng arrangements that are outstand�ng at the end of the year and where repayment 
�s expected w�th�n a reasonable t�me.  These accounts are also referred to as due to/from other 
funds.  Most depos�ts and cash d�sbursements are processed us�ng the General Fund bank 
account.  These depos�t and cash d�sbursement transact�ons create the �nterfund balances.

At June �0, �0��, the �nterfund account balances were as shown below: 

Due From Due To
Primary Government:

General Fund
      Spec�al Revenue Funds -$                     �,���,���$          
      Cap�tal Projects Fund -                        ��,0��,���          
      Enterpr�se Funds �,��0,��0              �,���,���            

�,��0,��0              ��,���,���          
Spec�al Revenue Funds
      General Fund �,���,���              -                       
Cap�tal Projects Fund
      General Fund ��,0��,���            -                       
Enterpr�se Funds
      General Fund �,���,���              �,��0,��0            

��,��0,0��$          ��,��0,0��$        

 Component Units:
   Pr�mary government – General Fund -$                      ��,0��,���$        
   Pr�mary government – Cap�tal Projects -                        ���,��0               
   Component un�t – Board of Educat�on ��,���,��0            -                       
   Component un�t – Econom�c Development Author�ty ���,���                 -                       

��,��0,���$          ��,��0,���$        

Dur�ng the f�scal year ended June �0, �0��, the �nterfund transfers were as follows:
Primary Government:

Governmental Funds Transfers in Transfers out
      Spec�al Revenue Funds �,���,���$            �,���,���$          
      Cap�tal Projects Fund �,���,���              -                       
      General Fund �,0�0,000              ��,���,���          

��,���,���            ��,���,���          
Propr�etary Funds
      Water and Sewer Fund -                        -                       
      Sol�d Waste Fund �0,0��                   -                       
      Nonmajor propr�etary funds �,���,���              -                       

�,���,��0              -                       
Total Transfers ��,���,���$          ��,���,���$        
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Note 6 - Capital Assets

A. Primary Government

A summary of changes �n cap�tal assets are as follows: 

Balance Deductions/ Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions Reclassifications June 30, 2011

Governmental activities:
Cap�tal assets, not be�ng deprec�ated

Construct�on �n Progress �,���,���$          ��,���,���$      (��,���,���)$     �,���,���$          
Land Development R�ghts �0,���,�0�          ���,�00             -                         ��,���,�0�
Land �0,���,���          �,�00                 -                         �0,���,���

�0,0��,���          ��,���,���        (��,���,���)       ��,���,���

Cap�tal assets, be�ng deprec�ated
Bu�ld�ngs ��,���,�0�          �,���,���          (�,���,��0)         ��,��0,���
Improvements ��,���,��0          �,���,���          -                         ��,���,���
Mach�nery & Equ�pment ��,���,���          �,�00,���          (�,���,���)         ��,���,���
Infrastructure �0�,�0�,���        �,���,���          -                         ���,���,���

���,���,���        ��,���,���        (�,���,���)         ���,���,���

Less accumulated deprec�at�on for:
Bu�ld�ngs (��,���,���)        (�,00�,���)        �,��0,���           (��,���,���)
Improvements (�,���,�0�)          (�,���,��0)        -                         (��,���,���)
Mach�nery & Equ�pment (�0,���,���)        (�,���,0��)        �,���,���           (��,���,�0�)
Infrastructure (��,�0�,���)        (�,���,0��)        -                         (��,���,��0)

(�0�,���,���)      (�0,���,���)      �,0��,���           (���,���,���)
Total cap�tal assets, 
         be�ng deprec�ated, net ���,���,�0�        �,���,���          (�,�0�,���)         ���,���,���
Governmental act�v�t�es
        cap�tal assets, net ���,���,���$      �0,0��,��0$      (��,���,���)$     ��0,���,���$      

Business-type activities:
Cap�tal assets, not be�ng deprec�ated

Construct�on �n Progress ���,���$             �,���,���$        -$                       �,���,���$          
Land �,���,�0�            -                        -                         �,���,�0�

�,���,0��            �,���,���          -                         �,��0,���

Cap�tal assets, be�ng deprec�ated
Bu�ld�ngs ��,���,���          �,���                 -                         ��,���,���
Improvements ��,���,���          ���,���             -                         ��,��0,���
Mach�nery & Equ�pment �,���,���            ���,0��             (��,���)              �,�0�,0��

��,���,���          �0�,���             (��,���)              ��,���,�0�

Less accumulated deprec�at�on for:
Bu�ld�ngs (��,���,���)        (�,���,���)        -                         (��,��0,���)
Improvements (�,0��,���)          (���,���)           -                         (�,���,���)
Mach�nery & Equ�pment (�,0��,���)          (���,���)           ��,���                (�,���,���)

(��,���,���)        (�,�0�,���)        ��,���                (��,���,���)
Total cap�tal assets,
        be�ng deprec�ated, net ��,���,���          (�,���,���)        -                         �0,���,���
Bus�ness-type act�v�t�es
        cap�tal assets, net ��,���,���$        ���,���$           -$                       ��,���,���$        
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B. Component Units:

Board of Education 

A summary of changes �n cap�tal assets for the year ended June �0, �0�� as follows: 

Balance Retirements/ Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions Reclassifications June 30, 2011

Governmental activities:
Cap�tal assets, not be�ng deprec�ated

Land �,���,���$          -$                         -$                            �,���,���$           
Construct�on �n progress ��,���,���          ��,���,���          (��,��0,���)            �0,���,���           

��,���,�0�          ��,���,���          (��,��0,���)            ��,�0�,���           
Cap�tal assets, be�ng deprec�ated

Bu�ld�ngs and �mprovements ��0,���,�0�        -                           ��,0��,���             ���,���,���         
Land �mprovements �,���,���            ��,���                 (��,�00)                   �,���,���             
Equ�pment �,���,0��            �,���,���            (�0,��0)                   �,�0�,���             

���,���,���        �,�0�,���            ��,���,���             ���,�0�,���         
Less accumulated deprec�at�on for:

Bu�ld�ngs and �mprovements (��,���,���)         (�,��0,���)           �,���,���               (��,��0,���)          
Land �mprovements (�,0��,���)           (��0,���)              ��,0��                    (�,�0�,���)            
Equ�pment (�,���,0��)           (�0�,���)              �0,��0                    (�,���,���)            

(��,���,0��)         (�,���,���)           �,���,���               (��,���,�0�)          
Total cap�tal assets, 
         be�ng deprec�ated, net ���,�0�,���        (�,���,���)           ��,���,���             ���,���,���         
Governmental act�v�t�es 
       cap�tal assets, net �00,0��,���$      ��,0��,���$        (���,���)$               ���,���,��0$       

Business-type activities:
Equ�pment at h�stor�cal cost �,�00,���$          ��,���$               -$                            �,��0,���$           

Less accumulated deprec�at�on (�,���,���)           (��,00�)                -                              (�,��0,���)            
Bus�ness-type act�v�t�es
       cap�tal assets, net �0�,��0$             (��,���)$              -$                            ��0,���$              

Economic Development Authority
Land ��,���$               -$                         -$                            ��,���$                
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Component Units, continued 

Board of Education 

The Board’s act�ve school construct�on projects as of June �0, �0�� as follows:

Spent to Date Commitment
Calvert H�gh �0,���,���$   �,���,��0$       
Calvert M�ddle -                ��,0��

Total �0,���,���$   �,���,���$       

These projects are funded pr�mar�ly by cap�tal grants from Calvert County and the State of 
Maryland.

Deprec�at�on expense for the year ended June �0, �0�� for Calvert County and component un�ts 
(Board of Educat�on and Econom�c Development Author�ty) were as follows: 

Primary Government: Component Units:
Governmental activities: Board of Education - governmental activities:

General government �,���,���$       Instruct�on:
Publ�c safety �,���,���         Regular educat�on ���,���$        
Publ�c works �,0�0,0��         Spec�al educat�on ��,���            
Health and hosp�tals ��,0��              Support serv�ces:
Soc�al serv�ces ��,���              Adm�n�strat�on ���,���          
Recreat�on and culture �,���,���         M�d-level adm�n�strat�on ���                 
M�scellaneous ��0                   Transportat�on �,0��              

Total �0,���,���$     Operat�on of plant and equ�pment �,���,���       

Business-type activities: Ma�ntenance of plant ��,0��            
Water and Sewer �,0��,���$       Total �,���,���$     

Sol�d Waste and Recycl�ng ���,���            Board of Education - business-type activities:
Mar�ne Museum ���,���            Food serv�ces ��,00�$          

Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course ���,��0            
�,�0�,���$       Economic Development: -$                    
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Note 7 - Long-Term Obligations

A.  Primary Government 

Changes �n Long-term Obl�gat�ons

The follow�ng �s a summary of the changes �n long-term obl�gat�ons of the County for the 
year ended June �0, �0��. 

Amounts 
Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Deductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:

Bonds and Notes Payable
     General Obl�gat�on Bonds (�) ���,0��,��0$      ��,���,000$      (�0,���,���)$     ���,��0,���$      ��,���,�0�$      
     Notes Payable (�) �,���,���            -                     (�,0��,���)         ���,0��               ��,���               
     Land Preservat�on Program �0,���,�0�          ���,�00             (���,��0)            �0,���,���          �,���,�00          
Other L�ab�l�t�es:
     Landf�ll Closure Costs ��0,000               -                     (�0,000)              ��0,000               �0,000               
     Compensated Absences �,0��,���            �,���,���          (�,���,�00)         �,0��,��0            ���,���             

Total ���,���,���$      ��,���,���$      (��,���,���)$     ���,���,���$      ��,���,0��$      

Business-type activities:
Bonds and Notes Payable
     General Obl�gat�on Bonds (�) �,��0,���$          �,0��,���$        (���,���)$          �,���,�0�$          ���,���$           
     Notes Payable (�) �,���,���            -                     (���,�0�)            �,���,���            ���,���             
Other L�ab�l�t�es:
     Landf�ll Closure Costs �,���,���            -                     -                     �,���,���            -                     
     Compensated Absences ���,���               ��,���               (��0,���)            ���,���               �00,000             

Total ��,���,���$        �,0��,���$        (�,�0�,���)$       ��,���,��0$        �,���,���$        

(�) Ind�cates debt �ssued for the purpose of acqu�r�ng cap�tal assets.  
(�) Represents debt used for other governmental purposes. 
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Obl�gat�on Balances and Terms – Governmental Act�v�t�es

Long-term obl�gat�ons as of June �0, �0��, cons�st of the follow�ng: 

For governmental act�v�t�es, compensated absences are generally l�qu�dated by the 
governmental fund to wh�ch the l�ab�l�ty relates. 

Governmental
Amount Due Act�v�t�es

Bond Descr�pt�on and Year Borrowed Rate ser�ally through Balance
Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es ��,��0,000$     �% - �% January �, �0�� ��0,000$         

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es �0,���,000       �% - �% July ��, �0��         ��,�0�,000 

Refund�ng Bonds, �00� Ser�es (replaced the ���� Ser�es bonds) ��,���,0�0     �% - �% July ��, �0��           �,���,��0 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es �,��0,000       �% - �% Apr�l �, �0��           �,���,000 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es �,���,000       �.���% - �.�% Apr�l �, �0�0           �,��0,000 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es �0,���,000     �% - �% Apr�l �, �0��           �,��0,000 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es ��,��0,000       �% - �% Apr�l �, �0��         ��,���,000 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es ��,��0,000     �% - �% Apr�l �,�0��         ��,���,000 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �00� Ser�es ��,���,000       �% - �.�% Apr�l �,�0�� ��,���,000

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �0�0 Ser�es ��,���,���     �% - �% July �, �0�� ��,���,���

Refund�ng Bonds, �0�0 Ser�es (replaced the �00� Ser�es bonds) �,�00,000         �% - �% January �, �0�� �,�00,000

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �0�� Ser�es ��,���,���     �% - �% May �, �0�� ��,���,000

Waterway Improvement Projects

Spr�ng Cove ���� Loan ��,���           �% - �% July �, �0�� �,�0�

Shore Erosion Control

Western Shores (non-�nterest bear�ng) ���,0��          n/a July �, �0�� ��,���

Mears Creek (non-�nterest bear�ng) ��,���           n/a July �, �0�� �,���

Solomons Un�ted Method�st Church (non-�nterest bear�ng) ��,��0             n/a July �, �0�� �0,���

Our Lady Star of the Sea (non-�nterest bear�ng) ��,���           n/a July �, �0�� ��,��0

Other

The Land Preservat�on Program �0,���,���     �% - �% �0,���,���

Detent�on Center Note (non-�nterest bear�ng) ���,�0�            June �, �0�� ��,��0

Total General Obl�gat�on Bonds and Notes Rece�vables ���,���,��0    ���,��0,���

Est�mated Landf�ll Postclosure Costs ��0,000

Accumulated Unpa�d Employee Leave �,0��,��0

Total Governmental Act�v�t�es ���,���,��0$    ���,���,���$    
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Obl�gat�on Balances and Terms – Bus�ness-Type Act�v�t�es

Long-term obl�gat�ons as of June �0, �0��, cons�st of the follow�ng: 
Bus�ness-Type

Amount Due Act�v�t�es
Bond Descr�pt�on and Year Borrowed Rate ser�ally through Balance
Business-Type Activities

General Obligation Bonds - Water and Sewer

Refund�ng Bonds, �00� Ser�es (replaced the ���� Ser�es bonds) �,0�0,��0$       �% - �% July ��, �0��  $         ���,0�� 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �0�0 Ser�es �,���,�0�         �% - �% July �, �0�� �,���,�0�         

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �0�� Ser�es �,���,000       �% - �% May �, �0�� �,���,���

Notes Payable - Water and Sewer

Water Supply Fac�l�t�es Loan Note ��,���             �.�% November �, �0�� ��,��0             

General Fund Note - Dares Beach Water Supply ���,���            �.�% June �0, �0�� ���,���            

General Fund Note - Pr�nce Freder�ck (non-�nterest bear�ng) ���,���            n/a January �, �0�� ���,���            

General Fund Note - Solomons Wastewater (non-�nterest bear�ng) �,���,0��       �.��% August �, �0�� ���,0��           

Maryland Department of the Env�ronment (MDE) Note ��0,000            �.��% February �, �0�� ���,���            

Maryland Water Qual�ty F�nanc�ng Adm�n Note - Dares Beach �00,000          �.�% August �, �0�0 ���,�0�           

Maryland Water Qual�ty F�nanc�ng Adm�n Note - Pr�nce Freder�ck �,�00,000         �.�% February �, �0�� �,���,���         

Maryland Water Qual�ty F�nanc�ng Adm�n Note - Patuxent Bus�ness Park �00,000            �% February �, �0�� ���,0�0            

Maryland Water Qual�ty F�nanc�ng Adm�n Note - Chesapeake Beach �,0��,0��       �.�% ���,���           

Total General Obl�gat�on Bonds and Notes Rece�vables ��,�0�,�0�       ��,���,���

Deferred Loss on Refund�ng, �00� Ser�es (���,��0)         

Prem�um, �0�0 & �0�� Ser�es �0�,���            

Accumulated Unpa�d Employee Leave ���,��0            

Total Water and Sewer ��,�0�,�0�$      ��,00�,���$      

General Obligation Bonds - Solid Waste

Refund�ng Bonds, �00� Ser�es (replaced the ���� Ser�es bonds) �,�0�,��0$      �% - �% July ��, �0��  $         ���,�0� 

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �0�0 Ser�es ���,0��            �% - �% July �, �0�� ���,0��            

Consol�dated Publ�c Improvement Project Bonds, �0�� Ser�es �,000,000         �% - �% May �, �0�� �,00�,���         

Total General Obl�gat�on Bonds �,���,���         �,���,�0�         

Est�mated Landf�ll Postclosure Costs �,���,���         

Prem�um, �0�0 & �0�� Ser�es ��,���            

Accumulated Unpa�d Employee Leave ���,0��            

Total Sol�d Waste �,���,���$       �,���,���$       

Total Bus�ness Type Act�v�t�es ��,���,���$      ��,���,��0$      
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Debt Requ�rements

The m�n�mum annual requ�rements to amort�ze all outstand�ng debt, except accumulated 
unpa�d vacat�on, personal and s�ck leave, est�mated landf�ll closure and postclosure costs as of 
June �0, �0�� are as follows: 

Years Ending June 30, Principal   Interest      Total     

�0�� ��,�0�,���$        �,��0,���$             �0,���,���$             
�0�� ��,���,���         �,���,���               ��,���,0��               
�0�� ��,���,���         �,���,���               ��,���,���               
�0�� ��,0��,���         �,���,���               ��,���,���               
�0�� ��,���,��0         �,���,���               ��,���,���               

�0��-�0�� ��,���,���         ��,���,���             ��,���,���               
�0��-�0�� ��,���,���         �,0��,��0               ��,���,���               
�0��- plus ��,���               -                        ��,���                     

���,��0,���$      ��,���,���$           ���,�0�,�00$           

Governmental Activities

Years Ending June 30, Principal  Interest    Total     
�0�� �,���,���$        ���,���$            �,���,���$            
�0�� �,���,���          �0�,���             �,���,���              
�0�� �,���,�0�          ���,�0�             �,���,���              
�0�� �,�0�,��0          ���,���             �,���,���              
�0�� ���,���             �0�,��0             �,���,���              

�0��-�0�� �,���,���          �,���,�0�           �,���,���              
�0��-�0�� �,���,���          ���,���             �,���,���              
�0��- plus �,���,���          ���,��0             �,�0�,���              

Def. loss on ref./prem�um ���,�0�                              - ���,�0�                

��,���,���$       �,���,���$         ��,0��,��0$          

Business-Type Activities        

Est�mated Closure and Postclosure Costs

Barstow Landfill - Dur�ng ����, the County closed the Barstow Landf�ll.  The current 
est�mate of post closure costs �s $��0,000. The landf�ll �s at �00% capac�ty w�th no rema�n�ng 
useful l�fe.  An amount �s recorded �n the general long-term debt account group for the est�mated 
postclosure costs assoc�ated w�th the Barstow Landf�ll.  Th�s amount �s requ�red by state and 
federal regulat�ons to prov�de for mon�tor�ng costs assoc�ated w�th the closed landf�ll.  Therefore, 
the total est�mated cost of postclosure care has been recorded. 
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Appeal Landfill – Th�s �s the County’s current operat�ng landf�ll. In ����, the County 
entered �nto a long-term arrangement under wh�ch the County's waste �s transferred out of the 
County, wh�ch has extended the l�fe of the landf�ll. An accrual �s recorded for the est�mated 
closure and postclosure costs assoc�ated w�th the Appeal Landf�ll.  The accrual �s based upon the 
capac�ty used to date.  Although closure and postclosure care costs w�ll be pa�d only near or after 
the date the landf�ll stops accept�ng waste, a port�on of these closure and postclosure care costs 
are reported as an operat�ng expense �n each per�od based on landf�ll capac�ty used as of each 
balance sheet date.  Th�s accrual �s requ�red by state and federal regulat�ons to prov�de for the 
capp�ng and mon�tor�ng costs assoc�ated w�th the clos�ng of the landf�ll.  The est�mate of total 
closure and post closure costs, prov�ded by an �ndependent contractor spec�al�z�ng �n landf�lls �s 
$�,�0�,���.

 Th�s amount has been and w�ll be �ncreased by a factor of �.�% to account for �nflat�on, 
through f�scal year �0��.  These cost est�mates generated �n f�scal year �00� are scheduled to be 
updated �n f�scal year �0�� by an �ndependent contractor to ensure compl�ance w�th chang�ng 
federal and state laws, potent�al changes �n costs due to �nflat�on or deflat�on, and changes �n 
technology �n an effort to ma�nta�n accurate accruals.  The percentage of the landf�ll that �s full 
was re-est�mated �n FY�0 as �0%; therefore, $�,���,��� represents the accrued reserve at June 
�0, �0��, wh�ch �s reported �n the Sol�d Waste and Recycl�ng fund.  The amount that has not yet 
been recogn�zed �n the County’s f�nanc�al statements �s $���,���. Th�s reserve w�ll be �ncreased 
w�th annual contr�but�ons.

B. Component Units  

Changes �n Long-term Obl�gat�ons

The follow�ng �s a summary of the changes �n the Long-Term Obl�gat�ons of the Board of 
Educat�on for the year ended June �0, �0��: 

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions  Deductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:

Cap�tal lease ���,���$        -$             (���,���)$    -$             -$         
Compensated absences �,���,���       �,���,���      (�,���,���)   �,���,���     ��,���      
Net OPEB obl�gat�on ��,���,���     �,���,���      -              ��,���,���    -           

��,0��,0��$    �,�0�,���$    (�,���,���)$  ��,��0,���$  ��,���$    

Business-type activities:
Compensated absences ��,���$          ��,���$       (��,���)$     ��,���$        -$        
Net OPEB obl�gat�on �0�,���          �0,���          -              ���,���        -           

���,���$        ���,���$       (��,���)$      ��0,���$      -$         
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Note 8 - Fund Balances

A. Governmental Funds - Fund Balance 

Fund Balance  – In f�scal year �0��, Calvert County �mplemented Governmental 
Account�ng Standards Board Statement No. �� - Fund Balance Report�ng and Governmental 
Fund Type Def�n�t�ons (GASB ��). In the fund f�nanc�al statements, fund balance for 
governmental funds �s reported �n class�f�cat�ons that compr�se a h�erarchy based pr�mar�ly on 
the extent to wh�ch the County �s bound to honor constra�nts on the spec�f�c purpose for wh�ch 
amounts �n the funds can be spent.  The new fund balance class�f�cat�ons are as follows: 

�. Nonspendable:  Amounts that cannot be spent because they are e�ther �n a 
nonspendable form, or are legally or contractually requ�red to be ma�nta�ned �ntact. 

�. Restr�cted:  Amounts that have constra�nts placed on them e�ther externally by th�rd-
part�es (cred�tors, grantors, contr�butors, or laws or regulat�ons of other governments) 
or by law through const�tut�onal prov�s�ons or enabl�ng leg�slat�on. 

�. Comm�tted:  Amounts that can only be used for spec�f�c purpose pursuant to 
constra�nts �mposed by formal act�on of the County’s h�ghest level of dec�s�on 
mak�ng author�ty.  The Board of County Comm�ss�oners (BOCC) �s the h�ghest level 
of dec�s�on-mak�ng author�ty, and comm�tted funds are establ�shed by resolut�on or 
leg�slat�on.  Those comm�tted amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless 
the BOCC removes or changes the spec�f�ed used by tak�ng the same type of act�on �t 
employed prev�ously to comm�t those amounts. 

�. Ass�gned:  Amounts that are constra�ned by the County’s �ntent to be used for spec�f�c 
purposes, but are ne�ther restr�cted nor comm�tted. The author�ty for ass�gn�ng fund 
balance �f expressed by the BOCC or the�r des�gnee as establ�shed �n the County’s 
Fund Balance Pol�cy. 

�. Unass�gned:  Amounts that have not been restr�cted, comm�tted or ass�gned to 
spec�f�c purposes w�th�n the general fund.  The general fund �s the only fund that 
reports a pos�t�ve unass�gned fund balance amount.  Other governmental funds 
bes�des the general fund can only report a negat�ve unass�gned fund balance amount. 

The County has passed a fund balance resolut�on that spec�f�es the spend�ng order of the 
d�fferent types of fund balances.  Nonspendable amounts by def�n�t�on can’t be spent, and 
restr�cted amounts are restr�cted by external part�es and can only be spent �n accordance w�th the 
restr�ct�ons.  Therefore, �t �s the pol�cy of Calvert County to spend funds �n the follow�ng order: 
comm�tted, then ass�gned, and then unass�gned. 
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As of June �0, �0��, fund balances were reported as follows: 

 Nonmajor Total
 Capital  Governmental Governmental

General Fund Projects Funds Funds

Nonspendable:
Inventory ���,�0�$                -$                           -$                                ���,�0�$                 
Long term rece�vables �,��0,���               -                             -                                  �,��0,���                
Leverag�ng obl�gat�ons -                             -                             �0,���,��0                 �0,���,��0              

Restr�cted for:
Other purposes ��,���                    -                             -                                  ��,���                     
Endowments -                             -                             �,��0                          �,��0                       

Comm�tted to:
Encumbrances:

General government �0�,0��                  -                             -                                  �0�,0��                   
Publ�c safety ���,���                  -                             -                                  ���,���                   
Publ�c works ��0,���                  -                             -                                  ��0,���                   
Health and hosp�tal ��,���                    -                             -                                  ��,���                     
Soc�al serv�ces ���                         -                             -                                  ���                          
Recreat�on and culture ���,���                  -                             -                                  ���,���                   

Stab�l�zat�on arrangement ��,���,000             -                             -                                  ��,���,000              
Board of educat�on -                             ���,���                  -                                  ���,���                   
Other purposes ���,���                  -                             �,���,���                   �,�0�,���                

Ass�gned to:
Vacat�on/s�ck leave �,�00,000               -                             -                                  �,�00,000                
OPEB �,���,000               -                             -                                  �,���,000                
Other purposes -                             -                             �0,���                        �0,���                     
Other cap�tal projects -                             ��,���,���             -                                  ��,���,���              

Unass�gned: ��,���,���             -                             -                                  ��,���,���              

Total fund balances: ��,���,0��$           ��,���,���$           ��,���,���$               ���,���,���$          

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FUND BALANCES

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

JUNE 30, 2011

Other long-term receivables - The amount of notes rece�vable advanced to Dares Beach 
Water, Pr�nce Freder�ck Water and Sewer, advances to the Water and Sewer fund, two Parks and 
Recreat�on notes and an amount due from a vendor rece�vable at June �0, �0��. 

Reserved for special purposes - These amounts represent the port�on of fund balance 
restr�cted for the spec�al purpose of the follow�ng funds: Spec�al Revenue Funds, Parks and 
Recreat�on Fund, and Land Preservat�on Fund. 
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Note 9 - Retirement Systems

A. Primary Government 

All new employees to Calvert County Government are e�ther �n the Sher�ff’s Department 
Pens�on Plan or the Calvert County Employee Ret�rement Sav�ngs Plan. The Pr�mary 
Government operates four Pens�on Trust Funds – Calvert County Sher�ff’s Department Pens�on 
Plan, Calvert County Employees Ret�rement Plan, Volunteer F�re Department and Rescue 
Squads Plan, and the Calvert County Maryland Other Post-Employment Benef�ts Trust (OPEB). 
Separate aud�ted f�nanc�al statements have not been �ssued for these County plans except for 
OPEB wh�ch a copy can be obta�ned by wr�t�ng to Calvert County Government, Attent�on: 
F�nance and Budget, ��� Ma�n Street, Pr�nce Freder�ck, MD �0���.  The County Plans’ 
Statements of Net Assets and Statements of Changes �n Net Assets are presented at the end of 
th�s note.  In add�t�on, some employees part�c�pate �n the State Ret�rement System of Maryland. 
See page �� for add�t�on �nformat�on. 

Calvert County Employees Ret�rement Plan

Plan Description -The County contr�butes to the Calvert County Employees Ret�rement 
Plan (the Plan), a s�ngle employer def�ned benef�t pens�on plan that prov�des ret�rement benef�ts 
and death and d�sab�l�ty benef�ts to part�c�pat�ng employees and the�r benef�c�ar�es.  All full-t�me 
employees of the County plus part-t�me employees work�ng at least �0% of a regular work week 
and employees of the off�ce of the State's Attorney and the Calvert County Hous�ng Author�ty 
were el�g�ble to part�c�pate �n the Plan.  If h�red before July �, ����, benef�ts vest �00% for 
serv�ce greater or equal to � years, or �f h�red on or after July �, ����, benef�ts vest �00% for 
serv�ce greater or equal to seven years.  No new part�c�pants were added to th�s plan after the 
adopt�on of the Calvert County Employee Ret�rement Sav�ngs Plan. Please see page �� for 
�nformat�on on th�s plan. 

County employees �n th�s plan are el�g�ble to rece�ve ret�rement benef�ts the f�rst month 
follow�ng complet�on of �0 years of el�g�b�l�ty serv�ce or (�) �f h�red pr�or to July �, ����, f�rst 
month follow�ng atta�nment of age ��, complet�on of � years el�g�b�l�ty serv�ce and sum of age 
and serv�ce �s at least ��, and (�) �f h�red on or after July �, ����, the f�rst of the month follow�ng 
atta�nment of age �� and complet�on of � years of el�g�ble serv�ce.  Benef�ts are payable monthly 
for l�fe, �n an amount equal to �.�% of the average f�nal salary (the h�ghest consecut�ve th�rty-s�x 
month per�od of base pay) up to covered compensat�on for each year of serv�ce up to �0 years 
plus .�% of average f�nal salary over the Soc�al Secur�ty �ntegrat�on level for each year of serv�ce 
up to �0 years, plus �.0% of the average f�nal salary for each year �n excess of �0 years up to � 
years.  Benef�t prov�s�ons and all other requ�rements are establ�shed by the County 
Comm�ss�oners and adm�n�stered by a County-appo�nted Board of Trustees. 
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At June �0, �0��, the membersh�p �n the plan was as follows: 

Ret�red ���
Term�nated, vested ��

Act�ve, vested ���
Act�ve non-vested 0
Total act�ve ���

Funding Policy - Part�c�pat�ng County employees are requ�red to contr�bute �% of the�r 
annual compensat�on to the Plan, plus an add�t�onal �% of base salary �n excess of Soc�al 
Secur�ty Wage Base.  The County contr�butes the rema�n�ng amounts necessary to fund the 
payments of benef�ts under the Plan based upon the d�rect�on of �ts consult�ng actuary.  The 
contr�but�ons made to the Plan for f�scal year �0�� were made �n accordance w�th the Plan 
requ�rements as of the July �, �0�0 actuar�al report. The contr�but�ons cons�sted of amounts 
contr�buted by the employees of $�0�,��� (�% of current covered payroll).  The County's costs 
for f�scal year �0�� were $�,0�0,000 (��.�% of current covered payroll).

The net pens�on obl�gat�on was computed us�ng the Projected Un�t Cred�t Method as a 
part of an actuar�al valuat�on performed as of July �, �0��.  The actuar�al value of assets was 
determ�ned us�ng the assumed y�eld method w�th a market value adjustment.  The s�gn�f�cant 
actuar�al assumpt�ons used �n the valuat�on �nclude, rate of return on the �nvestments of present 
and future assets of �% a year compounded annually, add�t�onal projected salary �ncreases of �% 
compounded annually, cost of l�v�ng �ncreases of �% per year calculated on a compound �nterest 
bas�s, and no postret�rement benef�t �ncreases. 

Funded Status - The follow�ng schedule presents the funded status as of June �0, �0��: 

Actuar�al 
Valuat�on 
Date June 

�0,

Actuar�al     
Value of        
Assets

Actuar�al 
Accrued 
L�ab�l�ty     
(AAL)

Unfunded      
AAL         

(UAAL)
Funded 

Rat�o
Covered       
Payroll

UAAL as a 
% of 

Covered 
Payroll

�0�� ��,��0,��0$      ��,���,��0$     ��,���,��0$     ��.��% �,���,���$      ��0.��%

The plan’s unfunded actuar�al l�ab�l�ty �s be�ng amort�zed us�ng the level dollar method 
over a closed per�od of �0 years. 

Funding Progress - The schedule of fund�ng progress (presented as requ�red 
supplementary �nformat�on) g�ves mult�year trend �nformat�on about whether the actuar�al value 
of plan assets �s �ncreas�ng or decreas�ng over t�me relat�ve to the actuar�al accrual l�ab�l�ty for 
benef�ts.
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Employer Contributions - The follow�ng schedule g�ves �nformat�on on employer 
requ�red contr�but�ons for the past three years: 

Years 
Ended 

June �0, Contr�but�on

Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on
Percentage 
Contr�buted

�0�� �,0�0,000$     �,���,��0$  �0�.��%
�0�0 �,���,���       �,0��,���    ��.��%
�00� �,���,���       �,���,�0�    ��.��%

Net Pension Obligation – The Net Pens�on Obl�gat�on �s presented below: 

Actuar�al 
Valuat�on 

Date       
June �0,

Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on

Interest on 
Net 

Pens�on 
Obl�gat�on

Adjustment 
to Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on

Increase - 
(Decrease) 

�n Net 
Pens�on 

Net 
Pens�on 

Obl�gat�on

�0�� �,���,��0$   ��,��0$    ��,���$      (���,���)$ (�0,���)$   
�0�0 �,0��,���     ���          ��,���        ��,���      ���,���    
�00� �,���,�0�     �0,���     ��,���        (�,���)      ���,���    

State Ret�rement System of Maryland

Plan Description - On October ��, ����, the Comm�ss�oners approved the w�thdrawal of 
employees of Calvert County from the State Ret�rement and Pens�on System of Maryland (the 
System) based on the establ�shment of the Calvert County Employees Ret�rement Plan.  All 
employees covered under the System were g�ven the opt�on to part�c�pate �n the new plan or 
rema�n �n the System.  All but �� County employees opted to part�c�pate �n the new plan. Th�rty 
employees rema�ned �n the State of Maryland Employees' Ret�rement System and �� employees 
rema�ned �n the State of Maryland Employees' Pens�on System (collect�vely the Employees' 
Systems).  The effect�ve date of the w�thdrawal from the System was June �0, ����. 

The State Ret�rement Agency (the Agency) �s the adm�n�strator of the System, a cost- 
shar�ng mult�ple-employer publ�c-employee ret�rement system.  The System was establ�shed by 
the State Personnel and Pens�on Art�cles of the Annotated Code of Maryland Rules and 
Regulat�ons and prov�des ret�rement allowances to System members and benef�c�ar�es.  
Respons�b�l�ty for the adm�n�strat�on and operat�on of the System �s vested w�th a ��-member 
Board of Trustees.  The System �ssues a publ�cly ava�lable f�nanc�al report that �ncludes f�nanc�al 
statements and requ�red supplementary �nformat�on for the System.  That report may be obta�ned 
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by wr�t�ng to the State Ret�rement and Pens�on System of Maryland, ��0 East Balt�more Street, 
Balt�more, Maryland ���0� or by call�ng (�00) ���-��0�. 

Funding Policy - Members of the Employees Systems may elect to contr�bute �% to �% 
of the�r earnable compensat�on depend�ng on the ret�rement opt�on selected.  Employer 
contr�but�on rates are determ�ned actuar�ally.  The System pa�d the County the sum of 
$�0,���,���, the amount of the reserves allocable to the w�thdraw�ng employees on a market 
value bas�s as determ�ned by an actuary, together w�th �nterest at the rate of �.�% compounded 
annually from July �, ����, to the date of payment, reduced by the part�al payment of $�00,000 
to the Calvert County Employees' Ret�rement System on December �0, ����.  Based on the 
actuar�al valuat�on as of June �0, ����, the unfunded l�ab�l�ty for the employees and off�cers of 
the County who elected to rema�n �n the System amounted to $�,���,0��.  The County pa�d the 
unfunded l�ab�l�ty �n two �nstallments: an �n�t�al �nstallment of $�00,000 on the date of th�s 
agreement, and a f�nal �nstallment of $���,0�� on July �, ����.  The County's requ�red 
contr�but�ons and actual contr�but�ons to the Employee’s Systems for the years ended June �0, 
�00� through �0�� were zero.

The computat�on of the pens�on contr�but�on requ�rements for f�scal year �0�� was based 
on the same actuar�al assumpt�ons, benef�ts prov�s�ons, actuar�al fund�ng method and other 
s�gn�f�cant factors used to determ�ne pens�on contr�but�ons requ�rements �n the prev�ous year.  
Contr�but�ons by the State of Maryland on behalf of the Calvert County Publ�c L�brary were 
$��0,���, $���,���, and $���,0��, for the years ended June �0, �0��, �0�0 and �00�. In 
accordance w�th GASB Statement Number ��, the State’s �0�� contr�but�on amount has been 
shown as State a�d revenue and pens�on expend�ture. 

Calvert County’s Employee Ret�rement Sav�ngs Plan

On July ��, ����, the Comm�ss�oners approved the format�on of a s�ngle employer 
def�ned contr�but�on pens�on plan w�th a �% County contr�but�on and a requ�red �% contr�but�on 
from all el�g�ble employees. The plan was put �n place January �, ����.  All employees h�red 
after June �0, ���� were automat�cally enrolled �n the def�ned contr�but�on pens�on plan.
Requ�red contr�but�ons and all other plan prov�s�ons are establ�shed by the County 
Comm�ss�oners and adm�n�stered by a County-appo�nted Board of Trustees.  The contr�but�ons 
by the County and the employees for the year ended June �0, �0�� were $���,0�� and $���,���, 
respect�vely. 

Length of Serv�ce Award Program

Plan Description - The County contr�butes to the Length of Serv�ce Awards Program
(LSAP) for the Volunteer F�re and Rescue Squads personnel of Calvert County (Plan), a s�ngle-
employer noncontr�butory ret�rement and pens�on plan.  Any person who �s cert�f�ed as an act�ve 
member w�th any Calvert County Volunteer F�re Company or Rescue Squad �s el�g�ble to 
part�c�pate �n the Plan.  Act�ve members who atta�n age �� and have completed �� years of 
cert�f�ed volunteer serv�ce shall rece�ve $�00 per month plus $� per month add�t�onal for each 
year of serv�ce �n excess of �� years, w�th a max�mum benef�t of $�00 per month.  If an act�ve 
member atta�ns age �0 and has � years of  qual�fy�ng  serv�ce  out of the last � years, but does not 
complete �� years of serv�ce, a monthly benef�t equal to $� t�mes the years of serv�ce w�ll be 
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payable.  The Plan also prov�des for death and d�sab�l�ty benef�ts to part�c�pat�ng volunteers.  
Benef�t prov�s�ons and all other requ�rements are establ�shed by the F�re and Rescue Comm�ss�on 
and approved by the Comm�ss�oners as author�zed by the leg�slat�ve assembly.  The County 
contr�butes all amounts necessary to fund the payments of benef�ts under the Plan. 

At June �0, �0��, the membersh�p was as follows: 

Ret�red ��

Act�ve, vested ��
Act�ve, non- vested ���
Total act�ve ���
Act�ve employees rece�v�ng benef�ts ��

Funding Policy - The net pens�on obl�gat�on was computed us�ng the Projected Un�t 
Cred�t Cost Method as a part of an actuar�al valuat�on performed as of July �, �0��.  The 
s�gn�f�cant actuar�al assumpt�ons used �n the valuat�on �nclude rate of return on the �nvestments 
of present and future assets of �% a year compounded annually; �0% of the part�c�pants are 
assumed to be marr�ed w�th spouses four years younger; part�c�pants, who have already earned at 
least two years of cred�t and have atta�ned age �0, are assumed to earn cred�t �n �0% of the�r 
future years.  All others are assumed to earn no cred�t. The actuar�al value of assets was 
determ�ned us�ng the Assumed Y�eld Method w�th a Market Value adjustment. 

The contr�but�ons made by the County to the Plan for f�scal �0�� total�ng $���,000 were 
made �n accordance w�th actuar�al determ�ned requ�rements computed through an actuar�al 
valuat�on performed as of July �, �0�0. 

Funded Status - The follow�ng schedule presents the funded status as of June �0, �0��: 

Actuar�al 
Valuat�on 
Date June 

�0,

Actuar�al     
Value of        
Assets

Actuar�al 
Accrued 
L�ab�l�ty     
(AAL)

Unfunded      
AAL         

(UAAL)
Funded 

Rat�o
Covered       
Payroll

UAAL as a 
% of 

Covered 
Payroll

�0�� �,���,�0�$        �,���,��0$       �,��0,���$       ��.��% N/A N/A

The plan’s unfunded actuar�al l�ab�l�ty �s be�ng amort�zed us�ng the level dollar method 
over a closed per�od of �0 years. 

Funding Progress - The schedule of fund�ng progress (presented as requ�red 
supplementary �nformat�on) g�ves mult�year trend �nformat�on about whether the actuar�al value 
of plan assets �s �ncreas�ng or decreas�ng over t�me relat�ve to the actuar�al accrual l�ab�l�ty for 
benef�ts.
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Employer Contributions - The follow�ng schedule g�ves �nformat�on on employer 
contr�but�ons for the past three years: 

Years     
Ended     

June �0, Contr�but�on

Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on
Percentage 
Contr�buted

�0�� ���,000$     ���,���$    ��.��%
�0�0 ���,000       ���,���      ��.��%
�00� ���,000       ���,000      �00.00%

Net Pension Obligation –The Net Pens�on Obl�gat�on �s presented below: 

Actuar�al 
Valuat�on 

Date      
June �0,

Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on

Interest      
on Net 
Pens�on 

Obl�gat�on

Adjustment 
to Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on

Increase - 
(Decrease) 

�n Net 
Pens�on 

Net      
Pens�on 

Obl�gat�on

�0�� ���,���$    (��,0�0)$    (��,���)$    ��,���$     (�00,��0)$   
�0�0 ���,���      (��,���)      (��,0��)      ��,���       (�00,��0)
�00� ���,000      (��,0��)      (��,0��)      ��,0��       (���,���)

Calvert County Sher�ff’s Department Pens�on Plan

Plan Description - The County contr�butes to the Calvert County Sher�ff’s Department 
Pens�on Plan (Plan), a s�ngle-employer def�ned benef�t pens�on plan.  All full-t�me deputy 
sher�ffs and correct�onal off�cers employed by the County, exclud�ng those who were h�red pr�or 
to July �, ����, who elected to rema�n �n the State Pens�on System, are el�g�ble to part�c�pate �n 
the Plan.  Benef�ts vest �0% after � years, �ncreas�ng �% a year to �00% after �� years.  County 
employees who ret�re at or after age �� or after �� years of serv�ce are ent�tled to an annual 
ret�rement benef�t, payable monthly for l�fe, �n an amount equal to �.�% of the�r f�nal average 
earn�ngs for each year of serv�ce up to �0, plus �% of f�nal average earn�ngs for serv�ce over �0 
years and up to �� years.  The Plan also prov�des for death and d�sab�l�ty benef�ts to part�c�pat�ng 
employees.  Benef�t prov�s�ons and all other requ�rements are establ�shed by a County-appo�nted 
Board of Trustees. 
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At June �0, �0��, the membersh�p was as follows: 

Ret�red ��
Term�nated, vested ��

Act�ve, vested �0�
Act�ve, non-vested ��
Total act�ve ���

Funding Policy - The net pens�on obl�gat�on was computed us�ng the Projected Un�t 
Cred�t Method as a part of an actuar�al valuat�on performed as of July �, �0��.  The s�gn�f�cant 
actuar�al assumpt�ons used �n the valuat�on �nclude rate of return on the �nvestments of present 
and future assets of �% a year compounded annually; add�t�onal projected salary �ncreases of 
�.�0% to age ��, �.�0% from age �� to �� and �.00% thereafter; costs of l�v�ng �ncreases to all 
plan part�c�pants of �.00% per year calculated on a compound �nterest bas�s. The actuar�al value 
of assets was determ�ned us�ng an Asset Smooth�ng Method. 

Part�c�pat�ng County employees are requ�red to contr�bute �% of the�r annual 
compensat�on to the Plan, compounded annually w�th �% �nterest.  The County contr�butes the 
rema�n�ng amounts necessary to fund the payments of benef�ts under the Plan based upon the 
d�rect�on of �ts consult�ng actuary. 

The contr�but�ons made to the Plan for f�scal �0�� total�ng $�,���,000 were made �n 
accordance w�th actuar�ally determ�ned requ�rements computed through an actuar�al valuat�on 
performed as of July �, �0�0. 

Amounts contr�buted by the County and Employees cons�sted of the follow�ng: 

County (��.�% of current covered payroll) �,���,000$    
Employees (�.�% of current covered payroll) ���,���         

Funded Status - The follow�ng schedule presents the funded status as of June �0, �0��: 

Actuar�al 
Valuat�on 
Date June 

�0,

Actuar�al     
Value of        
Assets

Actuar�al 
Accrued 
L�ab�l�ty     
(AAL)

Unfunded      
AAL         

(UAAL)
Funded 

Rat�o
Covered        
Payroll

UAAL as a 
% of 

Covered 
Payroll

�0�� �0,�0�,���$      ��,���,���$     ��,���,���$      ��.��% �0,���,���$      ���.��%

The plan’s unfunded actuar�al l�ab�l�ty �s be�ng amort�zed us�ng the level dollar method 
over a closed amort�zat�on per�od of �0 years. 
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Funding Progress - The schedule of fund�ng progress (presented as requ�red 
supplementary �nformat�on) g�ves mult�year trend �nformat�on about whether the actuar�al value 
of plan assets �s �ncreas�ng or decreas�ng over t�me relat�ve to the actuar�al accrual l�ab�l�ty for 
benef�ts.

Employer Contributions - The follow�ng schedule g�ves �nformat�on on employer 
contr�but�ons for the past three years: 

Years     
Ended June 

�0, Contr�but�on

Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on
Percentage 
Contr�buted

�0�� �,���,000$       �,���,�0�$      �0�.��%
�0�0 �,���,000         �,���,���        ��.��%
�00� �,���,���         �,���,���        ��.��%

Net Pension Obligation: The Net Pens�on Obl�gat�on �s presented below: 

Actuar�al 
Valuat�on 

Date        
June �0,

Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on

Interest      
on Net 
Pens�on 

Obl�gat�on

Adjustment 
to Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on

Increase - 
(Decrease) �n 
Net Pens�on 
Obl�gat�on

Net      
Pens�on 

Obl�gat�on

              
�0�� �,���,�0�$         �,���$          �,���$           (��,��0)$       (��,�00)$        
�0�0 �,���,���           (�,�0�)           (�,���)           ��,���          ��,��0            
�00� �,���,���           (�,�0�)           (�,��0)           �,���            (��,���)          

Calvert County Maryland Other Post-Employment Benef�ts Trust

Plan description – The County contr�butes to the Calvert County Maryland Other Post-
Employment Benef�t Trust (Plan), an agent mult�ple employer def�ned benef�t postemployment 
healthcare plan. Benef�t prov�s�ons and all other requ�rements are establ�shed by the County 
Comm�ss�oners and the County Board of Educat�on and adm�n�stered by a jo�ntly appo�nted 
Board of Trustees.   The plan prov�des healthcare, prescr�pt�on drug and dental benef�ts to ret�red 
employees, spouses and dependants, of part�c�pat�ng governmental ent�t�es.  The plan also 
prov�des l�fe �nsurance benef�ts for ret�rees of the Board of Educat�on.  Act�ve employees of a 
part�c�pat�ng governmental ent�ty who ret�re or are d�sabled and meet the el�g�b�l�ty cr�ter�a w�ll 
part�c�pate.  Generally employees must have ret�red from a part�c�pat�ng ent�ty to be el�g�ble.   



-61-

CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2011 

The current employee/ret�ree membersh�p �n the Plan as of June �0, �0�� �s as follows: 

County Board of Educat�on
Act�ve ���         �,��0
Ret�red ���         ���
Total ���         �,���

Funding Policy – The Calvert County Board of County Comm�ss�oners w�ll establ�sh 
annually a health �nsurance subs�dy amount under the Plan.  These subs�d�es w�ll be rev�ewed 
annually and are subject to change based on budgetary constra�nts.  For ret�rees who ret�red 
before June �0, �00�, the subs�dy �s �0% of the prem�um, for ret�rees who ret�red after June �0, 
�00� the subs�dy �s ��% of the prem�um.  Ret�rees who ret�red pr�or to August �, ���� rece�ve 
�00% of the�r �nd�v�dual pol�cy and �0% of the d�fference between the �nd�v�dual pol�cy and the 
pol�cy selected.  Ret�rees w�ll earn or vest �n the subs�dy based upon the�r years of cred�table 
serv�ce, at a rate rang�ng from �0% to �00%.  Current ret�rees, who have a �00% subs�dy, equate 
to the Plan cover�ng ��% of the�r cost of benef�t coverage.  The ret�ree �s respons�ble for the 
d�fference between the cost of the selected Plan and the earned subs�dy. The Board of Educat�on 
establ�shes the level of benef�ts for �ts ret�rees wh�ch �ncludes health care and l�fe �nsurance 
benef�ts.

Contr�but�on rates and the net other post employment benef�ts obl�gat�on for the year 
ended June �0, �0�� were actuar�ally determ�ned, us�ng the Projected Un�t Cred�t Actuar�al Cost 
Method, through an actuar�al valuat�on dated July �, �00� .  The s�gn�f�cant actuar�al 
assumpt�ons used �n the valuat�on �nclude; a d�scount rate of �%, healthcare cost trend – med�cal 
�0% �n the �00� plan year decl�n�ng �% each plan year to �% for �0�� and later years, dental �% 
�n the �00� year decl�n�ng �/�% each year to �% for �0�� and later, mortal�ty - RP �000 
comb�ned healthy mortal�ty table, except for the Sherr�ff’s Plan wh�ch uses ���� Group Annu�ty 
Mortal�ty Table.

The contr�but�ons to the Plan by the County for the years ended June �0 were as follows: 

County
On behalf payments for 

Board of Educat�on Total

�0�� �,�0�,���$    �,���,���$                            �,���,���$       
�0�0 �0�,���         �,���,���                              �,000,000         
�00� �,���,���      �,���,���                              �,000,000         

Funding Status & Progress- The schedule of fund�ng progress (presented as requ�red 
supplementary �nformat�on) g�ves �nformat�on about whether the actuar�al value of plan assets �s 
�ncreas�ng or decreas�ng over t�me relat�ve to the actuar�al accrual l�ab�l�ty for benef�ts. 
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Funding Status - At June �0, �0��, the fund�ng status was as follows: 

Actuar�al     
Value of        
Assets

Actuar�al 
Accrued 
L�ab�l�ty     
(AAL)

Unfunded      
AAL         

(UAAL)
Funded 

Rat�o
Covered  
Payroll

UAAL as 
a % of 

Covered 
Payroll

County �,���,���$        �0,���,��0$        ��,���,���$        �.��% N/A N/A
Board of 
Educat�on �,���,���          ��,���,���          ��,���,�0�          �.��% N/A N/A

Total �,���,���$        ��0,0��,���$      ���,���,���$      �.��% N/A N/A

Actuar�al valuat�ons �nvolve est�mates of value of reported amounts and assumpt�ons 
about the probab�l�ty of events far �nto the future. Actuar�ally determ�ned amounts are subject to 
cont�nual rev�s�ons as actual results are compared to past expectat�ons and new est�mates are 
made about the future. Project�on of benef�ts are based on the types of benef�ts prov�ded under 
the substant�ve plan at the t�me of each valuat�on and on the pattern of shar�ng of benef�t costs 
between the employer and plan member to that po�nt. Actuar�al calculat�ons reflect a long-term 
prospect�ve, and cons�stent w�th that perspect�ve, actuar�al methods and assumpt�ons used 
�nclude techn�ques that are des�gned to reduce short-term volat�l�ty �n actuar�ally accrued 
l�ab�l�t�es and the actuar�al value of assets. 

The Plan’s unfunded actuar�al l�ab�l�ty �s be�ng amort�zed us�ng the level dollar method 
over a closed amort�zat�on per�od of �0 years.

Net OPEB Obligation - The County �mplemented GASB �� �n f�scal year �00� and 
elected to report a zero net OPEB obl�gat�on at the beg�nn�ng of the trans�t�on year. The County 
makes on behalf payments for the Board of Educat�on.   

The schedule on the follow�ng page presents the net OPEB obl�gat�on for the past three 
years:
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Actuar�al 
Valuat�on 

Date       
June �0,

Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on

Interest on 
Net Pens�on 
Obl�gat�on

Adjustment 
to Annual 
Requ�red 

Contr�but�on
Annual OPEB 

Cost

Pay as You 
go Payments 

Plus 
Contr�but�ons

Percentage 
Contr�buted

Increase �n 
net OPEB 

Obl�ghat�on

End of Year 
net OPEB 
Obl�gat�on

County

�0�� �,���,���$       ���,���$        ���,���$       �,���,���$       �,���,�00$     ��.��% �,���,���$     �,���,��0$      
�0�0 �,���,���         �00,���          ���,���         �,���,���         �,���,���       ��.��% �,0��,���       �,���,�0�
�00� �,�0�,���         ��,���            -                 �,���,���         �,���,���       ��.��% ���,���          �,���,���

Board of Education

�0�� ��,���,�0�$     ���,���$        ���,��0$       ��,���,���$     �,���,�0�$     �0.0�% �,0��,���$     ��,���,���$    
�0�0 ��,���,�0�       ���,���          ���,��0         ��,���,�0�       �,���,���       ��.��% �,���,���       ��,���,���
�00� �,���,���         ���,���          -                 �,���,���         �,���,���       ��.�0% �,���,���       �,���,���

TOTAL

�0�� ��,��0,���$     �,���,���$     ���,���$       ��,���,��0$     �,���,�0�$     ��.��% �,���,���$     ��,���,���$    
�0�0 ��,��0,���       ���,���          ���,���         ��,���,��0       �,���,���       ��.��% �,���,���       ��,���,���
�00� ��,���,���       �0�,���          -                 ��,���,���       �,0��,��0       ��.��% �,���,���       �,���,��0

Net Asset Information (all trust funds) – The statement of net assets and statement of 
changes �n net assets for all County-adm�n�stered plans are shown below:

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets

Volunteer    
Fire and 
Rescue

Sheriff’s    
Pension      

Plan

Employees 
Retirement 

Plan

Other Post 
Employment 

Benefits Total
Assets:

Cash and cash equ�valents ��,���$         ���,���$       ���,���$       ���,0��$      �,���,���$        
Investments at Fa�r Value

F�xed �ncome ��0,0��         ��,��0,0��    ��,���,���    �,���,���     ��,���,���        
Common Stocks �                    ��,���,���    ��,���,���    -                ��,���,���        
Equ�ty funds �,��0,���      ��,���,�00    ��,���,���    ��,���,���   ��,���,���        
Fore�gn Assets �0�,��0         �,0��,0��      �,���,��0      -                �0,���,���        
Other Assets -                 �0�,0�0         ���,���         -                �,���,���          

Total �nvestments at fa�r value �,�0�,���      �0,���,���    ��,���,���    ��,���,���   �0�,���,���      

Total cash, cash equ�valents
 and �nvestments �,���,���      ��,���,��0    ��,���,���    ��,���,�0�   ���,���,��0      

Interest rece�vable �,0��             ��,���           �0,��0           �                   ��,���               

           Total assets �,���,���$    ��,��0,���$  ��,���,���$  ��,���,�0�$ ���,���,0��$    

Liabilities and Net Assets
           Total L�ab�l�t�es -                 -                -                -                -                    

Net Assets held in trust for pension and
 other post employment benefits �,���,���      ��,��0,���    ��,���,���    ��,���,�0�   ���,���,0��      

Total l�ab�l�t�es and net assets �,���,���$    ��,��0,���$  ��,���,���$  ��,���,�0�$ ���,���,0��$    
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Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets

Volunteer 
Fire and 
Rescue

Sheriff’s 
Pension  Plan

Employees 
Retirement 

Plan

Other Post 
Employment 

Benefits Total
Additions:

Contr�but�ons
Plan sponsor ���,000$       �,���,000$    �,0�0,000$     �,���,���$    �,���,���$     
Employee -                 ��0,��0         ���,���          �,���,���      �,�0�,���       

Total Contributions ���,000         �,���,��0      �,���,���       �,���,�0�      ��,���,���     

Investment income/(Loss):
Net  apprec�at�on/(deprec�at�on)  

   �n fa�r value of �nvestments ��0,���         �,���,��0      �,���,���       �,���,���      �0,���,���     
Interest and d�v�dends ��,��0           ���,0��         ���,���          ���,���         �,0��,���       
Net �nvestment �ncome/(loss) ���,�0�         �,���,�0�      �,00�,���       �,���,��0      ��,���,���     
Total Add�t�ons ���,�0�         ��,���,���    ��,���,0��     ��,0��,���    ��,���,��0     

Expenditures:
D�str�but�ons to part�c�pants ���,���         �,�0�,���      �,��0,0�0       �,���,���      �,0��,���       
Adm�n�strat�ve expenses ��,0��           ���,���         ���,���          ��,���           ���,��0          

Total Expend�tures ���,���         �,���,���      �,���,���       �,���,�0�      �,���,���       

Net �ncrease(decrease) ��0,���         �,���,���      �0,���,�0�     �,���,���      ��,���,���     

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension
and Other Post Employment Benefits:

Beg�nn�ng of the year �,0��,���      ��,���,�0�    ��,���,���     ��,���,0�0    ��,���,���     

End of the year �,���,���$    ��,��0,���$  ��,���,���$   ��,���,�0�$  ���,���,0��$

B.  Component Unit – Board of Education      

Plan Description - The employees of the Board of Educat�on (the Board), are covered by 
the Teachers Ret�rement System, the Teachers Pens�on System of the State of Maryland (the 
Teachers Systems) or the Employees Ret�rement System and Employees Pens�on System of the 
State of Maryland.  These systems are part of the Maryland State Ret�rement and Pens�on 
System, (the System) and are cost-shar�ng, mult�ple-employer, def�ned benef�t publ�c employee 
ret�rement systems.  

The System was establ�shed �n accordance w�th the State Personnel and Pens�ons Art�cle 
of the Annotated Code of Maryland.  Respons�b�l�ty for the adm�n�strat�on and operat�on of the 
systems �s vested �n a Board of Trustees (Trustees).  The Trustees also have the author�ty to 
establ�sh and amend the respect�ve benef�t prov�s�ons.  The System prov�des ret�rement and 
d�sab�l�ty benef�ts, annual cost of l�v�ng adjustments, and death benef�ts to system members and 
benef�c�ar�es.

The System �ssues a publ�cly ava�lable comprehens�ve annual f�nanc�al report that 
�ncludes f�nanc�al statements and requ�red supplementary �nformat�on for the Systems.  That 
report may be obta�ned by wr�t�ng to the State Ret�rement and Pens�on System of Maryland, 
State Ret�rement Agency, ��0 East Balt�more Street, Balt�more, Maryland ���0�, or by call�ng 
(�00) ���-��0�. 
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Funding Policy - The State Personnel and Pens�ons Art�cle requ�re act�ve members to 
contr�bute to the System at the rate of �% to �% of the�r covered salary depend�ng upon the 
ret�rement opt�on selected.  Contr�but�on rates for the Board are establ�shed by annual actuar�al 
valuat�ons us�ng the entry age normal test method.  The State's contr�but�on’s on behalf of the 
Board to the Teachers systems for the years ended June �0, �0��, �0�0, and �00� were 
approx�mately $��.0 m�ll�on, $��.� m�ll�on, and $��.� m�ll�on, respect�vely.   

Annual Required Contributions - For the year ended June �0, �0��, the Board’s annual 
pens�on cost of $�,���,��� was equal to �ts requ�red contr�but�on. The annual requ�red 
contr�but�on was determ�ned as part of the June �0, �00� actuar�al valuat�on us�ng the entry age 
actuar�al cost method. The actuar�al assumpt�ons �ncluded (a) �.��% �nvestment rate of return, 
compounded annually, (b) projected salary �ncreases of �.�% compounded annually, attr�butable 
to �nflat�on, (c) add�t�onal projected salary �ncreases rang�ng from 0.0% to �.�% per year 
attr�butable to sen�or�ty and mer�t, (d) post-ret�rement benef�t �ncreases rang�ng from �.��% to 
�.�% per year depend�ng on the system, (e) rates of mortal�ty, term�nat�on of serv�ce, 
d�sablement and ret�rement based on actual exper�ence from �00� through �00�, and (f) the 
aggregate act�ve member payroll �s assumed to �ncrease by �.�% annually.  The actuar�al value 
of the Systems’ assets was determ�ned us�ng techn�ques that smooth the effects of short-term 
volat�l�ty �n the market value of �nvestments by us�ng a s�mpl�f�ed f�ve-year mov�ng average.  
The Board’s unfunded actuar�al accrued l�ab�l�ty �s be�ng amort�zed �n d�st�nct p�eces. The 
equ�valent s�ngle amort�zat�on per�od �s ��.�� years.  The Board’s annual pens�on cost for the 
last three years was:  

   F�scal Year Annual Net
     End�ng     Requ�red Percentage Pens�on

June �0,    Contr�but�on   Contr�buted  Obl�gat�on

�0�� �,���,���$         �00% -               
�0�0 �,��0,��0           �00% -               
�00� �,0��,���           �00% -               

Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of Funding Progress for the

(expressed �n thousands)

     Actuar�al UAAL as a
Actuar�al   Actuar�al      Accrued Unfunded Percentage
  Valuat�on    Value of     L�ab�l�ty (AAL)    AAL      Funded     Covered of Covered
      Date         Assets        Entry Age (UAAL)     Rat�o      Payroll    Payroll   
(June �0)      (a)              (b)          (b-a)       (a/b)        (c)         (b-a/c)  

�0�0 ��,���,���$            ��,0��,0��$      ��,���,���$     ��.��% �0,���,���$      ���%
�00� ��,���,���              ��,���,���        ��,���,�0�       ��.0�% �0,���,���        ���%
�00� ��,�0�,���              �0,���,0��        �0,���,���       ��.��% �0,���,�0�        �0�%

State Retirement and Pension Systems of Maryland
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Note 10 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Comm�ss�oners are defendants �n several lawsu�ts.  In the op�n�on of the County 
Attorney and legal counsel, pend�ng legal proceed�ngs are not l�kely to have a mater�al adverse 
�mpact on the County's f�nanc�al cond�t�on, and to the best of the�r knowledge, the County �s �n 
compl�ance w�th all state and local laws and ord�nances.

Note 11 - Risk Management

The County �s exposed to var�ous r�sks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruct�on of assets; errors and om�ss�ons; �njur�es to employees; and related d�sasters.  The 
County �s a cap�tal member of the Local Government Insurance Trust (LGIT) sponsored by the 
Maryland Mun�c�pal League (MML), and the Maryland Assoc�at�on of Count�es.  The LGIT �s a 
self-�nsured publ�c ent�ty r�sk pool offer�ng general l�ab�l�ty, excess l�ab�l�ty, bus�ness auto 
l�ab�l�ty, pol�ce legal l�ab�l�ty, publ�c off�c�al l�ab�l�ty, env�ronmental l�ab�l�ty, and property 
coverage.

 LGIT �s cap�tal�zed at an actuar�ally determ�ned level to prov�de f�nanc�al stab�l�ty for �ts 
local government members and to reduce the poss�b�l�ty of assessments.  The trust �s owned by 
the part�c�pat�ng count�es and c�t�es and managed by a Board of Trustees elected by the 
members.  Annual prem�ums are assessed for the var�ous pol�cy coverages. Dur�ng f�scal year 
�0��, the County pa�d prem�ums of $���,��� to the trust.  The agreement for the format�on of 
LGIT prov�des that the trust w�ll be self-susta�n�ng through member prem�ums and w�ll re�nsure 
through commerc�al compan�es for cla�ms �n excess of $�00,000 for each �nsured event.  Settled 
cla�ms result�ng from these r�sks have not exceeded commerc�al �nsurance coverage �n the past 
four f�scal years. 

The County �s under a mod�f�ed retrospect�ve b�ll�ng arrangement w�th a commerc�al 
�nsurance carr�er to prov�de group health coverage. Under th�s arrangement the �nsurance carr�er 
assesses an �n�t�al charge pa�d by the County through monthly prem�ums. At the end of the 
coverage per�od, there �s a settlement of the d�fference between the b�lled prem�um and the actual 
cla�ms and expenses. A def�c�ency �n the b�lled prem�um represents the callable marg�n, wh�ch �s 
owed by the County, up to a max�mum of �%.  If the actual cla�ms and expenses are less than the 
b�lled prem�um, the County would be ent�tled to a refund. 
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Note 12 - Subsequent Events

In prepar�ng these f�nanc�al statements, the management of Calvert County, Maryland has 
evaluated events and transact�ons for potent�al recogn�t�on or d�sclosure through December �, 
�0��, the date the f�nanc�al statements were ava�lable to be �ssued.  

On November �, �0��, Calvert County �ssued $��,��0,000 of Refund�ng Bonds w�th a 
true �nterest cost of �.��% to refund certa�n matur�t�es of $��,��0,000 �n outstand�ng �00� and 
�00� ser�es bonds w�th a coupon rate rang�ng from �.00% to �.��%.  The net proceeds of 
$��,0��,��0 were used to purchase U. S. Treasury Notes.  Those secur�t�es were depos�ted �n an 
�rrevocable trust w�th an escrow agent to prov�de for future debt serv�ce payments of the 
refunded port�ons of the �00� and �00� ser�es bonds. 
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES,
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Budget Budget (Over)

Original Final Actual Under
REVENUES

Taxes ��0,�0�,���$        ���,���,���$    ���,���,���$    �,�0�,���$       
L�censes and perm�ts ���,�00                 ���,���             ���,�0�             ��,��0              
Intergovernmental �,���,���              �,���,���          �,0��,���          ���,���            
Charges for serv�ces �,���,���              �,���,���          �,�0�,���          (���,��0)           
F�nes and forfe�tures ���,��0                 �0�,���             ���,���             �0,���              
M�scellaneous �,���,���              �,��0,��0          �,���,���          (�,���,�0�)        

Total revenues ���,���,�0�          ���,���,���      ���,�0�,���      �,���,�0�         

EXPENDITURES
General government ��,���,��0         ��,���,���     ��,���,���     ���,���            
Publ�c safety ��,���,���         ��,�0�,0��     ��,���,���     ���,�0�            
Publ�c works �,���,���           �,���,���       �,���,���       (��,���)             
Health and hosp�tals �,��0,���           �,���,���       �,���,0��       ��,���              
Soc�al serv�ces �,��0,���           �,���,���       �,���,0��       ��,�0�              
Educat�on �0�,���,�0�       �0�,���,�0�   �0�,���,�0�   -                   
Recreat�on and culture �0,���,0��         �0,���,���     �0,���,���     ���,�0�            
Conservat�on of natural resources �0�,��0              �0�,�00          �0�,��0          (�,��0)               
Urban development and hous�ng �,���,���           �,���,���       �,���,���       �0�,���            
Econom�c development �,���,���           �,��0,���       �,���,���       ��,���              
Pens�ons and �nsurance ��,���,���         ��,���,���     ��,�0�,���     �,��0,���         
Debt serv�ce
   Pr�nc�pal ret�rement ��,���,���         ��,���,�0�     ��,���,�0�     �,���,000         
   Interest �,0��,���           �,0��,���       �,���,���       ���,��0            

Total expend�tures ��0,���,��0       ���,���,���      ���,���,0��      �,00�,���         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operat�ng transfers �n �,���,���              �,���,��0          �,���,���          (�,���)               
Operat�ng transfers out (�,���,��0)            (�,���,��0)         (�,���,���)         ���,���            

Total other f�nanc�ng sources (uses) (�,0��,���)            (�,���,��0)         (�,�0�,���)         ���,���            

Excess (def�c�ency) of revenue and other f�nanc�ng
    sources over expend�tures and other f�nanc�ng uses -$                      -$                  �,��0,���$        �,��0,���$       

        A reconc�l�at�on of the revenue and expend�tures of the general fund to present the comb�ned statement 
        of revenue and expend�tures on a GAAP bas�s follows:

Revenue and transfers �n (budgetary bas�s) ��0,���,��0$    
Transfer adjustment (L�brary) (���,���)           
Revenue and transfers �n (GAAP bas�s) ��0,���,���$    

Expend�tures and operat�ng transfers out (budgetary bas�s) ���,���,���$    
Encumbrance/accrual adjustment (���,���)           
Transfer adjustment (L�brary) (���,���)           
Expend�tures and operat�ng transfers out (GAAP bas�s) ���,���,��0$    
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CALVERT COUNTY MARYLAND POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

A.  Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation
Date June 

30,

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Unfunded AAL 
(UAAL) Funded Ratio

Covered
Payroll

UAAL as a % 
of Covered 

Payroll
County

�0�� �,���,���$         �0,���,��0$       ��,���,���$       �.��% N/A N/A
�0�0 -                      ��,��0,���         ��,��0,���         0.00% N/A N/A
�00� -                      ��,��0,���         ��,��0,���         0.00% N/A N/A

Board of Education

�0�� �,���,���$         ��,���,���$       ��,���,�0�$       �.��% N/A N/A
�0�0 -                      ��,0��,���         ��,0��,���         0.00% N/A N/A
�00� -                      ��,0��,���         ��,0��,���         0.00% N/A N/A

TOTAL

�0�� �,���,���$         ��0,0��,���$     ���,���,���$     �.��% N/A N/A
�0�0 -                      �0�,���,���       �0�,���,���       0.00% N/A N/A
�00� -                      �0�,���,���       �0�,���,���       0.00% N/A N/A

B. Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution

Pay as You go 
Payments Plus 
Contributions % Contributed

Net OPEB 
Obligation

Year ended June 30, 2011:
County �,���,���$         �,���,�00$         ��.��% �,���,��0$         
Board of 
Educat�on ��,���,�0�         �,���,�0�           �0.0�% ��,���,���         

��,��0,���$       �,���,�0�$         ��.��% ��,���,���$       
Year ended June 30, 2010:

County �,���,���$         �,���,���$         ��.��% �,���,�0�$         
Board of 
Educat�on ��,���,�0�         �,���,���           ��.��% ��,���,���         

��,��0,���$       �,���,���$         ��.��% ��,���,���$       
Year ended June 30 2009:

County �,�0�,���$         �,���,���$         ��.��% �,���,���$         
Board of 
Educat�on �,���,���           �,���,���           ��.�0% �,���,���           

��,���,���$       �,0��,���$         ��.��% �,���,��0$         

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CALVERT COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN
PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

A.  Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation
Date June 

30,
Actuarial

Value of Assets

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
Unfunded AAL 

(UAAL) Funded Ratio
Covered
Payroll

UAAL as a % 
of Covered 

Payroll

�0�� ��,��0,��0$     ��,���,��0$       ��,���,��0$       ��.��% �,���,���$         ��0.��%
�0�0 ��,���,���       ��,���,���         ��,���,���         ��.��% �,���,���           ���.��%
�00� ��,���,���       ��,00�,��0         ��,���,���         ��.��% �0,��0,���         ���.0�%
�00� ��,���,��0       ��,���,���         �,���,0��           ��.��% �0,��0,���         ��.��%
�00� ��,���,���       ��,���,���         �,�0�,0�0           ��.��% �0,���,���         ��.��%
�00� ��,���,���       ��,�0�,���         �,���,��0           ��.��% �0,���,���         ��.��%

B. Schedule of Employer Contributions

Years
Ended

June 30, Contribution

Annual
Required

Contribution
Percentage

Contributed

�0�� �,0�0,000$       �,���,��0$         �0�.��%
�0�0 �,���,���         �,0��,���           ��.��%
�00� �,���,���         �,���,�0�           ��.��%
�00� �,���,0��         �,���,0��           �00.00%
�00� �,��0,000         �,���,���           �00.0�%
�00� �,��0,000         �,���,0��           ��.��%

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

CALVERT COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 
PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

A.  Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation
Date June 

30,

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL) Funded Ratio
Covered
Payroll

UAAL as a % 
of Covered 

Payroll

�0�� �0,�0�,���$   ��,���,���$     ��,���,���$     ��.��% �0,���,���$     ���.��%
�0�0 ��,���,���     ��,���,���       ��,���,���       ��.��% �0,���,���       ���.0�%
�00� ��,���,���     ��,���,���       ��,0��,���       ��.�0% �0,0��,���       ��0.0�%
�00� ��,�0�,���     ��,��0,��0       �,���,���         ��.��% �,���,���         �0.��%
�00� ��,���,���     ��,���,���       �,���,���         ��.��% �,�0�,���         ��.��%
�00� ��,���,���     ��,���,���       �,���,0��         ��.��% �,���,�0�         ��.��%

B. Schedule of Employer Contributions

Years
Ended June 

30, Contribution

Annual
Required

Contribution
Percentage

Contributed

�0�0 �,���,000$     �,���,�0�$       �0�.��%
�0�0 �,���,000       �,���,���         ��.��%
�00� �,���,���       �,���,���         ��.��%
�00� �,���,���       �,���,0��         �0�.��%
�00� �,��0,000       �,���,���         �00.0�%
�00� �,�0�,�00       �,��0,���         ��.��%

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

(VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENTS & RESCUE SQUADS)
PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

A.  Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation
Date June 

30,

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL) Funded Ratio
Covered
Payroll

UAAL as a % 
of Covered 

Payroll

�0�� �,���,�0�$       �,���,��0$       �,��0,���$       ��.��% N/A N/A
�0�0 �,��0,�0�         �,���,���         �,���,���         ��.��% N/A N/A
�00� �,���,���         �,0�0,��0         �,���,���         ��.��% N/A N/A
�00� �,���,���         �,��0,000         �,���,0��         ��.�0% N/A N/A
�00� �,���,���         �,���,���         �,���,���         ��.��% N/A N/A
�00� �,���,�0�         �,0�0,���         �,��0,���         ��.��% N/A N/A

B. Schedule of Employer Contributions

Years
Ended

June 30, Contribution

Annual
Required

Contribution
Percentage

Contributed

�0�� ���,000$          ���,���$          ��.��%
�0�0 ���,000            ���,���            ��.��%
�00� ���,000            ���,000            �00.00%
�00� ���,���            ���,���            �00.00%
�00� ��0,000            ���,���            �00.��%
�00� ��0,000            ���,���            ��.��%

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY
CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2011
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)  - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Over

Original Final Actual (Under)
TaxesTaxes

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes
Real estate levy ���,���,���$  ���,���,���$  ���,���,���$  (���,��0)$
Personal property levy ���,000           ���,000           ���,���           ��,���
Corporat�on levy �,�00,000        �,�00,000        �,��0,��0        (���,��0)
Payment �n l�eu of tax (PILOT) ��,���,���      ��,���,���      ��,���,���      -
Publ�c ut�l�t�es tax ��,���,���      ��,���,���      ��,�0�,���      ���,�0�
Add�t�ons and abatements (�00,000)          (�00,000)          (�0�,���)          ��,���
Penalt�es and �nterest �00,000           �00,000           ���,���           ��,���
Tax cred�t (�,���,��0)       (�,���,��0)       (�,���,���)       ��,���
L d t� d�t (��0 000) (��0 000) (��� ���) (�� ���)Land preservat�on cred�t (��0,000)        (��0,000)        (���,���)        (��,���)

Total Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes ���,�0�,���    ���,�0�,���    ���,��0,���    ���,���

Other Local Taxes
Income taxes ��,���,��0      ��,���,��0      ��,���,���      �,���,0��
Adm�ss�ons and amusement tax �0,000             �0,000             ��,�0�             (�,���)
Recordat�on taxes �,�00,000        �,�00,000        �,��0,���        (���,���)
Tra�ler parks ��0,000           ��0,000           ���,���           (�,���)
Hotel tax ��0,000           ��0,000           ���,���           ��,���

Total Other Local Taxes ��,���,��0      ��,���,��0      ��,���,�0�      �,���,���

Shared State Taxes
H�ghway user revenue �00,000           �00,000           ��0,���           ��0,���
Franch�se tax �,0�0,000        �,0�0,000        �,���,���        ���,���

Total State Shared Taxes �,��0,000        �,��0,000        �,��0,���        ��0,���

Total Taxes ��0,�0�,���    ���,���,���    ���,���,���    �,�0�,���

L�censes and Perm�ts
Bus�ness L�censes and Perm�ts

Bu�lders' l�censes ��,000             ��,000             ��,���             (�,���)
Beer, w�ne, and l�quor l�censes �0,000             ��,���             ���,���           ��,00�
Traders ��,000             ��,000             ��,���             (��,���)
Hawkers and peddlers �,000               �,000               ��,���             ��,���
Junk dealers -                   -                   ��                    ��
Fortune tellers -                   -                   ��0                  ��0

Total Bus�ness L�censes and Perm�ts ���,000           ��0,���           ���,���           ��,��0

Other Perm�ts
An�mal ��,000           ��,000           ��,��� (�,���)An�mal ��,000 ��,000 ��,��� (�,���)
Code book sales �00                  �00                  �,�0�               �0�
Marr�age �,�00               �,�00               �,���               �,0��
Gambl�ng perm�ts ��,000             ��,000             ��,��0             �,��0

Total Other Perm�ts ��,�00             ��,�00             ��,��0             �,0�0

Total L�censes and Perm�ts ���,�00           ���,���           ���,�0�           ��,��0

Intergovernmental Revenue
Federal Grants

Federal Emergency Management �� 000 �� 000 �� �0� �� �0�Federal Emergency Management ��,000 ��,000 ��,�0� ��,�0�
  F.E.M.A. re�mbursement -                   -                   �0�,���           �0�,���
  Bu�ld Amer�ca Bond Subs�dy -                   -                   ���,���           ���,���
  Federal Detent�on per d�em �0,000             �0,000             -                   (�0,000)

Total Federal Grants ��,000             ��,000             ���,���           ���,���

State Grants
  Pol�ce Protect�on - State ��0,000           ��0,000           ��0,�00           �0,�00
  L�brary - State ��0,000           �0�,���           �0�,���           -
  So�l Conservat�on - State ��,���             ��,���             ��,���             -

State Pr�soner Hous�ng �00 000 �00 000 �� 0�0 (�0 ��0)State Pr�soner Hous�ng �00,000 �00,000 ��,0�0 (�0,��0)
  Mosqu�to Control - State -                   -                   ��,�0�             ��,�0�
  Jury Re�mbursement - State �0,000             �0,000             ��,0��             (��,���)
  Other state Re�mbursement ��,000             �0,���             ��,���             �,���

Total State Grants �,0��,���        �,0��,0��        �,0��,���        ��,���
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)  - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Over

Original Final Actual (Under)
Other IntergovernmentalOther Intergovernmental
  ��� Grant ��0,000$         ��0,000$         ��0,���$         (��,���)$
  Shore Eros�on ��,���             ��,���             ��,���             -
  Hous�ng Author�ty �,0�0,���        �,0��,���        �,�0�,��0        ��,0��
  CMM payroll re�mbursement - CMM Board of Governors ��0,��0           ��0,��0           ���,���           (��,�0�)
  CMM Payroll Re�mbursement - CMM Soc�ety ���,���           ���,���           ���,0��           (��,�0�)

Total Other Intergovernmental �,���,���        �,��0,���        �,���,���        (���,�00)

Total Intergovernmental Revenues �,���,���        �,���,���        �,0��,���        ���,���

Ch f �Charges for serv�ces
Publ�c Safety

Sher�ff's fees ��,000             ��,000             ��,���             ��,���
Chesapeake Beach Pol�ce re�mbursements ���,���           ���,���           ���,���           -
North Beach Pol�ce re�mbursements ���,���           ���,���           ���,���           -
Dom�n�on pol�ce re�mbursement �,���,��0        �,���,��0        �,��0,000        (���,��0)
Lab fees ��,000             ��,000             �,�0�               (�,���)
Eng�neer�ng �nspect�ons ���,000           ���,000           ���,���           (�,�0�)
DWI fac�l�ty -                   -                   �,��0               �,��0
Electron mon�tor Detent�on Center ��,000             ��,000             ��,���             (�,���)
Telephone comm�ss�on - Detent�on Center ���,000           ���,000           ��0,���           (���,00�)
Room and board - Detent�on Center �0,000             �0,000             �0,��0             (��,0�0)
S�ck call Detent�on Center �,000               �,000               �,���               (�,0��)
False alarm fees �,000               �,000               -                   (�,000)
False alarm reg�strat�on �,�00               �,�00               �,��0               (��0)
Protect�ve �nspect�ons ��0,000           ��0,000           ���,�0�           �,�0�
Publ�c safety tower �0,000             �0,000             ��,���             �,���

Total Publ�c Safety �,���,���        �,���,���        �,0��,0��        (���,���)

General Serv�ces
Waterman's Wharf �,�00               �,�00               �,000               �00
Tenn�son charters �0,000             �0,000             �0,0��             ��
Flag Pond entrance fees �0,000             �0,000             ��,���             �,���
Boat ramp fees �,000               �,000               �,���               (�,���)
K�ngs Land�ng camp fees -                   -                   ��,�0�             ��,�0�
P&R self-susta�ned program ��,000             ��,000             -                   (��,000)
Mosqu�to control �0,000             �0,000             ��,���             (���)

Total General Serv�ces ���,�00           ���,�00           ���,���           �,0��

Publ�c WorksPubl�c Works
Road tax d�str�cts ��,��0             ��,��0             �0,0��             �,���
Developer street s�gns �00                  �00                  ���                  (���)
Waterway �mprovements �,���               �,���               �,���               �0�

Total Publ�c Works ��,���             ��,���             ��,���             �,���

Commun�ty Resources
L�brary - other sources -                   ��,000             ��,0��             ��
L�brary - E-rate �0,000             �0,000             �,���               (�,�0�)
L�brary other m�sc. �,000               ��,�00             ��,��0             �,0�0
L�brary - copy�ng and m�scellaneous �� �00 �� 000 �� ��� � ���L�brary - copy�ng and m�scellaneous ��,�00 ��,000 ��,��� �,���
Off�ce on Ag�ng - bus tr�p revenue -                   �,���               �,���               -
Off�ce on Ag�ng sen�or class revenue -                   �,���               �,���               -

Total Commun�ty Resources ��,�00             ��,���             �0,���             �,���

Other Charges for Serv�ces
Adm�n�strat�on fees sem�-annual serv�ce charges �0,000             �0,000             ��,0�0             (��,��0)
Rents and concess�ons �0,000             �0,000             ��,���             (��,���)
Rent from Concrete Plant ��,000             ��,000             �0,���             �,���
Map sales �00                  �00                  ��0                  (��0)

Total Other Charges for Serv�ces ��� �00 ��� �00 �� ��� (�� ���)Total Other Charges for Serv�ces ���,�00 ���,�00 ��,��� (��,���)

Total Charges for Serv�ces �,���,���        �,���,���        �,�0�,���        (���,��0)
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)  - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Over

Original Final Actual (Under)
F�nes fees and Forfe�turesF�nes, fees, and Forfe�tures

General Government
So�l conservat�on grad�ng fees �0,000$           �0,000$           ��,���$           �,���$
Eros�on/sedentary control �00                  �00                  ��0                  (��0)
Replant�ng fees - Plann�ng & Zon�ng �,000               �,000               �,��0               ��0
Plann�ng and Zon�ng tower fees �00                  �00                  �00                  �00
Board of Appeals appl�cat�on fees �0,000             �0,000             ��,��0             (�,��0)
Adm�n�strat�on plant�ng bond �,�00               �,�00               -                   (�,�00)
Small lot clear�ng fees �00                  �00                  -                   (�00)

Total General Government ��,�00             ��,�00             ��,���             (���)

Other F�nes, Fees, and Forfe�tures
Domest�c master fees �00                  �00                  ��0                  (��0)
Commun�ty serv�ce programs ��,000             ��,000             ��,�0�             (�,���)
Cr�m�nal court f�nes �,000               �,000               �,���               �,���
Court f�nes ems -                   -                   ��,���             ��,���
Home study fees �,000               �,000               ��,���             �0,���
An�mal c�tat�on f�nes �,000               �,000               �,��0               (�,��0)
State's attorney fees -                   �,���               �,���               �,�0�
Forfe�ture - State's attorney -                   ���                  ���                  -
Forfe�ture sher�ff operat�ng ��� ��� ��� ���Forfe�ture sher�ff operat�ng - ���,��� ���,���         -
Adm�n�strat�on fee - Grant Coord�nator ��0,000           ��0,000           ���,���           ��,���
F�l�ng fees Elect�on Off�ce ��0                  ��0                  ���                  ���
Auto l�cense fees �,�00               �,�00               �,���               (��)
L�brary f�nes ���,000           ��0,000           ���,�0�           (�,0��)
Zon�ng fees �0,000             �0,000             ��,���             �,���

Total Other F�nes, Fees, and Forfe�tures �0�,��0           ���,���           ���,���           ��,0��

Total F�nes, Fees, and Forfe�tures ���,��0           �0�,���           ���,���           �0,���

Investment RevenueInvestment Revenue
Interest and d�v�dends �,�00,000        �,�00,000        ���,���           (�,���,�0�)
Interest on notes -                   -                   �,��0               �,��0
Apprec�at�on of �nvestment -                   -                   (�0,���)            (�0,���)

Total Investment Revenue �,�00,000        �,�00,000        ���,���           (�,���,���)

Re�mbursements
State Off�ce Bu�ld�ng debt serv�ce ���,���           ���,���           -                   (���,���)
Detent�on center conmed refund -                   �,��0               ��,0��             ��,���
Salary re�mbursements ��,000             ��,��0             ��,���             (��,���)
B ttl C k PR � b t � �00 � �00 � ��� � ���Battle Creek PR re�mbursements �,�00             �,�00             �,���             �,���
Insurance re�mbursement -                   �,0��,���        �,���,���        ���,�0�
C�rcu�t ct. clerks off�ce re�mbursement -                   -                   �,���               �,���

Total Re�mbursements ���,���           �,���,���        �,���,�00        (���,���)

Other Revenue
Balance from pr�or year fund balance -                   ���,���           -                   (���,���)
Pr�vate contr�but�ons -                   �,���               �0,���             �,000
Pr�vate contr�but�ons econ development -                   �,�00               �,�00               -
M�scellaneous �ncome ��,000             �0�,��0           ���,0��           ��,���

Total Other Revenue ��,000             ���,�0�           ���,0��           (��,���)

Total Revenue ���,���,�0�    ���,���,���    ���,�0�,���    �,���,�0�

Other f�nanc�ng sources
Transfer from Board of Educat�on - Res�dent Trooper ���,���           ��,��0             �0,���             (��,���)
Transfer from Board of Educat�on -                   �,�00,000        �,�00,000        -
Transfer from BOE w�reless �0,000             �0,000             ��,�0�             �,�0�
Transfer from OPEB �,�00,000        -                   -                   -
Transfer from Exc�se Fee Fund �,0�0,000        �,0�0,000        �,0�0,000        -

Total other f�nanc�ng sources �,���,���        �,���,��0        �,���,���        (�,���)

Total revenue and other f�nanc�ng sources ���,���,��0$ ���,���,���$ ��0,���,��0$ �,�0�,���$
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Variance
(Over)

Original Final Actual Under
General Government

County Comm�ss�oners

Salar�es ���,0��$           ���,0��$           ��0,��0$           (�,���)$
Operat�ng expense �0,���               ��,���               ��,���               �0,���
Contracted serv�ces �,��0                 �,��0                 �,��0                 �,��0

Total County Comm�ss�oners ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,��0

Clerk to Comm�ss�oners
Salar�es �0,���               �0,���               ��,0��               (��)
Operat�ng expense �,���                 �,���                 ���                    �,���
Contracted serv�ces ���                    ���                    -                         ���

Total Clerk to Comm�ss�oners ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,0��

County Adm�n�strator
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ��0,���             (�,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,��0               ��,0��               ��,0��               �,0��
Contracted serv�ces ��,�0�               ��,���               ��,���               �0,���
Cap�tal outlay �,000                 �,000                 -                         �,000

Total County Adm�n�strator ���,�0�             ���,�0�             ���,0��             ��,0��

Off�ce of Management Informat�on Systems
Salar�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,�0�,���          (�,���)
Operat�ng expense ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���
Contracted serv�ces ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �0,���
Cap�tal outlay ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �0,���

Total Off�ce of Management Informat�on Systems �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          ��0,���

C�rcu�t Court
Salar�es ��0,���             ��0,���             ���,���             (��,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,��0               ��,���               ��,0�0               ��,���
Contracted serv�ces �0� �0� �0� ��� �0 �0� �� ���

Budgeted Amount

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Contracted serv�ces �0�,�0� �0�,��� �0,�0� ��,���
Cap�tal outlay -                         �,���                 �,��0                 �0�

Total C�rcu�t Court ���,��0             ���,��0             ���,���             �,���

Orphans' Court
Salar�es ��,��0               ��,��0               ��,���               (��)
Operat�ng expense �,0�0                 �,0�0                 ���                    �,���

Total Orphans' Court ��,��0               ��,��0               ��,���               �,�0�

State's Attorney
Salar�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          ��,���
Operat�ng expense �0,���               ��,���               ��,�0�               �0,��0
Contracted serv�ces ��,��0               ��,�00               ��,���               �0�
Cap�tal outlay �00                    ���                    ���                    �00

Total State's Attorney �,���,�0�          �,���,���          �,���,���          ��,���

Grand Jury
Salary and operat�ng expense �,000                 �,��0                 �,���                 ���.

Department of Employment Serv�ces
Salar�es ��0,000             �0�,�00             �0�,���             �,�0�
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,0��               ��,�0�
Tu�t�on program ��,000               ��,000               ��,���               �,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               ��,���

Total Department of Employment Serv�ces ���,���             ���,���             ���,��0             ��,���
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Variance
(Over)

Original Final Actual Under
Budgeted Amount

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Elect�ons
Salar�es ���,���$           ���,���$           ���,���$           �,���$
Operat�ng expense �0,0�0               �0,0�0               ��,���               ��,0��
Contracted serv�ces ��0,�00             ��0,�00             ���,���             ��,���
Elect�on judges ��,�00               ��,�00               ��,���               ��,���
Cap�tal outlay �0,��0               �0,��0               -                         �0,��0

Total Elect�ons ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���

F�nance and Budget
Salar�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,�0�          ��,���
Operat�ng expense ���,���             ���,���             �0,���               ��,���
Contracted serv�ces ���,���             ���,�0�             ���,0��             �0,���
Cap�tal outlay -                         �,���                 �,��0                 (�,���)

Total F�nance and Budget �,��0,���          �,��0,���          �,���,���          ��,���

Tax Collect�ons and D�sbursements
Salar�es �0�,���             �0�,���             ��0,���             (�,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,��0               ��,��0               ��,���               �0�
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,���

Total Tax Collect�ons and D�sbursements ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �,���

Independent Account�ng and Aud�t�ng ��,0��               ��,0��               ��,���               �,���
    

County Attorney
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (��,�0�)
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,000               ��,000               ��,���               (��,���)

Total County Attorney ���,�00             ���,�00             ���,���             (��,���)

Plann�ng and Zon�ng
S l � � 0�0 ��� � 0�0 ��� � ��� ��� (��� ���)Salar�es �,0�0,��� �,0�0,��� �,���,��� (���,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,0��               ��,���               �,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,�00               �0,���               ��,�0�               �,���
Cap�tal outlay ��,�00               ��,��0               ��,���               �,�0�

Total Plann�ng and Zon�ng �,���,���          �,���,�0�          �,���,���          (���,��0)

Publ�c Fac�l�t�es D�rector
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ��0,�0�             (�,0��)
Operat�ng expense �,00�                 �,���                 �,���                 ���
Cap�tal outlay -                         ��0                    ���                    ��

Total Publ�c Fac�l�t�es D�rector ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (�,���)

County Bu�ld�ngs
Salar�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,��0,���          ��,��0
Operat�ng expense ���,��0             �,�00,�00          ���,�0�             ���,���
Ut�l�t�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,�0�,0��          ���,��0
Ma�ntenance and repa�r projects ���,���             �0�,0�0             ���,���             ��,���
Contracted serv�ces ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,��0
Cap�tal outlay ���,�00             ���,��0             ���,���             ��,0��

Total County Bu�ld�ngs �,�0�,���          �,�0�,���          �,���,���          ��0,0��



-78-

Variance
(Over)

Original Final Actual Under
Budgeted Amount

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Other General Government
Maryland Assoc�at�on of Count�es ��,000$             ��,000$             ��,���$             ��$
Comm�ss�on for Women �,�00                 �,�00                 �,00�                 �,0��
Env�ronmental Comm�ss�on �,���                 �,���                 �,��0                 �,���
Non-county agenc�es �,���,���          �,0�0,���          �,0��,���          �,��0

Total Other General Government �,��0,0��          �,���,���          �,��0,���          �,�0�

Total General Government ��,���,��0        ��,���,���        ��,���,���        ���,���

Public Safety
D�rector of Publ�c Safety

Salar�es ���,�0�             ���,�0�             ���,0��             �,0��
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,�0�               ��,���
Contracted serv�ces �,�00                 �,0��                 �0�                    ���
Cap�tal outlay -                         �,���                 �,���                 �

Total D�rector of Publ�c Safety �0�,���             �0�,���             ���,0��             �0,���

Transportat�on Ch�ef
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (�,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,�0�               ��,�0�               ��,���               �,���
Transportat�on subs�dy ��,000               ��,000               ��,���               ��,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,���

Total Transportat�on Ch�ef ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���

Sher�ff's Off�ce
Salar�es �,���,���          �,��0,���          �,���,���          (���,�0�)
Operat�ng expense ���,���             �,���,��0          �,���,���          ��,0��
Veh�cle suppl�es and repa�rs �0�,0��             ���,���             ���,���             ��,�0�
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               ���,0��             ��,��0               ��,���
Cap�tal outlay ���,��� ���,��� ���,��� �0,���Cap�tal outlay ���,��� ���,��� ���,��� �0,���

Total Sher�ff's Off�ce ��,���,���        ��,��0,���        ��,0��,���        (���,���)

Control Center
Salar�es �,���,0��          �,���,0��          �,���,���          �,���
Operat�ng expense ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,��0
Rad�o ma�ntenance ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �,0��
Contracted serv�ces ��0,000             ��0,000             ���,���             ��,���
Cap�tal outlay ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             -

Total Control Center �,���,�0�          �,���,�0�          �,���,���          ��,���

Res�dent Trooper Program ���,���             ���,���             ���,0��             ��,���

Volunteer F�re Compan�es & Rescue Squads
Operat�ng expense �,0��,��0          �,0��,���          �,���,���          ���,�0�
Insurance ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �,��0
Cap�tal outlay ��0,�00             ���,000             ���,0��             (��)

Total Volunteer F�re Compan�es & Rescue Squads �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          ���,0��

County Ja�l
Salar�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          (���,���)
Operat�ng expense ���,���             ��0,���             ���,�0�             ��,0��
Ut�l�t�es ���,���             ���,�0�             ���,���             (�,�0�)
Inmate care ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (���)
Food ��0,���             ��0,���             ���,���             ��,0��
Contracted serv�ces �0�,���             �0�,���             �0�,���             �,���
Cap�tal outlay ��,�00               ��,�00               ��,���               ��,���

Total County Ja�l �,00�,���          �,0��,�0�          �,0��,�0�          (��,���)
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Inspect�ons and Perm�ts
Salar�es ���,���$           ���,���$           ���,���$           �,�00$
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,�0�               ��,���               ��,��0
Veh�cle suppl�es and repa�r ��,000               �,���                 �,���                 �,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,�00               ��,�00               ��,�00               -
Cap�tal outlay �,���                 �,���                 �,�0�                 �,���

Total Inspect�ons and Perm�ts ���,�0�             ���,�0�             ���,0��             ��,00�

Res�dent�al Substance Abuse Treatment
Contracted serv�ces ���,000             ���,000             ���,���             ��,���

Total Treatment Fac�l�ty ���,000             ���,000             ���,���             ��,���

Emergency Management
Salar�es ���,��0             ���,��0             ��0,���             ��,���
Operat�ng expense ��,��0               ��,���               ��,���               �,��0
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               ���
Cap�tal outlay -                         ���                    ���                    (�)

Total Emergency Management ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,00�

L�quor Board
Salar�es ��,��0               ��,��0               ��,0�0               (��0)
Operat�ng expense �00                    �00                    ���                    ���
Contracted serv�ces �,000                 ��,�0�               ��,���               ���

Total L�quor Board ��,��0               ��,���               ��,�0�               ���

F�re, Rescue, and Emergency Serv�ces
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �,���
Operat�ng expense ���,��0             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���
Contracted serv�ces �� ��0 �� ��0 �� 00� � ���Contracted serv�ces ��,��0 ��,��0 ��,00� �,���
Cap�tal outlay -                         ��,���               ��,���               -

Total F�re, Rescue, and Emergency Serv�ces ���,0��             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���

An�mal Warden
Salar�es ���,�0�             ���,�0�             ���,���             �,��0
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               ��,���
Veh�cle suppl�es and repa�rs ��,��0               ��,��0               ��,���               ���
Contracted serv�ces ���,000             ���,000             ���,���             ��,���
Cap�tal outlay �,�00                 �,0��                 �,0��                 -

Total An�mal Warden ���,�0�             ���,�0�             ���,�0�             ��,���

Total Public Safety ��,���,���        ��,�0�,0��        ��,���,���        ���,�0�

Public Works
Eng�neer�ng Serv�ces

Salar�es �,00�,���          �,00�,���          �,0�0,���          (��,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               ��,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               �0,���               ��,���               �0,���
Cap�tal outlay -                         ���                    ���                    -

Total Eng�neer�ng Serv�ces �,���,���          �,���,�00          �,���,���          (��,���)

H�ghway L�ght�ng
Operat�ng expense ���,��0             ���,��0             ���,��0             �,�00
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H�ghway Ma�ntenance
Salar�es �,���,0��$        �,���,�0�$        �,�0�,���$        ��,���$
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ���,���             ���,���             �,���
Veh�cle suppl�es and repa�rs �0�,���             ���,���             ���,���             (���)
Ut�l�t�es ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,���
Road ma�ntenance and repa�rs ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (���,���)
Pav�ng �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          -
Snow removal contractors ���,��0             �0�,000             ��0,���             (��,���)
Rental serv�ce contract ���,��0             ���,��0             ���,��0             -
Contracted serv�ces ���,��0             �0�,���             ���,��0             ��,�0�
Cap�tal outlay ���,000             ���,���             ���,���             ��

Total H�ghway Ma�ntenance �,���,��0          �,���,���          �,���,���          (��0,���)

Fleet Ma�ntenance
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,��0             ��,���
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               �0,�0�               �,0��
Veh�cle suppl�es and repa�rs ��,000               ��,000               (���,���)            ���,���
Ut�l�t�es �0,���               �0,���               ��,���               (�,���)
Contracted serv�ces ��,000               ��,000               ��,��0               �,��0
Cap�tal outlay �,000                 ���                    ���                    �0�

Total Fleet Ma�ntenance ��0,���             ��0,���             ��0,���             ��0,0��

Project Management and Inspect�ons
Salar�es ���,0��             ���,���             ���,���             (�,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,��0               ��,���               �0,���               �,���
Veh�cle suppl�es and repa�rs ��,��0               �,���                 ��,0��               (�,���)

Total Project Management and Inspect�ons ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (�0,0��)

Total Public Works �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          (��,���)

Health and Hospitals
Health Department

Salar�es -                         ��,�00               ��,���               (���)
Operat�ng expense �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          (���)

Total Health Department �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,0��          (���)

Mosqu�to Control
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,�0�             ��,��0
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               ���
Chem�cals ��,000               ��,000               ��,���               ��
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �
Cap�tal outlay ��,��0               ��,00�               ��,000               �

Total Mosqu�to Control ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���

Total Health and Hospitals �,��0,���          �,���,���          �,���,0��          ��,���

Social Services
Commun�ty Serv�ce D�rector

Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (��,���)
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               ��,��0
Contracted serv�ces �,���                 �,���                 �00                    �,���

Total Commun�ty Serv�ce D�rector ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �,���
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Department of Soc�al Serv�ces
County contr�but�on ��,���$             ��,���$             ��,���$             �0�$

Pauper's Bur�al �,000                 �,000                 -                         �,000

Comm�ss�on on Ag�ng
Salar�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,�0�,�0�          ��,���
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               ��,���
Contracted serv�ces                         - �,���                 �,���                 -
Cap�tal outlay -                         ��                      ��                      �

Total Comm�ss�on on Ag�ng �,���,�0�          �,���,���          �,���,���          ��,���

Total Social Services �,��0,���          �,���,���          �,���,0��          ��,�0�

Education
Tu�t�on program �,���,0��          �,���,0��          �,���,0��          -
Board of Educat�on �0�,0�0,��0      �0�,0�0,��0      �0�,0�0,��0      -

Total Education �0�,���,�0�      �0�,���,�0�      �0�,���,�0�      -

Recreation and Culture
Part�c�pat�on Recreat�on

Salar�es �,���,���          �,���,���          �,�0�,���          ���,���
Operat�ng expense ���,0��             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���
Ut�l�t�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,�0�             �,���
Ma�ntenance and repa�r projects ��,000               ��,000               �0,�0�               �,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,000               ��,000               ��,���               ��,���
Cap�tal outlay �,�00                 ��,��0               �0,�0�               ���

Total Part�c�pat�on Recreat�on �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          ���,���

Ra�lroad Museum
Salar�es ��,�0�               ��,�0�               ��,���               (�,��0)
Operat�ng expense ��,���               �,���                 �,���                 (��)
Ut�l�t�es �,���                 �,���                 �,��0                 �,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,0��               ��,���               ��,���               (�,���)
Cap�tal outlay �,�00                 �,���                 �,���                 �

Total Ra�lroad Museum ���,���             ���,���             ���,��0             �

Mar�ne Museum
Salar�es �,���,��0          �,���,��0          �,��0,���          �,���
Operat�ng expense ���,���             �0�,���             ���,���             ��,���
Ut�l�t�es �0�,���             �0�,���             ���,���             �,���
Ma�ntenance and repa�r projects ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,��0
Contracted serv�ces ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,���
Cap�tal outlay ��,000               �0,���               �0,���               �

Total Mar�ne Museum �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,��0          ��,���

L�brar�es
Salar�es -                         �,���,0��          �,���,���          ��,���
Operat�ng expense �,���,���          �,���,0��          �,���,0��          ��,���
Contracted serv�ces -                         ��,000               �0,�0�               �,���
Cap�tal outlay -                         ��,000               ��,000               -

Total L�brar�es �,���,���          �,��0,0��          �,���,���          ��,���
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Natural Resources D�v�s�on
Salar�es ���,���$           ���,���$           ���,���$           �,���$
Operat�ng expense ��,���               ��,���               ��,���               �,��0
Ut�l�t�es ��,���               ��,���               �0,���               �,���
Ma�ntenance and repa�r projects �,��0                 �,��0                 �,���                 �,���
Contracted serv�ces �0,���               �,���                 �,���                 �,��0

Total Natural Resources D�v�s�on ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,��0

Arts Counc�l
Operat�ng expense -                         �0,���               �0,���               -

Total Recreation and Culture �0,���,0��        �0,���,���        �0,���,���        ���,�0�

Conservation of Natural Resources
Agr�cultural Extens�on Serv�ce

Operat�ng expense ��,��0               ��,0�0               ��,���               �,���
Total Agr�cultural Extens�on Serv�ce ��,��0               ��,0�0               ��,���               �,���

So�l Conservat�on Serv�ce
Salar�es ��0,���             ��0,���             ���,���             (�,���)
Operat�ng expense �,���                 �,���                 �,���                 ��

Total So�l Conservat�on Serv�ce ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             (�,���)

Forestry
Operat�ng expense ��,0��               ��,0��               ��,0��               -

Total Conservation of Natural Resources �0�,��0             �0�,�00             �0�,��0             (�,��0)

Urban Development and Housing
Hous�ng

Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ��0,0�0             (��,���)
Total Hous�ng ���,���             ���,���             ��0,0�0             (��,���)

H�stor�cal D�str�ct Comm�ss�on
Salar�es �,���                 �,���                 �,���                 ���
Operat�ng expense �,0��                 �,0��                 �,���                 �,���
Contracted serv�ces �,���                 �,���                 �,�00                 ���

Total H�stor�cal D�str�ct Comm�ss�on ��,��0               ��,��0               ��,�00               �,��0

Board of Appeals
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �,���
Operat�ng expense ��,�00               ��,�00               �,���                 �,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,000               ��,000               ��,0��               ���
Honorar�um ��,000               ��,000               ��,�00               �,�00

Total Board of Appeals ��0,���             ��0,���             ���,�0�             ��,00�

Plann�ng Comm�ss�on
Salar�es ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             ��,���
Operat�ng expense ��,�00               ��,���               ��,�0�               ��,���
Contracted serv�ces ��,�00               �0,�00               ��,��0               ��,��0
Honorar�um ��,000               ��,000               ��,�00               ��,�00
Cap�tal outlay -                         �,0��                 �,�0�                 ���

Total Plann�ng Comm�ss�on ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             �00,���

Total Urban Development and Housing �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          �0�,���
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Economic Development
EDA/EDC/Tour�sm

Salar�es ���,���$           ���,���$           ���,�0�$           ���$
Operat�ng expense ���,���             ���,��0             ��,���               �0,���
Advert�s�ng ���,���             ���,���             �0�,���             ��,���
Chamber of Commerce �00,���             �00,���             �00,���             -
Small Bus�ness Development Center �0,�00               �0,�00               �0,�00               -
Contracted serv�ces �0,�00               ��0,�00             �0�,���             �,���
Cap�tal outlay �,��0                 �,���                 �,���                 ���

Total Econom�c Development �,���,���          �,��0,���          �,���,���          ��,���

Pension and Insurance
Pens�on contr�but�on �0,0��,�00        �0,0��,���        �,���,�0�          �0�,���
Workmen's' compensat�on �,���,���          �,���,���          �,���,0��          �0�,�0�
General �nsurance �,���,��0          �,���,���          �,���,���          ���,���
Other post employment benef�ts (OPEB) �,000,000          �,���,���          �,���,���          -
Cont�ngency �00,000             ���,�0�             -                         ���,�0�

Total Pens�ons and Insurance ��,���,���        ��,���,���        ��,�0�,���        �,��0,���

Debt service
Bond pr�nc�pal ret�rement

General obl�gat�ons ��,���,���        ��,���,�0�        ��,���,�0�        �,���,000

Bond �nterest
General obl�gat�ons �,0��,���          �,0��,���          �,���,���          ���,��0

Total debt serv�ce ��,���,���        ��,���,���        ��,���,���        �,���,��0

Total expenditures ��0,���,��0      ���,���,���      ���,���,0��      �,00�,���

Other financing uses
Operat�ng transfers out

Cap�tal Projects Fund �,�0�,000          �,�0�,000          �,�0�,000          -
Transfer to Grants Fund �,�0�,���          �,���,���          �,���,���          ���,���
Transfer to P&R Self-Susta�n�ng ���,���             ���,���             ���,���             -
Transfer to Land Preservat�on �0�,000             �0�,000             �0�,000             -
Transfer to Chesapeake H�lls Golf Course ��0,000             ��0,000             ���,000             ��,000
Transfer to Sol�d Waste �0,000               �0,0��               �0,0��               -

Total other f�nanc�ng uses �,���,��0          �,���,��0          �,���,���          ���,���

Total expenditures and other financing uses ���,���,��0$    ���,���,���$    ���,���,���$    �,���,��0$
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Planning  Economic
and Zoning  Development

Parks and Special  Authority
Recreation Revenue Bar Library Revolving Loan Revolving

Fund Fund Fund Fund Loan Fund

ASSETS
Cash, cash equ�valents and �nvestments ��,���$         -$                  -$               -$                       -$
Taxes rece�vable -                     -                    -                 -                         -
Accounts rece�vable �0,��0           ��,000          -                 -                         �0�,��0
Accrued �nterest rece�vable -                     -                    -                 -                         -
Due from other funds �,���,���      ���,0��        ��,���        ��,�00                ��0,���
Inventory ��,���           -                    -                 -                         -
Total assets �,���,���$    ���,0��$     ��,���$     ��,�00$             ���,���$

LIABILITIES
Vouchers and accounts payable ���,���         ���,���        �,���          -                         -
Notes payable ���,�00         -                    -                 -                         -
Due to other funds -                     -                    -                 -                         -
Deferred revenue ���,���         -                    -                 -                         -

Total l�ab�l�t�es ��0,0��         ���,���        �,���          -                         -

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable -                     -                    -                 -                         -
Restr�cted �,��0             -                    -                 -
Comm�tted ���,���         �0�,���        ��,���        ��,�00                ���,���
Ass�gned -                     -                    -                 -                         -
Unass�gned -                     -                    -                 -                         -

Total fund balances ���,���         �0�,���        ��,���        ��,�00                ���,���

Total l�ab�l�t�es and fund balances �,���,���$    ���,0��$     ��,���$     ��,�00$             ���,���$

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Board of
Economic Library

Calvert Co. Development  Land Trustee for
Family Grants Incentive Excise Tax Preservation Calvert

Network Fund Fund Fund Fund County Total

-$                     -$                         -$                    -$                  �,���,���$     �0,���$           �,�0�,���$
-                       -                           -                      ���,���        -                      -                       ���,���
-                       �,0��,���            ���,���          -                    ��                   -                       �,���,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       -

���,��0            ���,��0               ���,���          �,�0�,0��     ���,���          -                       �,���,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       ��,���

���,��0$          �,���,�0�$          �0�,���$        �,��0,�00$  �0,���,��0$  �0,���$          �0,���,00�$

��0,�0�            ��0,���               -                      -                    -                      -                       �,��0,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       ���,�00
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       -

��,���              ���,���               -                      ���,0��        -                      -                       �,���,��0
���,��0            �,00�,0��            -                      ���,0��        -                      -                       �,0��,�0�

-                       -                           -                      -                    �0,���,��0     -                       �0,���,��0
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       �,��0
-                       ���,���               �0�,���          �,���,���     -                      -                       �,���,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      �0,���             �0,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       -
-                       ���,���               �0�,���          �,���,���     �0,���,��0     �0,���             ��,���,���

���,��0$          �,���,�0�$          �0�,���$        �,��0,�00$  �0,���,��0$  �0,���$          �0,���,00�$

JUNE 30, 2011

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Board of
Economic Library

Calvert Co. Development  Land Trustee for
Family Grants Incentive Excise Tax Preservation Calvert

Network Fund Fund Fund Fund County Total

-$                     -$                         -$                    -$                  �,���,���$     �0,���$           �,�0�,���$
-                       -                           -                      ���,���        -                      -                       ���,���
-                       �,0��,���            ���,���          -                    ��                   -                       �,���,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       -

���,��0            ���,��0               ���,���          �,�0�,0��     ���,���          -                       �,���,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       ��,���

���,��0$          �,���,�0�$          �0�,���$        �,��0,�00$  �0,���,��0$  �0,���$          �0,���,00�$

��0,�0�            ��0,���               -                      -                    -                      -                       �,��0,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       ���,�00
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       -

��,���              ���,���               -                      ���,0��        -                      -                       �,���,��0
���,��0            �,00�,0��            -                      ���,0��        -                      -                       �,0��,�0�

-                       -                           -                      -                    �0,���,��0     -                       �0,���,��0
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       �,��0
-                       ���,���               �0�,���          �,���,���     -                      -                       �,���,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      �0,���             �0,���
-                       -                           -                      -                    -                      -                       -
-                       ���,���               �0�,���          �,���,���     �0,���,��0     �0,���             ��,���,���

���,��0$          �,���,�0�$          �0�,���$        �,��0,�00$  �0,���,��0$  �0,���$          �0,���,00�$

JUNE 30, 2011

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Planning  Economic
and Zoning  Development

Parks and Special  Authority
Recreation Revenue Bar Library Revolving Loan Revolving

Fund Fund Fund Fund Loan Fund
REVENUE

Taxes -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                   -$                  
Intergovernmental -                          -                      -                      -                     -                    
F�nes and forfe�tures -                          �0,���             ��,�0�             -                     -                    
M�scellaneous �,���,��0           ���,�0�           ���                  -                     �,��0             

Total revenue �,���,��0           ���,���           ��,��0             -                     �,��0             

EXPENDITURES
Salar�es and fr�nge benef�ts �,���,��0           ���,���           ��,���             -                     -                    
Educat�on and m�scellaneous �,���,���           (�,��0)             ��,���             -                     -                    

Total expend�tures �,���,���           ��0,���           ��,���             -                     -                    

Excess (def�c�ency) of revenue
     over (under) expend�tures (���,0��)             �,���               (��,���)           -                     �,��0             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operat�ng transfer �n ���,���              -                      -                      -                     -                    
Operat�ng transfer out (��,�00)               -                      -                      -                     -                    

Total other f�nanc�ng sources (uses) ���,0��              -                      -                      -                     -                    

Net change �n fund balance (��,0��)               �,���               (��,���)           -                     �,��0             

Fund balance - beg�nn�ng of year ���,���              ��,���             ���,��0           ��,�00            ���,���         

Fund balance - end of year ���,���$            �0�,���$         ��,���$           ��,�00$          ���,���$       

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Board of
Economic Library

Calvert Co. Development  Land Trustee for
Family Grants Incentive Excise Tax Preservation Calvert

Network Fund Fund Fund Fund County Total

-$                     -$                  -$                    �,���,��0$      -$                      -$                       �,���,��0$              
-                       �,�00,���     -                      -                       ��,0��              ���,���              �,���,���                
-                       -                   -                      -                       -                        ���,�0�              ���,���                   

���,���           ��0,���        �,���               ��,���             ���,���            ��,���                �,0��,00�                

���,���           �,���,���     �,���               �,���,���        ��0,���            ���,���              ��,��0,���              

��0,���           �,���,���     -                      -                       -                        �,�00,���           �,���,���                
���,���           �,�0�,��0     -                      ��,���             �,�0�,���         ���,���              �,���,���                

���,���           �,�0�,0��     -                      ��,���             �,�0�,���         �,���,���           ��,0��,0��              

-                       (�,���,���)    �,���               �,���,0��        (�,���,���)        (�,0��,���)         (�,���,���)              

-                       �,���,���     -                      -                       �0�,000            �,0��,0��           �,���,���                
-                       -                   -                      (�,���,���)       -                        -                         (�,���,���)              

-                       �,���,���     -                      (�,���,���)       �0�,000            �,0��,0��           �,���,��0                

-                       (�,���)           �,���               (��0,�0�)          (�,���,���)        (�,���)                (�,���,���)              

-                       ���,���        �0�,���           �,���,���        ��,��0,���       ��,���                ��,���,���              

-$                     ���,���$      �0�,���$         �,���,���$      �0,���,��0$     �0,���$              ��,���,���$            

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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Planning  Economic
and Zoning  Development

Parks and Special  Authority
Recreation Revenue Bar Library Revolving Loan Revolving

Fund Fund Fund Fund Loan Fund
REVENUE

Taxes -$                        -$                    -$                    -$                   -$                  
Intergovernmental -                          -                      -                      -                     -                    
F�nes and forfe�tures -                          �0,���             ��,�0�             -                     -                    
M�scellaneous �,���,��0           ���,�0�           ���                  -                     �,��0             

Total revenue �,���,��0           ���,���           ��,��0             -                     �,��0             

EXPENDITURES
Salar�es and fr�nge benef�ts �,���,��0           ���,���           ��,���             -                     -                    
Educat�on and m�scellaneous �,���,���           (�,��0)             ��,���             -                     -                    

Total expend�tures �,���,���           ��0,���           ��,���             -                     -                    

Excess (def�c�ency) of revenue
     over (under) expend�tures (���,0��)             �,���               (��,���)           -                     �,��0             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operat�ng transfer �n ���,���              -                      -                      -                     -                    
Operat�ng transfer out (��,�00)               -                      -                      -                     -                    

Total other f�nanc�ng sources (uses) ���,0��              -                      -                      -                     -                    

Net change �n fund balance (��,0��)               �,���               (��,���)           -                     �,��0             

Fund balance - beg�nn�ng of year ���,���              ��,���             ���,��0           ��,�00            ���,���         

Fund balance - end of year ���,���$            �0�,���$         ��,���$           ��,�00$          ���,���$       

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Board of
Economic Library

Calvert Co. Development  Land Trustee for
Family Grants Incentive Excise Tax Preservation Calvert

Network Fund Fund Fund Fund County Total

-$                     -$                  -$                    �,���,��0$      -$                      -$                       �,���,��0$              
-                       �,�00,���     -                      -                       ��,0��              ���,���              �,���,���                
-                       -                   -                      -                       -                        ���,�0�              ���,���                   

���,���           ��0,���        �,���               ��,���             ���,���            ��,���                �,0��,00�                

���,���           �,���,���     �,���               �,���,���        ��0,���            ���,���              ��,��0,���              

��0,���           �,���,���     -                      -                       -                        �,�00,���           �,���,���                
���,���           �,�0�,��0     -                      ��,���             �,�0�,���         ���,���              �,���,���                

���,���           �,�0�,0��     -                      ��,���             �,�0�,���         �,���,���           ��,0��,0��              

-                       (�,���,���)    �,���               �,���,0��        (�,���,���)        (�,0��,���)         (�,���,���)              

-                       �,���,���     -                      -                       �0�,000            �,0��,0��           �,���,���                
-                       -                   -                      (�,���,���)       -                        -                         (�,���,���)              

-                       �,���,���     -                      (�,���,���)       �0�,000            �,0��,0��           �,���,��0                

-                       (�,���)           �,���               (��0,�0�)          (�,���,���)        (�,���)                (�,���,���)              

-                       ���,���        �0�,���           �,���,���        ��,��0,���       ��,���                ��,���,���              

-$                     ���,���$      �0�,���$         �,���,���$      �0,���,��0$     �0,���$              ��,���,���$            

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Chesapeake Calvert
Hills Golf Marine

Course Museum Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equ�valents ��,���$                 ���,���$               ��0,�0�$               
Investments -                            �0�,��0                 �0�,��0                 

Total cash, cash equ�valents and �nvestments ��,���                   ���,���                 ���,���                 

Due from other funds ���,���                 -                            ���,���                 
Prepa�d expenses -                            �,���                     �,���                     
Inventory ��,���                   ��,���                   ��,���                   

Total current assets ���,���                 ���,0��                 ���,���                 

Non-current assets:
Restr�cted assets   

Cash and �nvestments -                            ���,���                 ���,���                 

Cap�tal assets not be�ng deprec�ated �,���,��0              �0�,��0                 �,���,��0              
Deprec�able cap�tal assets - net �,���,���              �,�0�,���              �,0��,���              
Total non-current assets �,���,���              �,���,���              �,���,0��              

Total assets �,00�,���              �,���,���              �,���,���              

LIABILITIES
Current l�ab�l�t�es:
Vouchers and accounts payable ��,���                   -                            ��,���                   
Accrued expenses ��,��0                   -                            ��,��0                   
Due to other funds -                            -                            -                            
Unearned revenue -                            ��,0�0                   ��,0�0                   
Total current l�ab�l�t�es ��,���                   ��,0�0                   ��,���                   

Noncurrent l�ab�l�t�es:
Long-term obl�gat�ons -                            -                            -                            

Total l�ab�l�t�es ��,���                   ��,0�0                   ��,���                   

NET ASSETS
Invested �n cap�tal assets, net of related debt �,���,���              �,�0�,���              �,���,���              
Restr�cted cap�tal connect�on -                            -                            -                            
Restr�cted g�fts and bequests -                            ���,���                 ���,���                 
Unrestr�cted ���,���                 ���,0��                 ���,��0                 

Total net assets �,���,���$            �,��0,�0�$            �,���,���$            
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

 COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Chesapeake Calvert
Hills Golf Marine

Course Museum Total
Operat�ng revenue:

Charges for serv�ces ���,00�$       ���,��0$       ���,���$              

Operat�ng expenses:
Salar�es & benef�ts �0�,���         �,���,���      �,���,���             
Contracted serv�ces �0,���           ���,���         ���,���                
Suppl�es ��,���           �0�,���         ���,���                
Heat, l�ght and power ��,���           ���,���         ���,���                
Deprec�at�on ���,��0         ���,��� �0�,���                
M�scellaneous ��0,���         ���,�0�         ���,0��                
Telephone �,���             �,���             ��,���                  
Compensated absences �,���             -                 �,���                    
Ma�ntenance and repa�rs ���,���         ��,���           ���,���                
Cap�tal outlay ��,���           �,���             �0,��0                  
Grant & restr�cted expenses -                 ���,���         ���,���                

Total operat�ng expenses �,0��,���      �,���,���      �,���,��0             

Operat�ng �ncome (loss) (���,���)        (�,���,���)     (�,���,���)            

Non-operat�ng revenue (expenses):

Grants -                 �0,���           �0,���                  
Contr�but�ons and fund-ra�s�ng -                 ���,���         ���,���                
M�scellaneous �ncome �0�                �0�,�0�         �0�,���                
Investment �ncome �,���             �,���             ��,��0                  

Total non-operat�ng revenue (expenses) �,���             ��0,���         ���,���                

Income (loss) before contr�but�ons and transfers (���,���)        (�,���,���)     (�,���,���)            

Operat�ng transfers �n (out) ���,000         �,���,���      �,���,���             
Cap�tal contr�but�ons -                 �0�,���         �0�,���                

Change �n net assets (���,���)        (���,���)        (���,�0�)               

Total net assets - beg�nn�ng �,0��,���      �,���,���      �,0��,���             

Total net assets - end�ng �,���,���$    �,��0,�0�$    �,���,���$           
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

 COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Chesapeake Calvert
Hills Marine

Golf Course Museum Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Rece�pts from customers ���,00�$           ���,���$           ���,���$             
Payments to suppl�ers (���,���)            (���,���) (�,��0,���)           
Payments to employees (���,00�)            (�,���,���) (�,���,���)           
Payments to other funds -                          -                     -                            
Rece�pts from other funds ���,���              -                     ���,���               

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es �,���                  (�,���,���) (�,���,��0)           

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operat�ng transfers from other funds ���,000              �,���,���          �,���,���            
Contr�but�on and fundra�s�ng rece�pts/m�sc. �0�                     ��0,���             ��0,���               

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) non-cap�tal f�nanc�ng act�v�t�es ���,�0�              �,���,���          �,0��,���            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Add�t�ons to cap�tal assets and construct�on-�n-progress (���,�0�)            (�0�,���)           (��0,���)              
Grant funds rece�ved -                      �0,���                �0,���                 
Cap�tal contr�but�ons -                      �0�,���             �0�,���               

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) cap�tal and related f�nanc�ng act�v�t�es (���,�0�)            �0,���               (���,���)              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest rece�ved on depos�ts �,���                  �,���                 ��,��0                 
Purchase of �nvestments -                      (��,���)              (��,���)                

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) �nvest�ng act�v�t�es �,���                  (��,0��)              (��,���)                

Increase �n cash and cash equ�valents ��,���                ��,0��               ��,���                 
Cash and cash equ�valents, beg�nn�ng of year ��,���                ���,0��             �0�,��0               

Cash and cash equ�valents, end of year ��,���$             ���,���$           ��0,�0�$

PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operat�ng �ncome (loss) (���,���)$          (�,���,���)$      (�,���,���)$         
Adjustments to reconc�le operat�ng �ncome (loss) to

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es
Deprec�at�on ���,��0              ���,���             �0�,���               

Changes �n assets and l�ab�l�t�es
Inventory (�,���)                �,���                 (�,���)                  
Accounts rece�vable -                      ��,���               ��,���                 
Prepa�d expenses -                      (�,���)                (�,���)                  
Deferred expend�tures -                      ��,��0               ��,��0                 
Due from other funds ���,���              -                     ���,���               
Accounts payable �,���                  -                     �,���                    
Accrued expenses ��,���                -                     ��,���                 

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es �,���$               (�,���,���)$      (�,���,��0)$

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance sheet:
Cash and �nvestments, unrestr�cted ��,���$              ���,���$           ���,���$             
Cash and �nvestments, restr�cted -                      ���,���             ���,���               

��,���                �,0��,�0�          �,0��,���            
Less - noncash equ�valent �nvestments -                      ���,0��             ���,0��               

Cash and cash equ�valents ��,���$             ���,���$           ��0,�0�$
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Operating
Fund

ASSETS
Cash, cash equ�valents and �nvestments �,���,���$            
Notes rece�vable ���,���                 
Accrued �nterest rece�vable ��,0��                   
Due from pr�mary government ���,���                 
F�xed assets (net of accumulated deprec�at�on) ��,���                   

Total assets �,���,���$            

LIABILITIES
Deferred revenue ���,���$               

Total l�ab�l�t�es ���,���                 

NET ASSETS
Invested �n cap�tal assets, net of related debt ��,���                   
Unrestr�cted �,���,���              

Total net assets �,���,���              

Total l�ab�l�t�es and net assets �,���,���$            

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COMPONENT UNIT
FUND PRESENTATION

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
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Operating
Fund

Operat�ng revenue:
Charges for serv�ces �,���$                       

Operat�ng expenses:
M�scellaneous ���                            

Total operat�ng expenses ���                            

Operat�ng �ncome (loss) �,���                         

Non-operat�ng revenue (expenses):
Investment �ncome �,���                         
Investment expense (���)                           

Total non-operat�ng revenue (expenses) �,���                         

Change �n net assets �,��0                         

Total net assets - beg�nn�ng �,���,�0�                  

Total net assets - end�ng �,���,���$                

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

 STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COMPONENT UNIT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FUND PRESENTATION
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Operating
Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Note rece�pts from customers ��,���$
Interest rece�pts from customers �,���
Payments from (to) pr�mary government (��,���)
Payments to suppl�ers (���)

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es �,��0

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest rece�ved on �nvestments �,���
Investment expenses (���)
Adjustment to market value -

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) �nvest�ng act�v�t�es �,���

Increase �n cash and cash equ�valents �,0��

Cash and cash equ�valents, beg�nn�ng of year �,���,���
Cash and cash equ�valents, end of year �,���,���$

PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operat�ng �ncome (loss) �,���$
Adjustments to reconc�le operat�ng �ncome (loss) to

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es
Changes �n assets and l�ab�l�t�es

Notes rece�vable ��,���
Due from pr�mary government (��,���)
Accounts payable -

Net cash prov�ded by (used �n) operat�ng act�v�t�es �,��0$

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance sheet:
Cash and �nvestments, unrestr�cted -$
Cash and �nvestments, restr�cted �,���,���

�,���,���
Less - noncash equ�valent �nvestments -
Cash and cash equ�valents �,���,���$

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY COMPONENT UNIT
FUND PRESENTATION

 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
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Administrative
Water Sewer Contracted and

Systems Systems Systems Shared Costs Total

Operat�ng revenue
Charges for serv�ces �,���,��0$     �,���,���$      ���,���$        -$                   �,���,���$       

Operat�ng expenses
Salar�es & benef�ts ���,���          ���,���          �0�,0��          ���,���         �,���,���         
Contracted serv�ces ��,���            �0�,���          ��,���            ��,0��           ���,���            
Suppl�es ��,���            ��,���            �,���              ��,���           ���,���            
Heat, l�ght and power �0�,���          ���,���          -                      -                     ���,0��            
Deprec�at�on �0�,���          �,���,���        -                      ��,���           �,0��,���         
M�scellaneous �0,���            ��,���            -                      ��,���           ��,���              
Telephone �,���              �,0��              ���                 �,0��             ��,���              
Compensated absences �,���              (��,���)           (���)                ��,���           �,�0�                
Ma�ntenance and repa�rs ���,���          ��0,��0          �,000              ��,���           ��0,���            
Cap�tal outlay �,���              ��,���            -                      �,���             ��,���              

Total operat�ng expenses �,�0�,���       �,���,���        ���,���          ���,���         �,���,0��         

Operat�ng �ncome (loss) (���,���)         ���,���          ��,���            (���,���)        (���,���)           

Non-operat�ng revenue (expenses)
Deferred amount on refund�ng -                      (��,0��)           -                      -                     (��,0��)             
M�scellaneous �ncome ��,���            ��,00�            -                      �,���             ��,�0�              
Tower revenue ���,���          -                      -                      -                     ���,���            
Investment �ncome �,���              ��,���            -                      (�,���)            ��,���              
Interest expense (��,���)           (���,���)         -                      -                     (�00,���)           
Developer contr�but�on -                      ���,���          -                      -                     ���,���            
Adm�n�strat�ve allocat�on (���,��0)         (���,�00)         (��,���)           ���,���         -                       

Total non-operat�ng revenue (expenses) (���,�0�)         (���,���)         (��,���)           ���,���         ��,0��              

(���,��0)         (�0�,���)         -                      -                     (���,�0�)           

Transfers
Operat�ng transfers �n (out) -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       
Cap�tal transfers �n (out) -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       

Cap�tal connect�on charges ��,���            ��,���            -                      -                     ���,���            

Change �n net assets (���,���)         (��,���)           -                      -                     (���,���)           

Total net assets - beg�nn�ng �,���,���       ��,���,���      -                      �,���,���      ��,���,���       

Total net assets - end�ng �,���,0��$     ��,���,���$    -$                    �,���,���$    ��,���,���$     

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

Income (loss) before contr�but�ons and transfers

 COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
WATER AND SEWER FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deductions June 30, 2011

Tax Redemption Fund

Assets
Cash ��,���$              ���,���$            ���,���$           ��,���$                    
Accounts rece�vable �,���                  -                      -                     �,���                        

Total Assets ��,���$              ���,���$            ���,���$           ��,���$                    

Liabilities
Accounts payable ��,��0$              ���,���$            ���,���$           ��,���$                    

Total L�ab�l�t�es ��,���$              ���,���$            ���,���$           ��,���$                    

 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF NOTES RECEIVABLE - VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENTS
AND RESCUE SQUADS - GENERAL FUND

JUNE 30, 2011
Volunteer

Fire Departments Payment Balance Balance
and Rescue Squads Term Period June 30, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011

North Beach �� years Sem�annually ���,���$                -$                 �0,���$             ���,�0�$                
� years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,���                 -                             

�� years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,�0�                 �,��0                     
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,���                    

�� years Sem�annually ��,��0                    -                   �,�00                 �,��0                     
� years Sem�annually -                             ���,000       -                        ���,000                  

�� years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,���                 -                             
�� years Sem�annually �0�,��0                  -                   �,���                 ��,���                    

���,0��                  ���,000       ��,0��               ���,��0                  

Pr�nce Freder�ck (PF) �� years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,���                 �,0��                     
�0 years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,��0                 �,���                     
�� years Sem�annually ��,0�0                    -                   �,��0                 ��,�00                    
�� years Sem�annually ���,�00                  -                   ��,�00               ���,�00                  
�� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,��0               ��,���                    
�� years Sem�annually ���,000                  -                   ��,000               ���,000                  
�� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   �,���                 ��,���                    

���,0��                  -                   ��,���               ���,���                  

Solomons �� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,���                    
�� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,���                    

� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,�0�                    
�� years Sem�annually ��,�00                    -                   �,�00                 ��,�00                    
�� years Sem�annually ��,000                    -                   �,000                 �0,000                    
�  years Sem�annually ��,�0�                    -                   ��,�0�               -                             
�� years Sem�annually ��,��0                    -                   �,��0                 ��,��0                    
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   �,���                 ��,���                    
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,0��               ��,���                    
� years Sem�annually ���,���                  -                   ��,���               ���,�0�                  

���,���                  -                   ���,0��             ���,���                  

PF Second D�str�ct � years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,���                    
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,���                    
� years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,���                 -                             

�  years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,�0�                    
���,00�                  -                   ��,���               ��0,���                  

Dunk�rk �� years Sem�annually ���,��0                  -                   �,���                 ���,���                  
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               �0,0��                    
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               �0,���                    
� years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,���                 �,���                     

�� years Sem�annually ���,�00                  -                   ��,000               ���,�00                  
�� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   �,���                 ��,�0�                    

���,0��                  -                   ��,���               ���,��0                  

Hunt�ngtown �� years Sem�annually ��,0�0                    -                   �,��0                 ��,�00                    
�� years Sem�annually �0,000                    -                   �,�00                 ��,�00                    
�� years Sem�annually �00,��0                  -                   �,���                 ��,���                    
�� years Sem�annually �0,���                    -                   ��,���               ��,��0                    
� years Sem�annually �,���                     -                   �,���                 �,���                     

�� years Sem�annually ��,��0                    -                   �,0�0                 ��,��0                    
�� years Sem�annually ���,��0                  -                   ��,��0               ��0,0�0                  
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,���               �,���                     

���,��0                  -                   ��,���               ���,���                  

St. Leonard �� years Sem�annually ��,0��                    -                   ��,�0�               ��,���                    
�� years Sem�annually ���,���                  -                   �0,���               ���,�0�                  
�� years Sem�annually ���,���                  -                   �,���                 ���,���                  

� years Sem�annually ��,��0                    -                   �,���                 ��,���                    
� years Sem�annually ��,��0                    -                   ��,���               ��,���                    

�� years Sem�annually ��,��0                    -                   �,���                 ��,���                    
���,���                  -                   ��,��0               ���,���                  

Calvert Advanced L�fe � years Sem�annually ��,�0�                    -                   ��,�0�               -                             
Support Un�t � years Sem�annually ��,�0�                    -                   ��,�0�               ��,�0�                    

� years Sem�annually ��,�0�                    -                   ��,�0�               ��,�0�                    
� years Sem�annually ��,���                    -                   ��,0��               ��,���                    

�.� years Sem�annually -                             ��,���         -                        ��,���                    
���,���                  ��,���         ��,���               ���,���                  

�,���,���$             ���,���$     ���,���$           �,���,���$             
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REAL AND PERSONAL TAXES RECEIVABLE
 GENERAL FUND

JUNE 30, 2011

Total
 Assessed Tax Rate
Value of Per $100 of Balance
Taxable Assessed Actual Amount of Taxes
Property  Value Tax Levy Collected Receivable

County Port�on
Current year property - locally assessed
Real property:

For full year levy ��,0��,���,���$    0.���$         �0�,���,���$   �0�,���,���$   �,���,��0$      
For half year levy �0,���,0��             0.���           ���,���            ���,���            -                   
North Beach ���,���,���           0.���           �,�0�,���         �,�0�,���         -                   
Chesapeake Beach ��0,���,��0           0.���           �,���,���         �,���,���         -                   
Total real property ��,���,���,���      ���,���,���     ���,��0,�0�     �,���,��0        

Personal property, �nclud�ng corporat�ons and banks ���,���,��0           �.��0           �,���,���         �,���,0��         ���,���           
Publ�c ut�l�t�es operat�ng and personal property ���,���,��0           �.��0           ��,���,�0�       ��,���,�0�       ���,00�           

Total current year ��,���,���,���$    ���,0��,0�0$   ��0,0��,���$   �,00�,���$      

Pr�or years, real, personal,
  and corporate property �,���,���        
Accrued �nterest rece�vable and serv�ce charge �,���,���        

Total pr�or years, accrued �nterest and
  �nterest and outstand�ng tax cred�t �,���,���        

Total taxes rece�vable - county port�on �,���,�0�        
Taxes rece�vable - state port�on, net of tax cred�ts ���,���           
Taxes rece�vable - towns port�on, net of tax cred�ts ���,0��           
Bay Restorat�on fee due to state  - b�lled w�th Real estate taxes ��,���             

Total taxes rece�vable �,���,���$      
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Prince Frederick, Maryland 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County Commissioners 
of Calvert County, Maryland, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which 
collectively comprise the County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland’s basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 9, 2011.  Our 
report was modified to include a reference to other auditors.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors 
audited the financial statements of the Calvert County Board of Education, as described 
in our report on the County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland’s financial 
statements.  This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of 
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are 
reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County Commissioners 
of Calvert County, Maryland’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland’s internal 
control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland’s internal 
control over financial reporting. 
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited 
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County 
Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the County 
Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland, management, others within the entity and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Clinton, Maryland 
December 9, 2011 
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY
CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

FINANCIAL TREND DATA
JUNE 30, 2011

The following schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the government’s financial 
performance and well-being have changed over the last eight years. 

The financial trend data schedules are: 
Net assets by category
Changes in net assets
General tax revenue-government activities
Fund balance of governmental funds

•
•
•
•
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The following schedules contain information to help the reader access the government’s most 
significant local revenue source, property taxes. 

The revenue capacity schedules are: 
Assessed and estimated actual value of taxable property
Direct and overlapping real property tax rates
Principal property taxpayers
Summary of property tax levies and collections

•
•
•
•

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY
CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

REVENUE CAPACITY
JUNE 30, 2011
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County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates (Per $100 of Assessed Value)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(unaudited, see related notes below)
Schedule 7

Town of Town of
Fiscal Calvert Town of Chesapeake Town of Chesapeake
Year County North Beach Beach North Beach Beach
2002 (1) 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.72 0.50
2003 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.72 0.50
2004 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.72 0.50
2005 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.72 0.50
2006 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.72 0.50
2007 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.67 0.44
2008 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.67 0.44
2009 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.61 0.37
2010 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.61 0.37
2011 0.892 0.556 0.556 0.63 0.37

NOTES:
(1) As of Fiscal Year 2002, real property taxes is assessed at the property's full estimated actual value
previously real property was assessed at 40% of the property's estimated actual value.  Accordingly,
the tax rates were adjusted to maintain the effective tax rate.
(2) Towns of North Beach and Chesapeake Beach pay only the overlapping rates for County and Town
respectively.

County Rate (2) Town Rate (2)
Overlapping Rates
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County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Summary of Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(unaudited)
Schedule 9

Total Tax Collections in
Fiscal Levy for Percent Subsequent Percent
Year Fiscal Year Amount of levy Years Amount of Levy
2002 63,182,466       61,686,664      97.63% 1,446,143       63,132,807      99.92%
2003 66,188,158       64,420,874      97.33% 1,693,931       66,114,805      99.89%
2004 71,093,332       69,525,551      97.79% 1,464,226       70,989,777      99.85%
2005 78,990,817       77,613,438      98.26% 1,294,300       78,907,738      99.89%
2006 87,749,160       86,285,379      98.33% 1,308,330       87,593,709      99.82%
2007 99,359,697       97,787,042      98.42% 1,377,991       99,165,033      99.80%
2008 115,850,743     113,954,907    98.36% 1,842,551       115,797,458    99.95%
2009 126,099,233     123,501,219    97.94% 2,094,900       125,596,119    99.60%
2010 137,446,533     133,596,703    97.20% 2,468,876       136,065,579    99.00%
2011 134,047,010     130,037,865    97.01% 2,578,268       132,616,133    98.93%

Total Collections to DateFiscal Year of the Levy
Collected within the
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY
CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

DEBT CAPACITY
JUNE 30, 2011

The following schedules present information to help the reader access the affordability of 
government’s current levels of outstanding debt and government’s ability to issue additional debt in 
the future. 

The debt capacity schedules are: 
Ratios of outstanding debt by type
Ratios of net general bonded debt per capita
Pledged-revenue coverage

•
•
•
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The following schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the government’s financial activities take place, and to 
understand economic trends.

The demographic and economic schedules are:
Demographic and economic statistics
Principal employers

•
•

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY
CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2011
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County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited, see related notes below)
Schedule 13

Public
Personal Civilian Unemploy- School

Fiscal Income Per Capita Labor ment Rate  Enrollment
Year Population (1) ($ thousands)(2) Income (2) Force (3) Percent (3) (4)

2002 78,800       2,674,927        32,055      40,188 2.70% 16,371      
2003 81,600       2,834,014        32,950      41,365 3.00% 16,745      
2004 83,400       3,051,852        34,465      42,339 2.80% 16,904      
2005 84,900       3,291,470        37,930      45,503 3.40% 16,842      
2006 86,200       3,501,026        39,962      47,085 3.50% 17,113      
2007 87,100       3,705,299        42,049      47,448 3.60% 17,468      
2008 87,700       3,836,426        43,320      48,265 3.70% 17,029      
2009 88,100       3,890,676        35,833      47,347 6.40% 16,729      
2010 88,737       N/A N/A 48,220 6.10% 16,406      
2011 89,000       N/A N/A 48,070 6.20% 16,305      

NOTES:
(1) Source: Calvert County Department of Planning and Zoning
(2) Source: Maryland Department of Planning, planning data sources from U.S.
     Bureau of Economic Analysis
(3) Source: U.S. Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics
(4) Source: Calvert County Public Schools Financial Statements
(5) N/A means not available at this time but will be provided at a later date.
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County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years ago
(unaudited, see related notes below)
Schedule 14

Percentage of Percentage of
` Total County Total County

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Calvert County Public Schools 3,134        1 6.52% 2648 1 6.59%
Calvert County Government 1,189        2 2.47% 850 4 2.12%
Calvert Memorial Hospital 1,167        3 2.43% 855 3 2.13%
Constellation Energy Group (1) 892           4 1.86% 1143 2 2.84%
Wal-Mart 460           5 0.96%
Giant Food 367           7 0.76%
ARC of Southern Maryland 330           6 0.69% 351 5 0.87%
Navy Recreation Center 292           8 0.61%
Safeway 290           9 0.60%
Asbury-Solomons Inc. 229           10 0.48%
DynCorp 296 6 0.74%
Recorded Books 291 7 0.72%
Calvert Nursing Center 203 8 0.51%
The Gott Company 200 9 0.50%
DM Group 200 10 0.50%

NOTES:
(1) Employees of Calvert Cliffs Nuclear Power Plant - Corporate owner was Baltimore Gas and Electric (1997), 
     and is now Constellation Energy Group.
(2) Source: Calvert County Department of Economic Development

Fiscal Year 2011 Fiscal Year 2002
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COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CALVERT COUNTY
CALVERT COUNTY, MARYLAND

OPERATING INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2011

The following schedules contain service and infrastructure data that demonstrates how the 
information in the government’s financial report relates to the services the government provides 
and the activities it performs.  

The operating information schedules are: 
Full-time Calvert County employees by function
Operating indicators by function
Capital asset statistics by function

•
•
•



-116-

County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Full-time Calvert County Employees by Function
Last Eight Fiscal Years
(see related notes below)
Schedule 15

Function: FY2004 2004 FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009 FY2010 FY2011
General Government
  Commissioners 8 8 7 7 7 6 6 6 6
  Circuit court 7 7 10 10 10.7 10.9 10.9 10.9 10.9
  Clerk of the commissioners 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
  County administration 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3
  County attorney 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4
  Treasurers 6 6 6 6 7.6 7.6 7.6 7.6 7.6
  Election 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9
  Finance 21 21 20 22 22.6 22.6 23.6 23.6 23.6
  General services 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 5
  Buildings and grounds 24 24 26 28 31.7 32.7 32.7 32.7 32.7
  Orphans court 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
  Personnel 5 5 5 6 7.6 7.6 8.6 8.6 8.6
  States attorney 18 18 18 18 20.1 20.1 20.1 21.1 22.1
  Technology services 15 15 17 17 18.6 19.6 21.8 21.8 21.8

Public Safety
  Transportation 1 1 1 2 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8
  Mosquito control 1 1 1 1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1
  Public safety 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
  Control center 25 25 25 29 30 30 30 30 30
  Emergency management 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3
  Fire and rescue 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4.5 5.5
  Inspections and permits 13 13 13 13 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2 14.2
  Animal control 4 4 5 5 5 6 7 7 7
  Detention center 64 64 64 65 67 77.6 81.6 81.6 85.6
  Sheriffs office 100 100 105 115 131.2 134.2 139.2 139.2 142.2
  Liquor board 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3.2 3.2

Public Works
  Public works 14 14 14 16.6 16.6 16.6 14.6 15.2
  Planning commission 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 10.1 10
  Project anagement 8 8 8 8 8 8 7 7 7
  Fleet maintenance 7 7 7 8 9 9 10 10 10
  Highway maintenance 33 33 33 33 33.6 33.6 36.6 36.6 36

Social Services
  Community resources 4 4 4 4 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
  Office on aging 23 23 23 23 23.5 24.6 24.6 24.6 24.6

Recreation
  Marine museum 35 35 36 36 40.2 40.2 40.2 40.2 40.2
  Railway museum 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2
  Recreation programs 57 57 59 62 68.7 69.7 70 70.7 68.6

Library 45.3 45.3 45.3 50.2 52.2 52.2 52.8 52.8

Conservation of Natural Resources 12 8 12 13.2 13.2 13.2 13.2 13.2 13.2

Soil Conservation 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5

Urban Development
  Planning and zoning 19 19 21 21 26.1 26.1 16.1 16.1 16.1

Economic Development 10 10 8 9 9.1 10.1 12.1 12.1 12.5

Water and Sewer 30 30 30 30 30 33 34 33 33

Solid Waste 34 34 32 33 36.8 37.8 37.8 38.8 38.8

Chesapeake Hills Golf Course - - - - - - - - 10.9 10.9

Total 679.3 612 690.3 720.5 791.7 815.6 827.1 850.1 858.3

NOTES:
(1) Source: Calvert County's Adopted Operating and Capital Budgets FY2004-FY2011
(2) Eight years of statistical data is reported on this schedule.  Prior to implementing GASB 34, 
     the county did not maintain this type of information.
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County Commissioners of Calvert County, Maryland
Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited, see related notes)
Schedule 16

FY2002 FY2003 FY2004 FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009 FY2010 FY2011
Function: Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
General Government
  Circuit court
    Case transactions 6,912        5,927        6,680        7,007        9,763        12,028      13,884      14,363      16,085      
  Technology services
    Work orders completed N/A N/A N/A N/A 3,945        4,348        4,124        4,050        3,375        5,500        
     Support to desktop/laptop  computers N/A N/A N/A N/A 512           665           750           795           835           910           
  Treasurers office
    Credit card dollars collected 5,702        55,692      146,477    182,444    300,051    283,659    480,062    466,182    489,490    * 519,000    
    Credit card transactions 5               58             139           168           287           247           323           291           306           * 320           
    Real estate tax bills N/A N/A 39,765      40,468      40,988      41,265      41,390      41,757      42,236      42,238      
  Finance and budget
    Purchase orders processed 5,771        5,916        5,632        5,641        6,705        7,046        7,291        7,273        6,717        6,851        
    Accounts payable checks 15,038      15,374      15,949      15,493      15,015      17,050      16,349      15,693      14,852      14,950      
    Average number of employees per pay 800           860           906           930           936           945           992           1,017        1,049        1,050        
    Fixed assets maintained 12,072      12,491      13,326      14,551      15,364      15,973      14,503      15,255      15,804      16,357      
    Health care benefits managed 650           667           692           717           738           935           958           997           1,021        1,015        

Public Safety
  Transportation
    Yearly ridership 112,672    108,094    107,753    113,354    132,648    132,728    133,270    134,786    109,705    135,500    
  Inspections and permits
    Building permits issued N/A 2,410        2,430        2,425        2,504        2,098        1,812        1,428        1,500        1,500        
    Grading permits issued N/A 1,256        1,053        855           820           717           672           707           750           750           
    Electrical permits issued N/A 2,298        2,007        2,424        2,438        1,986        1,666        1,425        1,600        1,600        
    Plumbing permits issued N/A 1,746        1,625        1,667        1,279        1,074        943           757           800           800           
  Control center
    Number of incidents handled N/A 106,560    N/A 117,936    130,478    148,947    160,063    164,807    173,047    * 181,699    
  Fire and rescue
    Total calls responded 16,000      16,100      16,500      16,900      17,560      19,747      20,743      20,021      20,800      * 20,750      
  Animal control
    Calls for service 4,325        4,955        5,103        5,354        7,377        7,506        8,139        8,063        8,000        * 8,000        
  Detention center
    Average daily population 168           181           212           227           212           238           228           237           244           260           
    Work release (adp) 62             69             74             73             68             75             85             67             44             82             
  Sheriff's office
    Calls for service 38,849      49,148      54,789      71,959      65,454      76,223      85,941      94,535      103,988    * 88,120      
    Murder cases -                2               1               1               -                2               1               -                -                -                
    Rape cases 16             7               8               11             4               -                6               10             17             10             
    Robbery cases 14             15             10             20             9               16             15             27             26             27             
    Aggravated assault cases 221           177           120           121           171           173           272           187           123           56             
    Theft cases 622           753           677           899           935           947           1,051        1,067        1,204        1,100        
    Auto theft cases 56             69             62             65             77             92             92             82             92             55             
    Domestic violence incidents responded to N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,103        1,189        1,231        1,354        1,239        * 1,276        
    Business & community patrol checks N/A N/A N/A N/A 23,414      30,419      38,032      41,835      36,604      * 37,702      
    Sex offenders registered in Calvert County N/A N/A N/A N/A 99             108           110           121           106           * 109           
    School related incidents/investigations N/A N/A N/A N/A 351           403           293           322           343           * 353           

Public Works
      Major and minor subdivisions N/A 1,073        989           1,040        205           227           175           143           149           196           
      Road plans N/A 48             67             120           32             33             41             17             24             30             
  Project management
    Miles of roadway resurfaced 20             20             17             13             11             13             15             14             12             8               
  Fleet maintenance
    Work orders N/A 2,350        2,500        2,600        2,226        2,211        2,371        3,529        2,837        3,500        

Recreation
  Public library
    Circulation of materials 707,703    808,178    879,152    930,098    920,727    962,246    * 1,035,223 1,114,737 1,154,634 1,153,773
  Railway museum
    Outreach participants N/A N/A 3,300        3,924        3,621        3,900        4,000        4,100        4,150        4,200        
    Participants in programs N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,547        2,434        3,569        5,118        4,200        

Urban Development
  Planning and zoning
    Major and minor subdivisions (new applications) 49             60             49             47             47             63             40             21             34             45             

Water and Sewer
  Number of customers N/A N/A N/A N/A 4,587        4,788        4,799        5,037        5,076        5,104        

NOTES:
(1) Source: Calvert County's Adopted Operating and Capital Budget FY2002-2012
(2) Source: Calvert County Sheriff's Office
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Function: FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009 FY2010 FY2011
Public Safety
  Police:
    Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
    Patrol units 89 115 115 120 141 140 141
    Special purpose units 0 0 0 0 0 5 6
  Fire protection:
    Fire stations 7 7 7 7 7 5 6
    Pumpers 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
    Ambulances 15 15 15 15 15 14 14
    Rescue trucks 6 6 6 6 6 7 7
    Aerial trucks/towers 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
    Brush units 12 12 12 12 12 13 13
    Tankers 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
    Jet skis 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
    Dive rescue van 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
    Fire-rescue boats 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
    Mass casualty unit/trailer 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
    Inflatable boats 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
    Paramedic units 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
    Air cascade units 0 0 1 1 1 2 2
    Other utility types 24 24 24 24 24 25 25

Community Resources
  Transportation:
    Passenger buses 17 17 18 18 17 17 17

Public Works
    County owned streets in miles 435 446 446 446 446 452 452

Recreation
    Baseball fields 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
    Football fields 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
    Basketball courts 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
    Tennis courts 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
    Pools 1 2 2 2 2 3 3
    Golf course 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
    Playgrounds and parks in acres 360 360 360 360 360 360 360

Water and Sewer
    Water mains in miles 75 75 75 75 75 77 77
    Water treatment plants 21 21 21 21 21 21 21
    Storage tanks 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
    Sewer lines and storm drains in miles 66 66 66 66 66 66 66
    Sewer treatment plants 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
    Sewer pumping stations 27 27 27 27 39 39 39

NOTES:
(1) Source: Various county departments
(2) Seven years of statistical data is reported on this schedule, as this detail was not maintained prior to FY05.


